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Council Meeting Information

Members of the Public Gallery should note that the Council records and publishes Council
meetings via YouTube to enhance the accessibility of Council meetings to the broader
Wellington community. These recordings are also archived and may be published on
Council's Website for viewing by the public or used for publicity or information purposes.
At the appropriate times during the meeting, members of the gallery may address the

Council at which time their image, comments or submissions will be recorded.

Members of the public who are not in attendance at the Council meeting but who wish to
communicate with the Council via the webcasting chat room should lodge their questions
or comments early in the meeting to ensure that their submissions can be dealt with at the

end of the meeting.

Please could gallery visitors and Councillors ensure that mobile phones and other

electronic devices are turned off or in silent mode for the duration of the meeting.
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STATEMENT OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

“We acknowledge the traditional custodians
of this land the Gunaikurnai people,

and pay respects to their elders past and present”

Y  PRAYER

“Almighty God, we ask your blessing upon the Wellington
Shire Council, its Councillors, officers, staff and their families.
We pray for your guidance in our decisions so that the
true good of the Wellington Shire Council may result to
the benefit of all residents and community groups.”

Amen
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ACTION OFFICER: GENERAL MANAGER CORPORATE SERVICES
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

OBJECTIVE

To adopt the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting of 1 October 2019.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION

That Council adopt the minutes and resolutions of the Ordinary Council Meeting of 1
October 2019.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a Conflict of
Interest.
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A5 BUSINESS ARISING FROM
PREVIOUS MEETING/S




Y A -PROCEDURAL

A6 ACCEPTANCE OF
LATE ITEMS
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A7 NOTICE/S OF MOTION
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A8 RECEIVING OF PETITIONS
OR JOINT LETTERS




ITEM A8(1) OUTSTANDING PETITIONS
ACTION OFFICER GOVERNANCE
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

FROM
MEETING

COMMENTS

ACTION BY
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ITEM A8(2) RECEIPT OF PETITION - LEAVES FROM DECIDUOUS TREES IN
DESAILLY STREET, SALE

ACTION OFFICER: MANAGER OF NATURAL ENVIRONMENT & PARKS
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

Financial [ Communication | Legislative Council Council Resources | Community Environmental | Engagement Risk
Policy Plan & Staff Management

v

OBJECTIVE

To present Council with a petition in relation to leaves from deciduous trees in Desailly Street,
Sale.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive the attached petition in relation to leaves from deciduous trees in
Desailly Street, Sale.

BACKGROUND

A letter and petition containing 13 signatures has been received by Council.

A copy of the letter and petition is attached for Council information.

LEGISLATIVE IMPACT

Section L6.59 of Wellington Shire Council Processes of Municipal Government (Meetings and
Common Seal) Local Law No 1 provides for petitions and joint letters:

“A petition or joint letter presented to the Council must lay on the table for a period determined by
the Council but not exceeding the next two Council Meetings. No motion, other than to receive the
petition or joint letter may be accepted by the Chairperson, unless the Council unanimously agrees
to deal with it earlier.”
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21 October, 2019

Mayar, Cr Alan Hall, and Councillors cc. David Marcom CED
Wellington Shire Council Cameron McGregor

Re: Leaves from Deciduous Trees in Desailly St Sale

Some years ago, Wellington Shire Council planted oak trees and other sizeable deciduous
trees along Desailly 5t between Macarthur 5t and Raglan St. These trees are now growing
quite large and their leaf fall is massive, and most of these trees are only half as big as their
potential future size.

Mast of the properties on the east side of Desailly 5t have to contend with cleaning up these
leaves for many months of the year, and also well after the trees appear leafless, as the
September/Cctober winds continue to swirl the leaves onto our properties. The problem of
dealing with the leaves increases significanthy as the trees grow larger each year.

As an example, in my properties at 132 Desailly 5t and the two units adjoining at 1324 and
1328, the leaves have created a massive clean-up problem. This last season | removed three
trailer loads of leaves just from units 1324 and 132B6. And since | removed these (compacted)
trailer loads, more leaves have continued to blow in from the street, creating another two
trailer loads of debris to be cleared away. This scenario is typical for other residents.

Mot only do the residents on the east side of Desailly Street have to remove and clean up the
leaves, we hawve to get rid of the leaves as well, all in our own time and at our own expense.

The optimum resolution of this ongoing and annually increasing problem is to remaove such
inappropriate trees from this residential street before they get any bigger. Mote that already
some of the osk trees are being sculpted out to avoid contact with the electricity wires
overhead. In the future these huge sculpted out trees will be an absolutely nasty sight along
an aotherwise lovely residential street.

If Council refuses to remove the trees, we, the residents who must continuously clean up the
leaves, blown into our properties by the prevailing westerly winds, ask the Council to provide,
free of charge, garden waste bins that we can fill as needed and leave for regular collection
at the curb side. Perhaps large gardening bags could be provided to affected residences at
leaf-fall times, August, September, October, and collected by Council. i Council can make
some alternate suggestions, we are more than ready to discuss them.

Living with this constant clean-up, cawsed by Council’'s unfortunate choice of such large
deciduous trees, is extremely tiresome and an ongoing prablem. We, the affected rate payers,
ask Council to help us resolve this issue in a fair and timely manner. Signatures for our
collective request to Council may be found attached.

Sincerely,

MU Bewl—

Marie Barrett
3 Phillip Cres., Sale
0453 244 357
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A9 INVITED ADDRESSES,
PRESENTATIONS OR
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS




VY A-PROCEDURAL

A10 QUESTIONS ON NOTICE
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OFFICER:
DATE:

COUNCILLOR ALAN HALL
15 OCTOBER 2019

RECOMMENDATION

That the Mayor and Councillor Activity report be noted.

7 September - 4 October 2019

7 September

9 September

10 September

11 September

12 September

13 September

14 September

16 September

18 September

Book Launch: Spirits in the Bush, Sale

Rating Review Forum, Melbourne

Councillor Community Conversation: Footprints
Foundation, Sale

Law Enforcement Torch Run, Sale
Youth Council meeting, Sale

Roundtable Discussion with Minister for Energy on
Kerbside Reforms, Melbourne

VicForests Overview of Adaptive Harvesting 2020
teleconference

Official Opening of Wellington Youth Art Prize,
Sale
Sale RSL Peacekeeping Remembrance Service,

Sale

Dargo Bushfires & Drought Community meeting,
Dargo

Sale Scouts Annual Presentation Night, Sale

Gordon Street Recreation Reserve Special
meeting, Heyfield

Special Charge Scheme Community meeting,
Stratford

2019 Gippsland Wine Show, Sale
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Cr Crossley attended

Mayor Hall, Cr Hole and
Cr Maher attended

Mayor Hall, Cr Hole, Cr
Crossley, Cr Stephens,
Cr Bye and Cr McCubbin
attended

Mayor Hall attended

Cr McCubbin attended

Mayor Hall attended

Cr Hole attended

Mayor Hall, Cr Crossley,
Cr Stephens and Cr
Ripper attended

Cr McCubbin attended

Cr Hole attended

Cr Ripper attended

Cr Hole attended

Cr Hole attended

Cr Rossetti, Cr Crossley
and Chief Executive
Officer, David Morcom
attended
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19 September

20 September

22 September

23 September

24 September

25 September

26 September

2 October

3 October

St Michael’s School concert, Heyfield
Gippsland Local Government Network Mayors &

CEO’s meeting, Warragul

Colliewobbles Dog Walk, Sale

Conversation Leading Change teleconference
meeting

Presentation to Deputy Secretary Energy Ms
Andrea Harris DELWP, Traralgon

Latrobe Valley Community Power Hub meeting,
Traralgon

Manns Beach Special Charge Scheme
Community meeting, Manns Beach

Port Albert Special Charge Scheme Community
meeting, Port Albert

ESSO Concert announcement, Sale

Meeting with Premier Andrews and Minister for
Agriculture, Jaclyn Symes, Bairnsdale

Teleconference with Member for Gippsland,
Darren Chester

CarbonNet Reference Group meeting, Traralgon

COUNCILLOR ALAN HALL

MAYOR
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Cr Hole attended

Mayor Hall and Chief
Executive Officer, David
Morcom attended

Cr Hole attended

Cr McCubbin attended

Cr McCubbin attended

Cr McCubbin attended

Cr Stephens and Cr

Maher attended

Cr Stephens and Cr
Maher attended

Mayor Hall attended

Mayor Hall attended

Mayor Hall attended

Cr McCubbin attended
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OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

RECOMMENDATION

That the Chief Executive Officer’'s Report be received.

13 September

18 September

20 September

23 September

30 September — 6 October

7 October

8 October

9 October

10 October

Attended Rural Councils Victoria Committee meeting,
Melbourne.

Met with Tim Weight and Grant Radford (CEO), TAFE
Gippsland.

Attended the 2019 Gippsland Wine Show, Sale. In
attendance was Cr Rossetti and Cr Crossley.

Attended the Gippsland Local Government Network Mayors
and CEOs meeting, Warragul alongside Mayor Hall.

Met with Sale Police Inspector, Scott Brennan (Note:
Inspector Brennan has now permanently left the Wellington
Police district).

Annual leave

Attended the Maffra Recreation Reserve Committee
meeting, Maffra. In attendance was Cr Ripper.

Met with Telstra Regional Manager, Ms Loretta Willaton,
Sale alongside Mayor Hall.

Attended an ESSO Briefing, Sale. In attendance was
Mayor Hall, Cr Hole, Cr Crossley, Cr McCubbin, Cr Bye
and Cr Rossetti.

Attended the ESSO Gippsland Community Stakeholder
Dinner, Sale. In attendance was Mayor Hall, Cr Hole, Cr
Crossley, Cr McCubbin, Cr Maher, Cr Bye and Cr Rossetti.

Attended a Rural Councils Victoria Briefing, Warragul.

Attended a Public Forum on Local Government Rating
Systems Review, Traralgon.
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DIVISION: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

ACTION OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019
IMPACTS
Financial | Communication | Legislative Council Council Resources Community | Environmental | Engagement Risk
Policy Plan & Staff Management
v v v v v
OBJECTIVE

For Council to receive and note the September 2019 Council Performance Report.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive and note the September 2019 Council Performance Report as
attached.

BACKGROUND

The September 2019 Council Performance Report comprises key highlights towards achievement
of the 2017 -21 Council Plan, progress in relation to Major Initiatives and Initiatives as identified in
the 2019/20 Budget together with an overview of Council finances including an Income Statement,
a Balance Sheet with commentary regarding any major variances, information on cash balances,
the level of rates outstanding and a progress update on Council’'s Capital Works program.

Section 138(1) of the Local Government Act 1989 requires that at least every three months, the
Chief Executive Officer must ensure that a statement comparing budgeted revenue and
expenditure for the financial year with the actual revenue and expenditure to date is presented to
Council at a Council meeting which is open to the public.

OPTIONS

Following consideration of the attached September 2019 Performance Report, Council can resolve
to either:

1. Receive and note the September 2019 Council Performance Report; or

2. Not receive and note the September 2019 Council Performance Report and seek further
information for consideration at a later Council meeting, which would result in Council not meeting
legislative requirements.
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PROPOSAL

That Council receive and note the attached September 2019 Council Performance Report.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
No staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a Conflict of
Interest.
FINANCIAL IMPACT
The attached financial report provides information that informs Council on its financial operations
for the September 2019 quarter as well as the expected financial position for the 2019/20 year.
COMMUNICATION IMPACT
The Council Plan communicates Council’s strategic direction to the community. The Council Plan
can also be used by Council to communicate its vision and direction to other tiers of government,
organisations, government agencies and funding bodies.
LEGISLATIVE IMPACT
Section 138(1) of the Local Government Act 1989 requires that at least every three months, the
Chief Executive Officer must ensure that a statement comparing budgeted revenue and
expenditure for the financial year with the actual revenue and expenditure to date is presented to
Council at a Council meeting which is open to the public.
COUNCIL POLICY IMPACT
The September 2019 Council Performance Report has been prepared in the context of existing
Council policies.
COUNCIL PLAN IMPACT
Strategic Objective 6.3 states that Council will:
“Maintain a well governed, transparent, high performing, ethical and accountable
organisation”
Strategy 6.3.3 states that Council will:
“Ensure sound governance processes that result in responsive, ethical, transparent and
accountable decision making”

Strategy 6.2.2 states that Council will:

“Actively engage with both internal and external stakeholders to appropriately inform about
council business”
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SEPTEMBER PERFORMANCE REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2019 COUNCIL PLAN HIGHLIGHTS

Drought Support Initiative — Debit Cards

Council allocated $1 million from the 2019/20 budget as direct drought support for farmers and also
the Wellington economy with recipients urged to spend the money locally. As of 30 September
2019, 541 debit cards had been distributed as part of this Drought Support Initiative.

GRLE Tour
A tour of Gippsland Regional Livestock Exchange was conducted for students exploring career
paths within the saleyards and livestock industry.

Event and visitor attraction
A couple of Tennis events in Maffra and Sale for seniors were confirmed with Sports Marketing
Australia in addition to a BMX national event.

Wellington Planning Scheme

Council Officers continue to work closely with the Department of Environment, Land, Water and
Planning (DELWP) to simplify and 'cut red tape' from the Wellington Planning Scheme. It is
expected that a Planning Scheme Amendment will be publicly exhibited later in 2019.

Appreciation for Park Services
Park Services team received a thank you from the Sale United Football Club regarding the high
quality of the field at Baldwin Reserve.

Special Charge Scheme
Special Charge Scheme Information sessions were completed for McMillan Street / Scott Street in
Stratford, as well as for the townships of Port Albert and Manns Beach.

Marine and Coastal Policy

Submission for the Draft Marine and Coastal Policy prepared by The Department of Environment,
Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) has been completed. Once finalised, the Policy will guide
decision makers, including local councils and land managers, in the planning, management and
sustainable use of our coastal and marine environment.

R U OK Day

R U OK day message was promoted alongside the CEO Roadshow. R U OK day is the national
day of action dedicated to reminding everyone to ask, “Are you OK?” and to remember every day
of the year to support people who may be struggling with life’s ups and downs. Staff are always
encouraged to ask this question if they notice a change or are concerned about a fellow employee.

Annual Report

A copy of 2018/19 Annual Report of Wellington Shire Council was submitted to the Minister for
Local Government within legislative timeframes. This report will be considered by the Council at
Council Meeting on 15 October 2019.

EduCloud

MoU has been signed between council’s IT team and Gippsland East Local Learning Network for
EduCloud, which is now operational. EduCloud is a super-fast Wi-Fi platform that will enable
secondary school students and teachers to work, connect and collaborate across the region to
support and enhance learning, increase independence of learning, and offer opportunities
previously not available to the youth of the region.

Educloud service provision is 99.9% since its inception with no major service interruption so far.
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Gallery Highlights

Another successful month in the Gallery with highlight events being: Wellington Youth Art Prize
held on 13 September 2019; the book launch of Spirits in the Bush on 7 September 2019; and a
First Friday talk with artist Crystal Stubbs on 6 September 2019, all drawing large crowds.

New Indigenous Engagement Officer

Angela Chittem commenced with the Gallery this month in the role of Indigenous Engagement
Officer. She aims to support the development of a program of indigenous content, with a strong
focus on Gunaikurnai art and culture.

Artwork donations

On 2 September 2019, 23 artworks were accepted as donations by the Gallery Advisory Group,
including 17 paintings by J.H. Scheltema (1861-1941) from the estate of the artist in the
Netherlands.

Sold out shows
September saw three more sold out shows at the Wedge, two performances of Alice and
Wonderland and one performance of The Sapphires.

The Esso Night Under the Stars

The Esso Night Under the Stars, which is a free community concert presented by Council and
Esso at the Sale Botanic Gardens on 2 November 2019, was advertised this month with over 2,300
people booking in the first three days, this will be a tremendous community event and shows great
support for our community from Esso.

Sessions for babies and toddlers

Participation at all library branches Storytime (toddlers 3-5 years) and Rock Rhythm and Rhyme
(babies 0-2 years) sessions, which are held once a week at branches and twice a week at the Port
of Sale, continues to be very popular with young families with approximately 20 adults and their
children attending each session.

Author Visit
Ten people enjoyed the author visit by Denise Shine who discussed her novel Jeremiah’s Trunk on
18 September 2019 at Port of Sale.

Grant for ‘Little Bang Discovery Club’

The library successfully secured a grant for $2,000 from Inspiring Victoria funding to deliver the
‘Little Bang Discovery Club’, a new science program, which was held at Port of Sale during
September with 18 enthusiastic participants. The program will be delivered at all branches in
coming months with the aim of inspiring minds and highlighting science in everyday life.

LEGO Program for kids

The extraordinary Bricks 4 Kidz Lego program was the highlight of the spring school holidays at
Wellington Libraries with sessions for up to 40 children fully booked at most branches. Kids aged
five to 12 had a great time with the super-hero themed, hands on activities which provided an
exceptional experience for kids to build unique models with LEGO bricks and robotics.

Free financial information for older Australians

A free seminar about financial support options whilst making the transition into retirement was held
at the Sale Library on 30 September 2019. The seminar was run by the Department of Human
Services Financial Information Service with 20 attendees who learnt how to navigate government
services and make smart money choices.

Transformation Challenge

The 12 Week Transformation Challenge commenced on 9 September 2019 at Aqua Energy with a
whopping 54 participants enrolled, surpassing expectations. This has resulted in higher levels of

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019 27



instructor led activities in the gym. This program equips participants with the support and tools
needed to achieve and maintain fitness goals.

Best holiday enrolment

Enrolments for the September school holidays Learn to Swim 'In-10-sive' program have reached
59, Aqua Energy's best - 16 % higher than our previous best holiday program enrolment. The total
enrolments in the term based Learn to Swim program are at 866.

Committee of Management survey

The Committee of Management survey which was released last month had a very positive 73%
return rate from Committees, with 108 surveys returned and very strong data collected which will
assist with the development of the draft Community-Managed Facilities Strategy.

Capital Project Progress

o Cameron Stadium Redevelopment - construction works for the first stage have commenced
onsite this month.

e Briagolong Recreation Reserve Pavilion Redevelopment - works are all but complete with the
Committee of Management expected to receive the keys shortly. An official opening is being
scheduled for November.

o Sale Memorial Hall Redevelopment - stage side bathrooms are almost complete. Acoustic
treatment is in the process of being installed.

e Sale Tennis Club Court Upgrades - Council is currently working through the logistics of a
potential engagement of an experienced en tout cas court construction contractor. Once a
method for en tout cas surface placement has been established, preparation for stage two civil
works (seven courts) can commence. Fencing and lighting for Stage 2 works are mostly
complete.

e Stratford Recreation Reserve Changeroom Redevelopment - detailed design documentation
complete and awaiting a reviewed estimate.

e Stephenson Park Pavilion Redevelopment - progress on detailed design on-hold pending the
updated estimate. Consultation with user groups conducted, including kitchen/kiosk layout.

o Pine Lodge Tennis Court Resurfacing - tender evaluation completed with tender to be
awarded at next Council meeting.

Wellington Youth Art Prize
58 entries were received for the Wellington Youth Art Prize which was exhibited for the first time in
the Gippsland Art Gallery on 13 September 2019.

Battle at the Bundy

Twelve acts entered Propellor's "Battle at the Bundy" event on 15 September 2019 with winner,
local guitarist Olivia Lay, moving on to support Baker Boy and Ruby Fields at The Push All Ages
Tour leg in Leongatha in October.

Engage! Project Worker

A partnership has been brokered with Berry Street to have the ‘Engage! Project Worker’ to co-
facilitate the Out Proud And Loud (OPAL) youth support group for the next six months. OPAL
offers a hangout space for 13 to 25 year-olds who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender,
intersex or questioning (LGBTIQ+).

Support for School Strike

The Youth Council are working well together and supported the organisers of the School Strike for
Climate Action last week - with set up, marshalling, promotion and delivering the acknowledgement
of country.
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More Councillor/Youth Councillor interactions

Council provided greater acknowledgement of the purpose of the Youth Council during a Council
Workshop which included extra mechanisms that will increase Councillor/Youth Councillor
interactions.

Healthy Wellington Annual Report

This month saw the finalisation and submission of the Healthy Wellington Annual Report to the
Department of Health and Human Services. A joint effort by Council, Wellington Primary Care
Partnership, community Health Services and a range of agencies it reflects the progress of the
Action Plan and the planning for 2019/20 integrated projects. These projects were the subject of a
planning workshop that brought together 15 organisations and Council staff to discuss the
development of a small number of strategic projects that have both the potential for upscaling and
outreach.

ILC funding

Council has applied for ILC funding (Information, Linkages and Capacity Building) of $89,000 over
three years to fund support for the Wellington Access & Inclusion Advisory Group to develop a
Citizens Advice Group to broaden their role in advocacy and the development of a social
enterprise.

Review of the eastern Victorian bushfires

Wellington participated in a state-wide review of the eastern Victorian bushfires 2018/19 summer
by contributing the ideas for improvement created by the after-action reviews conducted
throughout the fire campaigns.

Flood class levels review

The East Gippsland Catchment Management Authority (EGCMA) flood class levels review
commenced with a view to identifying flood class levels around Dargo which sits in the EGCMA
catchment areas. This will provide better information for the community about the likely impact of
floods moving down the river system.

Emergency Information Brochure

Council's emergency information brochure has been revised and distributed to Department of
Health and Human Services, Neighbourhood Houses, U3A Sale and Yarram, CFA Region for
brigades, Woodside CFA and Community Emergency Planning Group, Central Gippsland Health
and Yarram and District Health Service new aged care clients, Devon North Hall Committee, Sale
Men’s Shed, Loch Sport Community Representative Group, Wellington Access and Inclusion
Advisory Group, Women with Disabilities Group, Just Better Care Rosedale, Uniting Gippsland,
Seaspray Caravan Park, Golden Beach community centre and Council Libraries.

Strategic Bushfire Management Planning Program

On 24 September 2019, the Coordinator Emergency Management was invited to be part of a State
Review Panel for the multi-agency Strategic Bushfire Management Planning program run through
the state-wide Safer Together Program.

ESSO’s emergency exercise
Emergency Management staff participated in ESSO’s emergency exercise to test inter-agency
processes.

Executive Officer of GAPP

Council’s Municipal Fire Prevention Officer took on the role of Executive Officer of the Gippsland
Arson Prevention Program (GAPP) group and attended VicPol training in bushfire arson
investigation.
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INCOME STATEMENT

For the period ending 30 September 2019

YTD - SEPTEMBER 2019 FULL YEAR 2019-20
Adopted Adopted
Actual Budget Variance Forecast Budget Variance
$000's $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's
Income
Rates and charges 62,885 62613 272 63,780 63,780 -
Statutory fees & fines 221 197 24 882 882 -
User fees 1,502 1302 200 7,387 7,387 -
|Grants - operating 2,046 3992 (1,946) 8713 16,042 (7,329)
Grants - capital 250 1,266 (1,016) 8,094 8,144 (50)
|Contributions - monetary 45 140 (95) 551 616 (65)
Contributions - non monetary 7 - 7 - - -
|Other income 610 868 (258) 2,951 2,951 -
Total Income (Inc capital income) 67 566 70,378 (2.812) 92,358 99,802 (7.444)
Expenditure
Employee costs 6,334 6672 338 27,933 27,766 (167)
|Contractors, materials and senices 6,991 7825 834 36,458 35,926 (532)
Bad and doubfful debts - - - 92 92 -
Depreciation and amortisation 5378 5227 (151) 24776 24776 -
Borrowing costs A k| - 243 243 -
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant & equpment (2) (22) (20) 876 906 30
Other expenses 251 159 (92) 734 734 :
Total Expenditure 18,983 19,892 909 91,112 90,443 (669)
| L4
58urplus for the year 48,583 50,486 (1,903) 1,246 9,359 (8,113)

Nole: The forecast figures reflect any known changes that have anisen since the adoption of the original budget. Including these changes enables Council to
more accurately monitor financial performance during the year and predict the end of year position. However, Council must report publicly against the original
adopted budget on a quarterly basis. The current forecast reflects the an adjustment of (S7.2 M) for the impact of Council receiving approximately 50% of its
2019/20 Victona Commission grant in 201819. Other minor adjustments include other income received in 2018/19 and carried over to be expended in 2019/20.

Adopted Budget to YTD Actuals

The resuit for the first quarter of the year reflects a surplus of $48.6 million against an adopted budget surplus of $50.5 million resulting in a adverse
variance of ($1.9 million). The variance is a combination of operating resut (operating income less operating expense) of ($0.6M) and the impact of

lower capital grantincome of ($1.3M).

A summary of major operating variances that have occurred to date include:

Operating Income
« $0.27 million

+ $0.20 million

Additional supplementary rates struck since 2018/19 budget adoption

Additional user fees income of $140k has been received from leisure centres, The Wedge and the Wellington Centre.

Registration income of $43k from health, building services animal registrations, is greater than anticipated partly dueto the
continual follow- up of outstanding animal registrations which were due on April 30 2019, Commercial tipping fees income for the
first quarter was slightly higher than projected by $42k.

*($1.85 million)

Operating grants variance mainly relates to Council's 201920 Victonia Grants Commission (VGC) first quarter allocation received

was 50% ($1.8M) lower than initially budgeted, due to the receipt of $7.4 million inthe prior year. This is slightly offset by the
receipt of unbudgeted Natura Disaster (January 2019 bushfires) claims.

+($0.26 million)

fluctuations of the market rates.
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Operating Expenditure

* $0.34 million Savings in employee costs resulted from staff vacancies (some long term) but slightly offset by use of casuals and agency staff.
Lower than expected annual WorkCover premium will generate overall savings of approximately $0.3M for the year.

+ $0.83 million Contractors, materials and services under spent includes:

. $0.3M - Commencement of the Stratford Recreation Reserve Netball Changerooms upgrade has been delayed, but has now
commenced with design and specification cumrently being reviewed. Painting as part of the Sale Memorial Hall upgrade is
complete with the balance of remaining works expected to be completed by December 2019,

b. $0.3M - Expenditure associated with software maintenance for major IT corporate systems are yet to be incumred.
c. $0.2M - Underspends in utiliies for the frst quarter mainly due to the variations in billing cycles.

A summary of major capital variances that have occurred to date include:

Capital Income

+($1.02 million) Delays in the commencement of a number of community facilities project such as Pine Lodge - Tennis Court Resurface (30.2M),
Yarram Regent Theatre Refurbishment (80.4M) and Briagolong Recreation Reserve - Pavilion ($0.2M) has impacted on the
timing of expected grant funding . Budgeted funding of $0.4M for upgrades to various halls wil now be paid directly to the hall
committees rather than Council. This is offset by the lodging of final claims of $0.3M for the E-Waste Sheds during September.
2019.
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 September 2019

Actual Actual Forecast Adopted
Budget
September 18 September 19  June 20 June 20
$000's $000's $000's $000's
Assets
133,682 Total Current Assets 157,798 89,221 83,951
894,225 Total Non Current Assets 882,116 903,460 923,241
1,027,907 Total Assets 1,039,914 992,681 1,007,192
Liabilities
12,495 Total Current Liabilities 26,154 23,250 19,076
24,467 Total Non Current Liabilities 19,015 22,022 21,370
36,962 Total Liabilities 45,169 45,272 40,446
990,945 Net Assets 994,745 947,409 966,746
e ™ i
Rates Debtors The rate debtors outstanding at the
Total Outstanding (inclarrears) as % of total rates end of September 2019 were $48.6
e raised million (70.4%) compared to
September 2018 of $46.3 million
(68.2%).
80%
$0.3 million of supplementary rates
60% were raised in the first quarter of
2019/20 above budget.
40%
The first rate instalment was due on
20% 30 September 2019. Second
instalment notices will be sentin
0% October 2019. (Due 30 November
Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June| 201 9)
——2019/20 -=-2018/19
L vy
r ™~ Council cash holdings at the end of
$ (000's) Cash Holdings otii.| September2019 are $108.1 million
1300656 csyan0 | and higher than September 2018 of
' $87.0 million due to advance funds
100,000 —‘/- s—| and lower than expected expenditure.
e — . -
80,000 W The current cash holdings includes
60,000 - restricted funds of $11.6 million to
40,000 - cover reserves, $35.0 million to cover
provisions and trusts, and
20,000 - approximately $24.0 million
| ) ) ) ) ) associated with the operating and
9 ' i ' i ' i ' ' ' ' capital carried forwards.
Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
—4—2018/19 Actual —&— 2019/20 Actual The balance is generally working
L —&— Restricted Cash —#— 2019-20 June Target ) capital for ongoing operations.

Restricted cash is money that is reserved for specific pumposes and therefore not available for general business use.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PROGRAM
For the period ending 30 September 2019

YEAR TO DATE 2019-20

FULL YEAR 2018-19

Adopted Forecast Adopted Variance to
Actual Budget Variance Budget Adopted
$000's $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's
Property 676 1,491 815 11,338 11,224 (114)
Infrastructure 1,806 2,341 535 28,266 25,841 (2,425)
Plant and Equipment 274 1,255 981 2,812 2,742 (70)
Intangibles - - - 682 682 -
Grand Total 2,756 5,087 2,331 43,098 40,489 (2,609)
YEAR TO DATE 2019-20 FULL YEAR 2018-19
Adopted Adopted Variance to
Actual Budget Variance| Forecast Budget Adopted
$000's $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's
Renewal 1,132 2,869 1,737 26,500 24,704 (1,796)
Upgrade 1,146 1,730 584 10,988 8,144 (2,844)
Expansion 247 195 (52) 4,061 6,473 2,412
New Assets 231 293 62 1,549 1,168 (381)
Grand Total 2,756 5,087 2,331 43,098 40,489 (2,609)

Capital Works Summary - for the period ending 30 September 2019
Overall 13 projects are at practical completion, 22 more projects are underway and 11 project have had contracts awarded but not yet
commenced. 78 projects are in pre-planning (development of the concept design, the detail design, community consultation and seeking

quotes or tenders).

Many of the projects in the pre-planning stage have either been advertised for tender during September 2019 or are planned to be
advertised in October and November 2019. This includes Briagolong Quarry Reserve public toilet, resurfacing Pine Lodge (Stratford) tennis

courts and Council's annual footpath, asphalt and kerb and channel replacement programs.

Stacey Bridge works was essentially complete in September 2019.

Construction of E- Waste Sheds at Kiimany, Yarram, Heyfield, Stratford and Maffra waste management sites were completed in

September 2019.

The Sale CBD - Public Safety Enhancement project was also completed in September 2019.

The majority of the 2019/20 major plant renewal program has been ordered.
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DIVISION: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

ACTION OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019
IMPACTS
Financial | Communication | Legislative | Council Council | Resources | Community | Environmental | Consultation Risk
Policy Plan & Staff Management
v
OBJECTIVE

The purpose of this report is to provide information to Council to enable consideration of the
appointment of an external independent member to Council’'s Audit & Risk Committee.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION
That:

1. Council appoint an independent member to Council’s Audit & Risk Committee for a
three year period commencing 29 October 2019 and expiring 28 October 2022 in
accordance with the recommendation in the attached confidential evaluation report
at Iltem F1.1 of this Council meeting agenda; and

2. Theinformation contained in the confidential document ltem F1.1 Audit & Risk
Committee Member Appointment and designated under Section 77 Clause (2)(c) of
the Local Government Act 1989 as confidential by the Chief Executive Officer on 4
October 2019 because it relates to the following grounds under Section 89(2) of the
Local Government Act 1989: h) any other matter which the Council or special
committee considers would prejudice the Council or any person;
be designated confidential information under Section 77 Clause (2)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1989, except that once this recommendation has been adopted the
name of the successful applicant can be made public.

BACKGROUND

Council maintains an Audit & Risk Committee in accordance with Section 139 of the Local
Government Act 1989. The Audit & Risk Committee is a formally appointed committee of the
Council and is responsible to Council.

The Audit & Risk Committee’s role is to report to Council and provide appropriate advice and
recommendations on matters relevant to its Charter in order to facilitate decision making by Council
in relation to the discharge of its responsibilities.

The Audit & Risk Committee membership is comprised of two Councillors and three external
independent persons with suitable knowledge and experience, all appointed by Council for periods
varying to a maximum term of three years. The terms of the current appointment is due to expire
on 28 October 2019.

In order to ensure the vacant position is filled an Expression of Interest process has been
undertaken to recruit a suitably qualified external member for Council’s Audit & Risk Committee.

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019 36



Advertising was undertaken in August 2019 and expressions of interest were received by the
nominated closing date of 27 August 2019.

An interview process was held in September 2019. The Evaluation Panel's assessment and a
recommendation for appointment is included in the attached confidential report.

OPTIONS

Council has the following options:

1. Adopt the recommendation to appoint one independent member for a period commencing 29
October 2019 and expiring 28 October 2022 to Council’'s Audit & Risk Committee; or
2. Amend the recommendation in relation to the proposed appointment.

PROPOSAL

That Council appoint one independent member for a period commencing 29 October 2019 and
expiring 28 October 2022 to Council’s Audit & Risk Committee in accordance with the evaluation
panel’s confidential report attached.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this Report have declared a Conflict of
Interest.

COUNCIL PLAN IMPACT

The Council Plan 2017-2021 Theme 6 Organisational states the following strategic objective and
related strategy:

Strategic Objective
“Maintain a well governed, transparent, high performing, ethical and accountable
organisation.”

Strategy 6.3.3
“Ensure sound governance processes that result in responsive, ethical, transparent and

accountable decision making.”

This report supports the above Council Plan strategic objective and strategy.
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ITEM C2.1 ASSEMBLY OF COUNCILLORS

DIVISION: CORPORATE SERVICES

ACTION OFFICER: GENERAL MANAGER CORPORATE SERVICES
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

IMPACTS

Financial | Communication | Legislative Council Council Resources Community | Environmental | Engagement Risk
Policy Plan & Staff Managemen

v v

OBJECTIVE

To report on all assembly of Councillor records received for the period 25 September 2019 to
9 October 2019.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION

That Council note and receive the attached Assembly of Councillor records for the
period 25 September 2019 to 9 October 2019.

BACKGROUND

Section 80A of the Local Government Act 1989 requires a written record be kept of all assemblies
of Councillors, stating the names of all Councillors and Council staff attending, the matters
considered and any conflict of interest disclosures made by a Councillor. These records must be
reported, as soon as practicable, at an ordinary meeting of the Council and recorded in the
minutes.

Below is a summary of all assembly of Councillor records received for the period 25 September
2019 to 9 October 2019.
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Assembly of Councillors summary of reports received for the period 25 September 2019 to
9 October 2019.

Date

Matters considered

Councillors and officers in attendance

1 October
2019

IT/Diary Meeting

Councillor Bye, Councillor Crossley, Councillor Hall,
Councillor Hole, Councillor Maher, Councillor Rossetti,
Councillor Stephens.

Leah Carubia, Executive Assistant, CEO Unit

Damian Norkus, ICT Operations Officer

1 October
2019

Verbal updates

Community Assistance
Grants

2018/2019 Capital
Review

Central Gippsland
Tourism — Revised MOU

Carbon Footprint and
Sustainability Strategy
Development

Aqua Project Feasibility
Study

Councillor Bye, Councillor Crossley, Councillor Hall,
Councillor Hole, Councillor Maher, Councillor Rossetti,
Councillor Stephens.

David Morcom, Chief Executive Officer

Chris Hastie, General Manager Built & Natural
Environment

Arthur Skipitaris, General Manager Corporate Services
Sharon Houlihan, General Manager Community &
Culture

John Websdale, General Manager Development (ltem
1)

Sam Matthews, Senior Community Facilities Projects
Officer (Item 1)

Tim Rowe, Manager of Natural Environment and Parks
(tem 1 and 5)

lan Carroll, Manager Corporate Finance (ltem 1)

Josh Clydesdale, Manager Land Use Planning (Item 1)
Sharon MacGowan, Community Facilities Planning and
Grants Officer (Item 2)

Mark Benfield, Coordinator Community Facilities
Planning (ltem 2)

Dean Morahan, Manager Assets and Projects (Item 3)
Paul Johnson, Manager Business Development (ltem 4)
Ashley Smirl, Visitor Economy and Events Coordinator
(Item 4)

Joanna Rule, Sustainability Projects Officer (Item 5)
Samantha Nock, Coordinator Waste and Sustainability
(Item 5)

External Presenter: Craig Bosch (ltem 6)

8 October
2019

SLUPP Agenda

Councillor McCubbin, Councillor Maher, Councillor Bye
John Websdale, General Manager Development

Paul Johnson, Manager Business Development (Item 1)
Josh Clydesdale, Manager Land Use Planning (ltem 1)
Ben Proctor, Strategic Planner (Iltem 1)

Caragh Button, Strategic Planner (Iltem 1)

Barry Hearsey, Coordinator Strategic Planning (ltem 1)
Dean Morahan, Manager Assets and Projects (Item 1)
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OPTIONS

Council has the following options:

1. Note and receive the attached assembly of Councillors records; or

2. Not receive the attached assembly of Councillors records.

PROPOSAL

That Council note and receive the attached assembly of Councillors records during the period
25 September 2019 to 9 October 2019.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a Conflict of
Interest.

LEGISLATIVE IMPACT

The reporting of written records of assemblies of Councillors to the Council in the prescribed format
complies with Section 80A of the Local Government Act 1989.

COUNCIL PLAN IMPACT

The Council Plan 2017-21 Theme 6 Organisational states the following strategic objective and
related strategy:

Strategic Objective 6.3
“Maintain a well governed, transparent, high performing, ethical and accountable
organisation.”

Strategy 6.3.3
“Ensure sound governance processes that result in responsive, ethical, transparent and

accountable decision making.”

This report supports the above Council Plan strategic objective and strategy.
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ASSEMBLY OF COUNCILLORS

1. DATE OF MEETING: 1 October 2019

2. ATTENDEES
Councillors:

Name

In attendance

(tick)

In attendance
(tick)

Yes

No

Yes

No

Cr Bye

Cr Maher

v

Cr Crossley

Cr Ripper

Cr Hall

Cr Rossetti

Cr Hole

Cr Stephens

Cr McCubbin

v

Name

In attendance

(tick)

In at

tendance
(tick)

Yes

No

Yes

No

D Morcom, CEO

v

S Houlihan, GMCC
(Actg. CEO)

v

C Hastie, GMB&NE

v

J Websdale, GMD

A Skipitaris, GMCS

v

Others in attendance: (list names and item in attendance for)

Leah Carubia, Damian Norkus

3. Matters/ltems considered at the meeting (list):

1. 1T/ Diary Meeting

4. Conflict of Interest disclosures made by Councillors:
Nil
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ASSEMBLY OF COUNCILLORS

1. DATE OF MEETING: 1 October 2019

2. ATTENDEES
Councillors:

In attendance In attendance
(tick) (tick)

Yes No Yes No
Cr Bye Cr Maher v
Cr Crossley Cr Ripper
Cr Hall Cr Rossetti
Cr Hole Cr Stephens
Cr McCubbin v

Name

Name In attendance In attendance
(tick) (tick)

Yes No Yes No

S Houlihan, GMCC
D Morcom, CEO v (Actg. CEO) v

C Hastie, GMB&NE v J Websdale, GMD v
A Skipitaris, GMCS 4

Others in attendance: (list names and item in attendance for)

Sam Matthews, Tim Rowe, Chris Hastie, John Websdale, lan Carroll
and Josh Clydesdale

Sharon MacGowan and Mark Benfield

Dean Morahan and Chris Hastie

Paul Johnson and Ashley Smirl

Tim Rowe, Joanna Rule and Samantha Nock

External Presenter: Craig Bosch

3. Matters/ltems considered at the meeting (list):
1. Verbal updates
Community Assistance Grants
2018/2019 Capital Review
Central Gippsland Tourism — Revised MOU
. Carbon Footprint and Sustainability Strategy Development
. Aqua Project Feasibility Study

4. Conflict of Interest disclosures made by Councillors:
Nil
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ASSEMBLY OF COUNCILLORS

1. DATE OF MEETING: 8 October 2019

2. ATTENDEES
Councillors

In attendance In attendance
(tick) (tick)

Yes No Yes No
Cr Crossley Cr McCubbin v
Cr Rossetti Cr Maher v
Cr Stephens Cr Bye v
Cr Hall Cr Hole
Cr Ripper

Name

In attendance In attendance
(tick) (tick)

Yes No Yes No
D Morcom, CEO v S Houlihan, GMCC 4
A Skipitaris, GMCS v J Websdale, GMD
C Hastie, GMB&NE v

Others in attendance: (list names and item in attendance for) Item No.

Paul Johnson
Josh Clydesdale

Ben Proctor

Caragh Button

Barry Hearsey

Dean Morahan

3. Matters/ltems considered at the meeting (list):
1. SLUPP Agenda — 08 October 2019

4. Conflict of Interest disclosures made by Councillors:
No Conflicts of Interest Declared
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ITEM C2.2 CONSIDERATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
DIVISION: CORPORATE SERVICES

ACTION OFFICER: GENERAL MANAGER CORPORATE SERVICES
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

IMPACTS

Financial | Communication | Legislative Council Council Resources | Community Environmental [ Engagement Risk
Policy Plan & Staff Management

v v v v ' '

OBJECTIVE

To consider, discuss and receive the Annual Report 2018/19 for Wellington Shire Council, as
attached.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION

That Council consider, discuss and receive the Annual Report 2018/19 in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989.

BACKGROUND

Each financial year Council prepares an annual report which is designed to inform the community
about our performance for the previous year, particularly against the strategic objectives set out in
the Council Plan and our financial performance, together with a range of other information as
required by legislation.

The attached 2018/19 Annual Report is in document form however, this will eventually be
re-presented into a more formal report to be placed on Council’s website.

It must also be noted that the way in which the accounts are required to be presented, makes it
appear as though Council has a substantial surplus when it fact this amount primarily includes
grants received in advance which are committed to future projects, while the actual annual surplus
is much lower at $3.77M

Financial Surplus year ending 30 June 2019 $33.67M
Includes:

Capital grants (one off & for future projects) $13.2M
Operating grants in advance for 19/20 $12.0M
Final grant from Port of sale project completed 17/18 $2.2M

Depreciation savings versus budget $2.5M
Actual Surplus $3.77M
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OPTIONS

Council is required to consider the Annual Report 2018/19 at a Council meeting within one month
of submitting the report to the Minister for Local Government.

PROPOSAL

That Council consider, discuss and receive the Annual Report 2018/19 in accordance with the
requirement of the Local Government Act 1989.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a Conflict of
Interest.
LEGISLATIVE IMPACT

Council has a responsibility to consider and discuss the Annual Report 2018/19 in accordance with
Section 134 of the Local Government Act 1989. Council’'s Annual Report 2018/19 has been
prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, the Local Government (General)
Regulations 2015 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

COUNCIL PLAN IMPACT

The Council Plan 2017-21 Theme 6 Organisational states the following strategic objective and
related strategy:

Strategic Obijective 6.3
“Maintain a well governed, transparent, high performing, ethical and accountable
organisation”

Strategy 6.3.3
“Ensure sound governance processes that result in responsive, ethical, transparent and

accountable decision making”

ENGAGEMENT IMPACT

Copies of the Annual Report 2018/19 are available to the public at the Sale and Yarram Service
Centres and on Council’s website.

ATTACHMENT

Wellington Shire Council Annual Report 2018/19.
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Council Offices

Sale Service Centre - Council Headquarters
18 Desailly Street (PO BOX 508), Sale VIC 3850
Telephone: 1300 366 244 Fax: (03) 5142 3501
Email: enguiries ellingion.vic.gov.au

Yarram Service Centre
156 Grant Street, Yarram VIC 3971
Telephone: (03) 5182 5100 Fax: (03) 5182 6264
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1.0 Introduction
1.1 About this Annual Report

Wellington Shire Council is proud to present the 2018/19 Annual Report which focuses on informing
our community about how we've performed cver the second year of reporting against the Council
Plan 2017-21 and the 201819 Budget.

It also aims to fulfil Council's statutory reporting obligations under the Local Government Act 1589 and
other relevant legislation.

The report provides an overview of 2018/19 operaiions, and the various accomplishments and
challenges throughout the year. It also describes the breadth of our services and operations,
comprehensive corporate governance information as well as detailed audited financial statements.

Council is committed to transparent reporting and accountability and our aim is to provide our
residents, ratepayers, State and Federal Governmenis and other key stakeholders with an open,
accurate account of our performance during 2018/19. The report also provides council staff with an
overall picture of the way we have performed and how they have contributed to the community during
the year.

For further information and to provide feedback, please contact our Customer Service department on
1300 366 244,

An online version of this report is available at www wellington vic.gov au.
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1.2 Demographic Profile of Council
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1.3 Purpose

Vision
“Happy people, healthy environment and thriving communities in the heart of Gippsland.”
Values

The arganisation’s values guide our behaviour and underpin everything we do. Cur values help us
achieve the organisation's vision and improve the quality of the services we offer to our community.

Cooperation: Working together, teamwork, collaboration and being solution-oriented.

Integrity: Acting with respect, honesty, reliability, trust, tolerance and understanding.

Balance: Demonstrating faimess, equity and flexibility. Considering work-life balance, and
balancing community needs against resources.

Professionalism: Personal development and meaningful work, being competent, innovative
and courageous, focusing on excelience and continuous improvement.

1.4 Fast Facts

35194 sguare metres of sealed local roads reconstructed
648 012 sguare metres of local roads resealed
1,553,446 scheduled kerbside garbage and recycling collection bin lifts
10,728 tonnes of garbage and recyclables collected from kerbside bins
4,076 tonnes of recyclables sent for re-processing
2. 548km of gravel road graded
5,353km of roadside slashed
3,751 culverts cleared
5,607 urban drainage pits cleaned
21,285 fickets sold at The Wedge
251,892 visits to Weliington Shire pools
39,290 people attended the Gippsland Art Gallery
272 728 library visits
268,288 library collection loans
75 applicants successful in receiving Quick Response Grants
54 applicants successful in receiving Community Assistance Grants
§549 233 provided to support 101 community committees of management
852 young people entered in Council-supported youth events
31,000 swim school attendees
106,552 attendees at GRSC
+ 101 performances at The Wedge

+ 54 exhibitions at the Gippsland Art Gallery
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449 planning approvals in 2018/ 9 with an estimated value for development of $122,386 230
21,095 walk-ins to the Sale Visitor Information Centre (VIC), 6,726 at the Yarram VIC and
3,209 at the Mafira VIC

1.964 aircraft movements at West Sale Airport and 1,616 aircraft movements at Yarram
Aerodrome

426 food premises inspected

40,705 customer service telephone calls received

30,558 face-to-face customer enguines received
49 687 dogs and cats registered

521 lost pets reunited with their owners

603 emergency after-hours incidents atiended

214 building regulation complaints received

1.5 Highlights of the Year

July 2018
« Opera Ausfralia’s Madame Butterfly was held at the Regent Theatre in Yarram providing a
unigque opporiunity for access to world-ciass opera in a rural area.

Gippsland Art Gallery exhibition of nationally-renowned and muiti-award winning arist Peter
Gardiner's ‘Event Horizon' —a 10-year survey of ‘disaster paintings (fire, flood, drought)
opened.

Fartnerning with Central Gippsland Health, Aqua Energy hosted The Parenting Circle’, a
weekly program designed for new parents. It created a shared platform for learming and
support for the challenges presented with parenting young children.

Over 60 people paricipated in the Mational Tree Day event at Island Reserve in Maffra. More
than 1,000 trees were planted during the event.

August 2018
« 1700 of our youngest community members enjoyed 25 Children's Book Week events held at
Wellington libraries involving costumed performers displaying and talking about shortlisted
picture books for the Children's Book Council Book of the Year Awards.

Aqua Energy went digital with the help of new display signage televisions kept up-to-date with
live information regarding lap lane availability, programs, promotions and general notices.

Gippsland Reqgional Sports Complex ran its inaugural Tiny Stars' soccer program designed fo
offer children aged 3-5 an opportunity to l2am the basics involved in playing soccer.

‘A Taste of Tamworth' played at The Wedge performing arts cenfre to a sold-out house of
country music fans.

Twelve passionate young people were formally inducted as our new 2018/19 Youth Council
hailing from Sale, Maffra and Yarram Secondary Colleges, Catholic Coliege and Gippsiand
Grammar.
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« ‘Wellington Shire Council hosted National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) ready courses
throughout July and August aiming to better prepare Wellington community members with
disabilities and their families for the new scheme.

Community engagement commenced as part of the $6M West Sale Airport Runway Extension
Project which informed stakeholders of the proposaed 12-week shutdown on main runway .

EduCioud was activated at all library branches, allowing students in Years 10-12 to access
their school's network and leaming resources.

September 2018
= The prestigious $20,000 John Leslie Art Prize was awarded at the Gippsland Art Gallery to
YVanessa Kelly (Acquisitive Prize) and Andrea Sinclair (Best Gippsland Work) selected from 61
shortlisted artworks from a record-breaking 493 entries with shortlisted works exhibited at the
Gippsland Art Gallery.
Gippsland Art Gallery opened a new exhibition of works by iconic local Gunaikumai artist, Dr
Aunty Eileen Harmrison: ‘Connections io Country’, her first exhibition at the gallery.

Triple Crown Women’s Mational Basketball League game between the Bendigo Spirt and
Melboume Boomers played to a sell-cut crowd of 800 spectators at Camernon Sports Complex
in Maffra.

On Board: Skate Deck Art Competition opened with an event at the Port of Sale shawcasing
local street culture films and live music. Crganised by Wellington Shire-supported youth
groups, Youth Council and Propellor in parinership with the Gippsiand Art Gallery and the Sale
Library topping off a long program of Youth Week events and acfivities in April.

The official cpening of the redeveloped Cowwam Recreation Reserve Pavilion. New women's
nethall, foothall and umpire change rooms were unveiled following a 51.08M refurbishment.
The project was jointly funded by the Wellington Shire Council, Department of Environment
Land Water and Planning ({DELWP), Latrobe Valley Authonty, Sport and Recreation Victora,
Cowwarr Football Netball Cluby and the reserve's committee of management.

October 2018
+ (Gippsiand Regional Sports Complex (GRSC) Stage 2A project, a new pavilion and synthetic
pitch for hockey and other sports, was completed and officially opened.

34 million of Victorian Government funding via Sport and Recreation Victora was successfully
atiracted for a major redevelopment of the Cameron Sporting Complex stadium in Maffra as
well as $1.3 million for change room developments at Stratford Recreation Resenve and
Stephenson's Park and $250,000 for tennis court renewal at Pine Lodge in Stratford.

Gippsland Art Gallery formally launched the Esso Collection of Australian art and
acknowledged the recent gift of 40 onginal artworks from Esso's corporate collection.

Children's Week acfivities were held at many Wellington facilities including at the Port of Sale
where the Gippsland Ant Gallery established a children's activity area in one of its main art
galleries and at the Sale Botanic Gardens where the Sale Librany promoted its children's
activities and resources.

‘Upswing' youth mental health festival was staged by the Wellington Youth Council and
Propellor, Wellington's music-focussed youth group, bringing the community together and
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providing opportunities for leadership, leaming and cooperation for youth councillors and
young people of the shire.

The Wedge performing arts centre presented the Australian Shakespeare Company's
performance of Macheth including a mafinee performance attended by students from a
number of secondary schools as part of their studies.

NMovember 2018
« Maffra Library joined forces with the Boisdale School Makers Market and Gippsland Art
Gallery and its exhibit, "Homeland: Memory and Meaning”, which was atiended by the
Ukrainian High Commissioner from Sydney, to present a weekend of activities at the Mafira
Memorial Hall, Mafira Library and Maffra Exhibition Space.

Jazz legends, Paul Grabowsky and Vince Jones, two of Australia's most distinguished artists,
performed 'Provenance’ at The Wedge performing arts centre that would not have been out of
place in New York's top jazz clubs.

A Rural Access Transition Report was completed for the Victorian Government to detail how
Council is transitioning its rural access projects in preparation for cessation of funding for the
Rural Access Program at 30 June 2019. Transition planning proceeded concurrenthy with
Council's advocacy, together with the Municipal Association of Victoria, for continuation of this
important funding with success in the form of an extension until the end of 2018 being
announced.

Council submitted its funding application to the Commonwealth Government's Drought
Communities Programme.

December 2018
+ A ‘Meet the Makers' market was held on at the Port of Sale Wellington Centre with arcund 600
visitors attending and availing themselves of the produce and gifts for sale along with art and
merchandise at the Port of Sale Gift Shop.

Gippsland Art Gallery opened Kevin Moriensen: The Alchemist’ exhibition. Kevin Mortensen is
a senior {and reclusive) Gippsland artist who has reached mythical proportions since
representing Australia at the Venice Biennale in 1980. This was his first major career
refrospective.

The Wedge hosted the bi-annual ‘Esso Night at the Opera’ with a full house audience enjoying
the show and a post-performance reception. A parinership hetween Esso, Opera Australia,
Orchestra Victoria and Wellington Shire Council, this free community concert provided a
wonderful opportunity for our community to experience first class opera locally.

Aqua Energy, in partnership with the Latrobe Valley Authority, held a live broadcast of the 'Big
Bash' cricket match between 'Melboume Stars' and "Sydney Thunder'. The match was
streamed from the Optus big screen, with users watching from either the pool or a picnic
setiing on the grass at the Sale outdoor pool.

An ‘inspired by the Lakes' sports day was held at Lake Guthridage in Sale with community
members paricipating in all-abilities activities including sailing, soccer, badminton, hockey and
bowis.
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+  As part of Council's fire inspection program, our community recorded the shire's lowest ever
number of non-compliant properties and fire infringements ahead of the 2019 summer hushfire
season reflecting the communities” awareness of the fire season risk.

January 2019
* The Glehe Woondella Shared Path Project was completed. Delivered across five stages, the

full length of the path was open for use including the Raglan Street rail crossing and the
Flooding Creek pedestrian bridge.

The Gippsland Regional Sports Complex stadium floor replacement project was completed in
accordance with the project plan.

A new sculpture and mural were unveiled to visitors at Sale Botanic Gardens. A germinating
seed made from stainiess and Corten steel rests majestically on a colourful circular mosaic,
adjacent to the adventure playground. The project was a collaboration between the Friends of
Sale Botanic Gardens, who received funding from the John Leslie Foundaftion, and the
Wellington Shire Council.

Wellington Shire, as part of well-planned, multi-agency emergency management
arrangements, provided emergency relief centres and other response 1o two major bushfires
which started in our shire during January, the Rosedale South bushfire and Walhalla-Stoney
Creek Track bushfire.

The redeveloped Port of Sale reached its one-year anniversary on 6 January celebrating a
total of 203993 visitors to the Wellington Centre building since opening, including 41,208
visitors to the Gippsland Art Gallery.

Amendment C103, which proposes to rezone land adjacent to the West Sale Airport for
industrial purposes, was adopted by Council on 18 June 2018,

Council allocated Commonwealth drought funding to enable local water cartage confractors fo
deliver household water to drought affected families, free of charge.

February 2019
« Gippsland Art Gallery's exhibition ‘4 Fine Romance’ - a thematic group exhibition of
contemporary realism which included some of the biggest names in Australian art including
Sam Jinks and Matasha Bieniek - was celebrated with 'Date Night', 2 special even'ing eventon
Yalentine's Day which attracted many first-time visitors to the gallery.

Gippsland Art Gallery hosted an afternoon tea to celebrate the centenary of the 100th hirthday
of John Leslie OBE. The gallery's exhibition 'The John Leslie Gift' celebrated John's life and
his legacy to the gallery and to the Sale community.

Gippsland Regional Sports Complex stadium reopened after major works to replace the sports
courts flioors with a new, FIBA {intemational hasketball federation) accredited timber sprung
floor.

Approximately 1,000 junior basketballers and their families totalling approximately 4000
people, attended the annual Sale Amateur Baskethall Association junior tournament at the
Gippsland Regional Sports Complex.

Maintenance and accessibility audits were underiaken on all 115 community-managed
facilities Wellington Shire Council supports. This provided, for the first time, a comprehensive
Report of Operations Page 13 of 114

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019




understanding of maintenance and future capital improvement development needs for these
important facilities managed by hundreds of community volunteers.

Wellington Shire Youth Councillors and members of ‘Propelior, Wellington's music-focussed
youth group which arranges drug and alcohol-free music, cultural and recreational events,
represented regional young pecple at the Youth Affairs Council of Victoria's workshop as part
of the Royal Commission into Mental Health.

Wellington Shire, as part of well-planned, multi-agency emergency managemeant
arrangements, provided emergency relief centres and other response to a major bushfire
complex which started from multiple lightning strikes hetween Licola and Dargo which joined
to become the Licola-Mt Margaret Track bushfire.

Prime Minister, Scott Morrison announced $31 million fo the second phase of the Macalister
Irrigation District (MID) modemisation project which will complete the transformation of the
MID’s ageing assets into a highly automated, efficient, modem water delivery system. The
Prime Minister also saw first-hand just how horrific drought conditions had become across
Wellington Shire visiting farms near Briagolong and in the Giffard area.

Council, with funding support from the Victorian Planning Authcority prepared a range of
technical studies to inform the layout of a future industrial precinct adjacent to West Sale
Airport.

Stage 3 of the Jayco Herald Sun Tour began at the Port of Sale, featuring internationaily
renowned cyclist Rickie Porte.

Council, in parinership with the Latrobe Valley Authority, hosted the Collingwood Foothall Club
in February as party of its Community Camp program. Local school students were treated to
super clinics and the players also participated in a business breakfast.

At the Avalon Intermational Airshow, Council announced parinerships with RAAF Air Academy
and Federation Training (TAFE Gippsland) that will ensure West Sale Airport is a leader in
aviation and the facility is ripe for further investment. This followad the completion of the 56M
runway extension and lighting upgrade.

Legislative changes to the way that local government ensures the safety and wellbeing of
children has resulted in significant new organisational compliance obligations. As a result,
Child Safe Standards training was rolled out to the organisation which included online and
face to face training on Child Safety, Child Safe Standards Policy, and Code of Conduct
amendments.

Linder the Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2008 VIC (the Charter), local
government has a legal obligation to act compatibly with human rights in the way we go about
our work and deliver services. As a result, Human Rights training was rolled out to the entire
organisation via the online Leaming & Development System to ensure that all council staff
have a well-rounded knowledge of human rights and remain compliant with their
understanding of the Charter.

March 2019
+  New microwave infrastructure for the Rosedale Library was completed to provide improved
connectivity for the Rosedale community.
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The Prahran Mechanic’s Instifute began a new historical research outreach service at Sale
Library with specialist research assistance provided for users. The service delivers requested
histarical material directly to bomowers without their need to travel to Melboume or refy upon
postal services and Wellington Shire libraries deliver material to users at no additional cost.

All of Wellington Shire's six library branches acted as locations for free hearing tests
conducted by Australian Hearing for Hearing Awareness Weesk .

The Wedge performing arts centre presented Marina Prior and David Hobson, legends of
opera and musical theatre in The 2 of Us'.

Hosted by Kilmany FPark mansicn, The Wedge performing arts centre presented the Australian
Shakespeare Company’s performance of Romeo and Juliet with aimost 400 patrons attending
on the lawn of the beautiful, historic mansion.

Gippsland Ant Gallery presented a retrospective exhibition of celebrated, senior Gippsland
arist, Lesley Duxbury: ‘Echo — A Survey’, which included an original 1821 painting by English
landscape painter, John Constable.

Gippsland Art Gallery Director Simon Gregg judged the inaugural Gunaikumai Land and
‘Waters Aboriginal Corporation (GLaWAGC) Art Prize and purchased an impressive possum-
skin cloak by Gunaikumnai artist Alice Pepper for the gallery through the Gippsiand Textile
Collection Fund.

Swim school enrolments at Aqua Energy reached an all-time record level of 863 for 2019,
representing a 35% increase in enroiments over the last five years.

Aqua Energy obtained accreditation as a registered provider for the National Disability
Insurance Scheme (NDIS), making it easier for community members who have a NDIS
disability support plan to access personal training and other Agua Energy-provided services.

‘Pop-up’ bushfire recovery sessions were held at Heyfield, Briagolong, Loch Sport, Rosedale
and Dargo, arranged by Wellington Shire Council with attendance by many state and local
recovery agencies as par of pre-planned, multi-agency emergency recovery arrangements.

Startup Gippsland program launched in Sale with the support of LaunchVic funding. Thirteen
businesses from Wellington are participating in the 12-week intensive growth program.

April 2019
» Consulfation with community and stakeholders for The Wedge Redevelopment Demand Study
commenced which will inform future decision-making as to whether and what type of
redevelopment may be needed for the 18-year-old performing arts centre.

Gippsland At Gallery hosted a panel discussion as part of the state-wide 'Climarte’ Festival,
with guest speakers and audience considering ideas and concepts around art and activism,
community engagement, transition and accelerated action on climatz change.

'Gippy Girds Can!', a local variation of the nation-wide This Girl Can' promotion encouraging
girls and women o re-enter sport and active recreation was held at Gippsland Regional Sporis
Complex and Aqua Energy, with program support provided in collaboration with GippSpor.

Council adopted the Urban Paths Plan designed to ensure that town’s significant community
facilities are supported by appropriate footpath infrastructure.

Report of Operations Page 15 of 114

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019




+ The Wellington Access and Inclusion Advisory Group, supported by Wellington Shire, carried
out ‘Lived Experience’ audits in several locations, including Dango Bush MNursing Unit, Dargo
Community House and Port of Sale’s Wellington Centre. The outcomes of these audits are
provided to owners/operators of the buildings, including Council, for consideration and
consultation regarding improvements to operations to assist with inclusion of ail community
members.

Federation Training, in partnership with Council, held a strateqgic engagement session at the
Port of Sale, attended by local business representatives. The session included a timeline for
the new campus in Sale.

Operations at West Sale Airport were restored following successful completion of works {o
extend and asphait the main runway.

May 2019
« The 2019 Parks Week program was a great success. The program included events at the
Yarram Early Leaming Centre, a Teddy Bears Picnic and a Baby's Day Out at the Sale
Botanic Gardens, and the Port Albert Seaside Festival.

Sale Library at the Port of Sale hosted the launch of A Joh for Everyone™ program in
Wellington for young people with disabilities to address and share experiences with
employers.

The Wedge performing arts centre presented intemaftionally renowned Irish folk music duo
Foster and Allen to a sold out audience and the incredible Canned Heat, in their only regional
performance in their 'On the Road Again® tour, bringing patrons from all over Victoria.

Wellington Shire's Municipal Emergency Management Planning Commities undertook a multi-
agency debrief of the summer 2019 bushfires to review collaboration and interaction between
agencies and effectiveness of preparedness, response, relief and recovery operations and
inter-agency coordination.

June 2019

+ Local Government Victoria allocated a grant of $4.5M from the Rural Councils Transformation
FProgram, to four of the GLGN Councils, so that they can begin work on planning for the
shared services opportunity.

Implementation of the Yarram Town Tree Plan resulted in around 200 trees added to Yarram's
urhan forest.

Council was successful in its application for funding under Round 2 of the State Govemment’s
Fixing Country Roads Program. The project will invoive the widening and sealing of around
4km of Balloong Road which forms part of an over-dimensional vehicle route.

Port of Sale's Wellington Centre won the Regional Prize and a Public Architecture Award at
the Australian Institute of Architects’ Victoran Architecture Awards, announced at an awards
evening.

The Wedge performing arts centre achieved its highest income from fickets sales since
opening, generating $670,970 in ticket sales this financial year, a 26% increase on last year,
resulting in a 12% increase in patronage from last year.
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The Wedge hosted Emmy-award winning American singer-songwriter Toni Child's with her
performance "Refrospective’.

The inaugural Wellington Youth Awards were held with more than 100 people attending,
recognising 20 nominees and seven winners in seven categories.

Outgoing Wellington Youth Councillors for 2018/1% were recognised and thanked for their
senvice and incoming Wellington Youth Councillors for 2019720 formaily commenced their
senvice by taking the ‘oath of service’ to serve their community to the best of their abilities.

The Port of Sale East Bank Redevelopment Study was prepared to facilitate Council's long-
term strategic land use planning aspirations for land formerly occupied by the Sale Specialist
School and Sale High School.

A major structural review of the Wellington Planning Scheme began as part of the State
Govemment's Planning in the Economic Growth Zone (PEGZ) project and Smart Planning
reform.

1.6 Challenges and Future Qutlook

Challenges

Transition to altered federal funding arrangements under the Mational Disability Insurance
Scheme and My Aged Care program with regards to funding agreements with health service
providers.

Inadequate public and community transport in regional rural areas and impact on access to
senvices, employment, education and recreation activities and social inclusion.

Community resilience and cross-agency preparedness for emergencies and changes to state and
federal financial assistance funding arangemeants.

Meeting service needs of specific communities (early years, youth, seniors, LGBTQI+, CALD,
Abariginal, people with disabilities, people who are unwell, unemployed, volunteers).

The need for strategic planning o identify and prioritise future community facilities capital projects
and leverage off changing extemnal funding amrangements and priorities.

Increasing environmental sustainahility of Council's major public facilities and their operations.
High cost of operating high guality, accessible, safe and modern public facilities.

Histoncal inconsistencies and inequities in support for community-managed facilities and
volunteer commitiees of management and User groups.

Warkforce skiils shortages in specialised or high demand areas such as swim teachers and
project managers.

Recruitment of suitably qualified staff to carmy out statutory roles.
Ensuring compliance across the dynamic and changing nature of the building industry and its

regulations.
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Significant structural changes to the Wellington Planning Scheme as a result of the State
Government’s Sman Planning reforms.

Coastal climate change adaptation in areas subject to natural hazard risks.

Administering increasingly complex regulations via the planning process, including native
vegeliation, bushfire management and cultural heritage requirements.

Caontinuing to manage the Gippsland Regional Livestock Exchange (GRLE) ensuring hest value
to the local livestock industry and ratepayers during a period of drought.

Aftracting State and Commonwealth Government funding to support local businesses o expand
and create new jobs in Wellington.

Continuing to advocate for increased passenger rail services for Wellington residents.

Continuing to wark with our Agricultural community during one of the most significant droughts on
record.

Introduction of the State Govemment e-waste ban.

Continuing implementation of direct managed large faciliies maintenance senvices.

Implementation of new Residential Roads and Street Construction Plan and Boating
Infrastructure Flan including community engagement.

Progression of Council's 201920 capital works program.

Progression of Gippswide Kerbside Collaborative Procurement opporiunities including options for
FOGO (Food Organics and Green Organics).

Continuing to advocate for improvements to and support for improvements to recycling services.
Enterprise Agreement 10.
Increasing Governance and Compliance demands:

¥ Privacy

+  Victorian Data Protective Standards

v Potential changes to the Local Govemment Act.

ICT Improvements across the organisation including development of new systems for OHA&S,
Human Resources, Leaming and Development.

Gippsland Shared Services planning.

Continued Financial Sustainahility in a Rate Capped Environment.

Changes to the Local Government Act and 2020 Council elections.
The future

+ [Developing guidelines for Council to work respectfulty with Gunaikurnai cultural content, in
consultation with Gunaikurai Land and Waters Corporation and traditional owners.
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Developing a Community-Managed Facilities Strategy and action plan aiming to address equity in
support for community facilities and commitiees and, combined with shire-wide community
facilities auditing, improving decision-making regarding future capital investment.

Supporting community commitiees to deliver capital projects at Aify-Clydebank Hall,
Bundalaguah Myrtiebank Hall, Port Albert Mechanics Insfitute, Sale Historical Society, Stratford
Kindergarten, Stratford Mechanics Hall, Yarram Mechanics Hall, Yamram Regent Theatre,
Briagolong Quarmmy Resenve, Yarram Walpole Stadium and Woodside Recreation Reserve.

Developing a multi-agency action plan for implementation of 'Healthy Wellington', our municipal
public health and well-being plan and integrated health service agencies' health prevention plans.

Implementing healthy choices food menus at Council's major facilities.

Developing a shire-wide Early Years Facilities Strateqy, assessing readiness of Council early
childhood facilities for state-wide Kindergarten expansion program and underiaking master plans
for key early childhood facilities.

Reviewing funding arrangements of health services for aged care and eany childhood senvices.

Undertaking shire-wide sporting needs assessment and sporting infrastructure plan and facility
master plans for key sporting facilities.

Progressing delivery of capital projects including Cameron Sporting Complex redevelopment,
changeroom redevelopment projects at Sale Recreation Reserve main oval, Stephenson Park
and Stratford Recreation Reserve, Sale Outdoor Pool plant replacement, Port of Sale sireet
signage, skatepark lighting and café seating expansion, Briagolong Recreation Reserve pavilion
redevelopment, Fine Lodge Recreation Reserve tennis court resurface, seasonal pools rolling
sustainability improvement upgrades.

Attracting funding for 'A Warmer Poaol for Yarram' project.
Investigating options and developing business cases for future development of Gippsland
Regional Sports Complex, The Wedge performing arts centre and Aqua Energy aguatic centre.

Implementing a digital workforce management system for Leisure Services.

Progressively rolling out sustainability initiatives in Council’s major public facilities and outdoor
pools including phasing out single use plastic, solar energy provision, rainwater collection and
diversion and LED lighting upgrades.

Identifying and implementing improvements in emergency management from state-wide Councils
and Emergencies Capability project.

Identifying implications for Council's financial sustainability with respect to resourcing emergency
management responsibilities as a result of federal and state government changes to financial
assistance funding arrangements for emergency events.

Preparing structure plan for Maffra to support the future urban growth of the township.

Implementing the Port of Sale East Bank Redevelopment Study to facilitate future redevelopment
of the former Sale Specialist School and High School site.
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Working with the State and Federal Governments to help improve drought support measures.

Working with TAFE Gippsiand in the development of a new facility and associated programs at
the Port of Sale campus.

Developing a business case for the development of future stages within the Eastern Recreation
Aviation Precinct at West Sale Airport.

Reviewing and renewing Wellington Shire Council's Local Laws.

Completing civil works for Mafira Streetscape Upgrade — Stage 1.

Considering the introduction of recovery of FOGO waste semvice in conjunclion with Gippswide
Kerbside Collaborative Procurement opportunity.

Completing pavilion and court upgrades at Sale Tennis Club.

Commencing review and update of Environmental Sustainability Strategy (2020-2024).
Continuing to advocate for improvements to and suppor for improvements to recycling services.
Continuing community engagement regarding cpportunities for street sealing in Port Albert.
Cameron Sporting Complex Redevelopment Project.

Reconstruction and widening Balloong Road, Woodside.

Bridge Replacements — Orr's No 3 and Rathjen's.

Yarram Regent Theatre - Solar Panels & Facade Refurbishment.

FPine Lodge Recreation Reserve, Stratford - Tennis Court Resurface.

Stratford Recreation Reserve - Changeroom Redevelopment.
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2.0 The Year in Review
2.1 Mayor's Message

It is with great pleasure that | present the Wellington Shire Council Annual Report 2018/15.

Ower the past 12 months, Council has devoted considerable resources to supporting and advocating
for our drought affected farmers across Wellington. The drought has had dramatic impacts not only on
farms, but also on many of our small businesses as less money circulates through our local economy.

This advocacy has taken many forms, at both State and Federal levels.

We were particularly pleased to receive a visit from Prime Minister Scoft Morrison in early 2019 to
announce vital funding for the modemisation of the Macalister Irmigation District (MID). The Prime
Minister also met with drought-affected dryland farmers to hear from them first-hand the issues they
are facing. Council was pleasad to secure 31 million from the Commonwealth Government for drought
infrastructure funding, which allowed for the provision of free household water cartage for drought-
affected farmers, among other initiatives.

Council also hosted the Deputy Prime Minister, Federal Agriculture Minister and the State Agriculture
Minister in Wellington during this pericd to advocate for further practical drought support and
awareness.

We were also successful in obtaining $250,000 from the State Government to spend on community-
hased events and upgrades to water infrastructure. This allowed Council to fund around 20
community events, provide free entry for farming families to the Sale, Yarram and Mafira agricultural
shows, and upgrade water standpipes in rural communities.

Further ta this, Council introduced a number of financially supparting measures for farmers including
the continuation of the 20% farming discount rate, waiver of fees for roadside grazing permits and the
freezing of yard fees at the Gippsland Regional Livestock Exchange.

‘We understand that only rain will end the drought. Until that happens, we will continue to support our
rural sector as much as we can and continue to push the state government to provide more direct
financial support where it is desperately needed.

Aside from the drought, we celebrated the official opening of Gippsland Reqional Sports Complex

(GRSC) Stage 2A, which was a $3.6 million project to build a national standard synthetic hockey fieid
that services our entire region. The field and fully accessible pavilion is now home to the Maffra, Sale
and Weliington hockey clubs and has become a very well utilised part of the GRSC sporting precinct.

Qur Baldwin Recreation Reserve was given a $600,000 make-over to bring it up to modem standards,
including new female changerooms, umpire changercoms and public amenities to cater for the
growing female participation at Sale United Soccer Club.

‘We also saw considerable works in the main streets of Rosedale and Stratford, with new
streetscapes, landscaping and general beautification and safety upgrades to make entering these two
towns more pleasant.

A 36 million project to extend the main runway and lighting upgrade at the West Sale Airport was also
completed. This project has enabled the West Sale Airport to become the cenfre for aviation training
in Gippsland, with the facility to be utilised by the RAAF Air Academy and Federation Training.

We also took the time to recognise our outstanding Wellington residents at different events throughout
the year. | was thrilled to recognise the efforts of locals Laurie Smyth and Tilly Korbman in their local
communities, by awarding them the Wellington Shire Citizen of the Year and Wellington Young
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Citizen of the Year respectively, as part of our Ausfralia Day celebrations. Both Laurie and Tilly's
dedication to community service is to be admired and aspired to.

In closing can | take this opportunity to acknowledge the absolute privilege to have served as Mayor
over this last year and importantly to acknowledge my councillor colleagues, the CEQ, and indeed all
members of the Wellington Shire team who, with professional respect and dedication make my job
easy

And most importantly, thank you to all of you throughout our very large shire, that is the heart of
Gippsland. It is you who continue to amaze me with your commitment to one another and to your
communities. It is this community spirit that sets Wellington apart.

Regards

B
. .

e

55
ki) _E'-:l‘-f— i

Cr Alan Hall
Mayor
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2.2 Financial Summary

This summary should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statement and Performance Statements
which are available as an Appendix to this Annual Report.

2.2.1 Performance to Budget

Council finished the year with a surplus of $33.68 million (excludes asset revaluation decreases),
against a budgeted surplus of $9.86 million, a variance surplus of 323.81 million.

The following major factors influenced this result:

Final invoices for the Port of Sale Redevelopment project of $2_.2 million for the work
completed in 201718,

The conclusion of the current five-year Roads to Recovery program has resulted in an
additional $1.9 million being received.

Council received fifty percent of its 2019/20 Victoria Grants Commission (VGC) allocation of
7.4 million and %4.5 million associated with the Gippsland Shared Senvices initiative in June
2019, which will he carmed forward into FY 2019/20.

Mew operating grant funding was received including 0.7 million for drought community
resilience and support programs and $0.2 million for Stratford Recreation Reserve. Council
also received additional 201819 VGC allocation of $0.8 million.

Delays in the commencement of major operating projects, including Sale Memaorial Hall of $0.6
million and Gippsland Shared Services initiative of 30.6 million until 2019/20 resulting in
2018M1% underspends.

Savings in employee costs of $1.23 million resulting from staff vacancies; and a lower than
expected 2018/19 annual WorkCover premium.

2.2.2 Adjusted Underlying Result

The adjusted underlying result, pictured below, excludes non-recurrent capital grants, other revenue
received towards capital projects, non-monetary asset contributions {gifted assets and developer
subdivision contributions) and the effects of asset revaluations. The adjusted underiying result of
18.6% is impacted by the advance payment of 2019/20 financial assistance grants and other major
operating granis received in 2018159, Excluding this advance funding, the adjusted underlying resuit
is 7.72% which is still in the acceptable ranges (20%) to 20%. Achieving an underlying surplus is a
critical financial strateqy that provides capacity to renew Council’s assets, and this is an ongoing
challenge for councils with an extensive road network and lower populations than metropolitan
councils.
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Adjusted underlying result %

18.6%
16.8%
- I = l

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

2.2.3 Liquidity

Working capital at the end of the year was $85.5 million or 520.2%, which is well above Council's
budgeted position of 298 5%, The working capital ratio which assesses Council's ability to meet
current commitments is calculated by measuring Council's current assets as a percentage of current
liabilities. Council's result of 520.2% reflects our strong financial position and is well above the
expected target band of between 120% and 200%. lgnoring cash, which is restricted for specific
purposes and the ratio reduces to 348 1%.

Working Capital Ratio %

534.7%
i
|
15/16

16,17 1718 1819

2.2.4 Cash

Council's cash including term deposits greater than 90 days’ maturity (classified as other financial
assets) finished at $96.8 million against a budget of $65.1 million, with $35.0 millicn reserved for
specific purposes in future years including l:umpletinn of camied forward capital works, major
operating projects, the Wellington coast subdivision strategy voluntary assistance scheme and future
waste infrastructure projects.
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Cash S000's

96,831
71323
1819
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2.2.5 Obligations

Dwuring the 2018/19 year $0.3 million of existing debt was repaid. At the end of the year, Council's
debt ratio was 12 4% well within the expected target band of 0% - 70% and is also in line with
Council's Borrowing Strategy of no more than 40% of annual rate revenue. Planned borrowings of
35.0 million to partly fund the Mafira CBD streetscape development, Camercn Sporting Complex,
sireet construction schemes and Sale Tennis Club redevelopment were deferred to 201920

Loans and borrowings ratio %

15/16 16417 17/18 1819

Borrowings S000's

15/16 16517 17/1B
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2.2.8 Stability and Efficiency
Council raises a wide range of revenues including rates, user fees, fines, grants and confributions.
Council's rates concentration which compares rate revenue to adjusted underying revenue was

60 .8% for the 2018/19 year. Council has focussed on controlling costs and for the 201819 year, this
resulted in an average residential rate per residential assessment of 31,371.08 an increase of $0.78

per week on the prior year.

Rates concentration ratio %

IIIH

15/16 16/17 17/18 i8/19

Average Residential Rate

$1,371
$1,331
$1.283
. | '

15/16 16/17 1718 1819

2.2.7 Capital Expenditure

Dwring the year, the Council spent $322.5 million on capital works. Council invested $12.9 million on
improving roads, bridges, and footpaths, including $3.6 million to reseal and asphalt rural and urban
roads.

Projects completed during the year include West Sale Aerodrome runway extension, Rosedale civil
redevelopment {completion of the redevelopment of Willow park), the Gippsland Regional Sporis
Complex Stage 24, Glebe Woondella shared path (hoardwalkhridoge and lighting) and final works on
the Boodyam, Mapier and Toms Cap bridges.

A further $3.6 million was spent on our parks, gardens, and streetscapes around the Shire.
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Capital Expenditure S000's

ii

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

2.3 Description of Operations

‘Wellington Shire Council is responsible for delivering more than 100 services, from the maintenance
of public open spaces, environmental health, statutory building services, land use planning,
compliance, animal management, infrastructure planning, road management and maintenance,
huilding and maintenance, community wellbeing, recreation facilities, arts and culture, access and
inclusion, youth engagement, wasie management; to matters conceming business development,
tourism, planning for appropriate development and ensuring accountability for Council's budget.

This broad range of community services and infrastructure for residents supporis the welibeing and
prosperity of our community. Council's vision, strateqgic objectives and strategies to further improve
senvices and facilities are described in our 2017-21 Council Plan and the associated Budget 201819
and are reported upon in this document. Refer to the section on ‘Our Performance’ for maore
information about Council services.

2.3.1 Major Capital Works

West Sale Airport Runway Extension

The $6M runway extension project at West Sale Airport was completed, further strengthening
Wellington's aviation capability. Runway 0927 was lengthened to 1800 metres which included
pavement rehabilitation, drainage improvements and lighting. A total of 56,000m* of high specification
asphalt was used in the final runway surfacing. State Government contributed $5 million for the
project which brings the facility up to the standard required for RAAF Air Academy to use the facilities
as par of the new Pilot Training System.

Gippsiland Regional Sports Complex — Stage 2A

This $3.6 million development was completed at the Gippsland Regional Sporis Complex providing
the community with a national-standard synthetic hockey field and universally accessible pavilion that
is now the home for Maffra, Sale and Wellington Hockey Clubs.

In addition to providing the community access to an elite hockey facility, the synthetic field enables
hroad programming of social activities conducted by the Gippsland Regional Sports Complex
including social hockey, small fielded soccer and modified football. The facility was officially opened
on 30 October 2018 and has already seen significant usage with growth in both traditional and social
formats of hockey.
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Council received $650,000 funding from the Victorian Govemment's Community Sports Infrastructure
Fund, $600,000 from the Australian Government's Building Stronger Regions Fund and $50,000 from
the hockey community.

Baldwin Recreation Reserve — Changeroom Redevelopment

This $600,000 project provided equitable access for all users to change room infrastructure at the
Baldwin Recreation Reserve, the home of the Sale United Foothall Club. The project resulted in
construction of two new changercoms and first aid room and refurbishment of existing changerooms,
umpire changerooms and public amenities.

Council received 3100,000 funding from the Victorian Govemment's Female Friendly Facility Fund as
well as a contribution of 50,000 from the Sale United Football Club.

Maffra Recreation Reserve Drainage
This 468,550 project delivered drainage upgrades to the main oval, new oval fencing and improved
pedestrian accessihility across the Mafira Recreation Reserve.

Council received 3100,000 funding from the Victorian Government's Country Football Netball
Program as well as a contribution of $50,000 from the Maffra Recreation Reserve Committee of
Management.

Yarram Recreation Reserve Lighting Upgrade

This $247 641 project delivered sustainable match standard lighting to the Yarram Recreation
Reserve through the provision of 100 lux LED lighting. An audit of the existing lighting infrastructure
identified that the current provision was well below the Australian Football League guidelines.

Council received 3100000 funding from the Victorian Government's Country Football Netball

Program and $50,000 from the Yarram Recreation Reserve Committee of Management.

Community Managed Places Projects

Council received a total of $1.8 millicn (in addition to $450,000 already received in 2017/18 for
Cowwarr Recreation Reserve) for the delivery of sporting infrastructure upgrades at Gordon
Street Recreation Resenve and Gormandale Recreaftion Reserve.

Gomandale Recreation Reserve: Main oval and nethall court LED hghting upgrades providing 100 lux
competition lighting to bhath facilities.

Gordon Street Recreation Reserve: Cricket net redevelopment, main oval LED Lighting uparades
providing 100 lux competition lighting, netball court redevelopment that included reconstruction of the
existing nethall court and construction of 2 new court with 100 lux LED lighting.

Kilmany Landfill Cell Construction

Construction of a new landfill cell which allows for 100,000 m? of waste was completed at Kilmany
landfill. Project cost was over $2.1 million and aimed at protecting groundwater and stormwater from
leachate out of the landfill itself.

Agua Energy - Cardio Equipment Upgrade
This project was the second phase of a planned upgrade and replacement of old and outdated,
unreliable cardiovascular training equipment. Instailed in the Agua Energy gym, this equipment
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meets the current and future needs of gym users and members from ages 13 to 90. This project was
fully funded by Council rates of $98,000.

Agua Energy and Gippsland Regional Sports Complex - PV Solar Installation and LED lighting
renewal

PY solar panels were installed to reduce reliance on purchased elecfrical power and reduce overall
energy usage at Aqua Energy and Gippsland Regional Sports Complex. Aqua Energy is also
undertaking a rolling program fo upgrade facility lighting and reduce overall energy usage. This
supports the program to reduce energy usage by 5% per year over & years. This project was fully
funded by Council rates of $91,000.

The Wedge Theatre Improvements

Theatre improvements including replacemeant of hand-winches, rostra platfiorms and moving head
lighting fixtures. This project expanded our theatre capabilities to keep up with the touring
professional shows, local schools and amateur companies’ requirements. The project was fully
funded by Council rates $51,800.

Audience and User Enhancements at The Wedge

This project rescived problems with the previous hearing augmentaticn system at the auditorium. The
new system better utilises the capacity of modern hearing aids as well as assisting a wider range of
patron’s heanng requirements. It is able to be upgraded and expanded in the future to other rooms
and areas if reguired. The upgraded audic-visual system allowed the centre to continue to
accommaodate clients with their presentation display requirements. Replacement of the previous event
and venue bookings software better suits the business needs by offering better reports, customer
relationship management systems, a more user-friendly interface, and the ability to offer tailored
packages to better suit the needs of clients. This project was fully funded by Council rates of $38,300.

Rosedale Civic Renewal project including the redevelopment of Willow Park

The §1.56 million redevelopment included new streetscape in Prince Street including new footpath,
kerb, drainage, line-marking and planting. The project also included a shared pathway between the
town and Willow Park which is a well-known and designated RV (Recreational Vehicle) stop-over
point. Works included sealing of Maloney Grove which is the access road into Willow Park; along with
the building of a new toilet block and shelter and associated landscaping and vegetation works at
Willow Park.

Wellington Shire Council funded more than $560,000 and managed the project, with funding of 31
million from the Federal Department of Infrastructure, Regional Development and Cities.

Gippsland Regional Sports Complex Floor upgrades

Synthetic playing surface on the four indoor sports courts was replaced with a sprung timber spornts
floor which will be rated to a minimum of Intemational Basketball Federation (FIBA) Level 2
cerification. Project was completed thanks to $500,000 of funding from the John Leslie Foundation
and $335,000 from Weillington Shire Council.

Stratford Streetscape renewal project

Streetscape works to beautify Stratford main sireet were completed with a $1.1 million project, fully
funded by council revenue. Footpath, kerby and channel were replaced on Tyers Street Stratford
between Raymond and Dixon streets and landscaping works were completed by councils’ Park
Senvices team.

Dundas Street, Sale upgrade project
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Dundas Street South Special Charge Scheme between Cunninghame and Macarthur Streets in Sale
was completed. Road section was fully constructed with underground drainage providing significant
improvement for property owners and residents. This area formerly had unsealed road shoulders and
unformed verges with open drains.

Merry Street, Maffra upgrade project
A section of Merry Street, west of Powerscourt Street in Maffra was upgraded as part of the
Residential Road and Street Construction Program based on Special Charge Schemes.

Glebe/ Woondella Shared Path project

Final stage of this project was completed including the construction of a pedestrian bridge across
Flooding Creek and lighting along the shared path. This multi-stage project connects new housing
estates of the Glebe and Woondella in Sale to the Central Business District via a shared path.

2.3.2 Major Changes

+ Cessation of Victorian Government funding of the Rural Access Program as pan of Mational
Disahbility Insurance Scheme roil out.

Increase in staffing for delivery of funded capital projects and forward capital project planning in
response to high level of external funding availability of large program of capital works projects for
delivery.

Mew and increased requirements for pool water supervision recommended by recent coroner's
inquiry and resufting introduction of new rostering and "Watch Around Water campaign at Agua
Energy and seasonal pools.

Introduction of personal training service at Aqua Energy and accreditation of Aqua Energy as a
registered provider of personal training services under the National Disability Insurance Scheme._

Extension of formal and social sports programming at Gippsland Regional Sports Complex,
including the introduction of programs for young children, in response to compietion of outdoor
synthetic hockey pitch and pavilion and new "sprung’ timber fioor in the stadium as a result of
changing standards for sporting facilities.

Introduction of direct debit payment method for Leisure Services memberships and Leam to
Swim programs in response to customer requests for more affordable methods of payment
resulting in significant increase in Leamn to Swim enrolments.

Cessation of the state libraries’ Swift consortium o be replaced by a new resocurce-sharnng
consortium operating under the auspice of Public Libraries Victoria and subseguent changes to

Wellington Libraries’ processes.

Significant increase in patronage in the first 18 months of operation of the Port of Sale Wellington
Centre and resulting increased staffing for its operation.

Introduction of The Wedae performing arts cenfre ficket sales from Council's Yarmram Service
Centre to improve accessibility of the performing arts in response to community suggestion and
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popularity of theatre productions in more rural areas such as Opera Australia’s performance of
Madame Butterfly at Yarram's Regent Theatre.

Restructure of Council's alternative structure during times of emergencies as a result of debriefing
after deployment of Council's emergency management systems, processes and structure during
the Summer 2019 bushfires at Rosedale, Walhalla and Licola/Dargo.

2.3.3 Major Achievements

The Port of Sale Wellington Centre reached its one-year anniversary on 6 January 2019
recording a total of 203,993 visitors since opening including 41,208 visitors to the Gippsland Art
Gallery.

Transitioning into SES land management model including transfer of State Emergency Services
building leases for Yarram, Maffra, Rosedale and Sale fram Council leases to state govermment
leases.

Secured $5.8 million from state and federal govemment for sporing faciliies’ capital
redevelopment projects — Cameron Sporiing Complex Stadium redevelopment; Stephenson’s
Park Changeroom redevelopment; Stratford Recreation Reserve Changeroom redevelopment:
Pine Lodge Stratford Tennis Court redevelopment; and Briagolong Recreation Reserve Pavilion
redevelopment.

Completion of community consultation process for "A Warmer Pool for Yarram' project resulting in
an agreed project scope and concept and combined Council and community funding attraction
advocacy.

Delivery of comprehensive maintenance audit of all community management facilities providing
data for informed decision-making by committees and Council regarding maintenance, capital
works development and resourcing.

Adoption of the Urban Paths Plan 2018 and Age-Friendly Community Strategy affer extensive
community consultation and research processes.

Capital projects completed - Baldwin Recreation Reserve Female Friendly changerooms with
positive growth in female participation achieved; Gordon Street Recreation Resenve — Cricket
nets and oval lighting; Yarram Recreafion Reserve Oval Lighting; Gormandale Recreation
Reserve Oval and nethall lighting; Maffra Recreation Reserve Drainage; GRSC Stage 24 sub
regional synthetic field.

Seaspray beach matting in piace for the summer beach season for 201920 enabling, for the first
fime, those using mobhility devices to access the water not just the beach.

Wellington Access and Inclusion Advisory Group (WAILAG) moved positively intc a more
independently functioning group in preparation for the withdrawal of Rural Access funding at 31
December 2019,

Highly successful Colours of the World — Colour Run event delivered by Council-supported youth
groups in March 2019 for Harmony Week with more than 300 young people participating.
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Two Q&A sessions delivered by Wellington Shire Youth Council in October 2018 and May 2019
with election candidates prior to the state and federal government elections. From these
sessions young people reported that they are more informed about who to vote for and
candidates report feeling more cognisant of issues that are important to young people.

A ‘Meet the Makers® market was held on 5 December 2018 at the Port of Sale Wellington Centre
with 583 visitors entering the building between 3.00 — 7.00 pm, and a total of 1,167 visitors for the
whaole day (compared to the usual 300-400 visitors), providing a platform for local artisans,
creatives and small businesses to sell their wares and contributing to business development in
Wellington.

The Wedge hosted the bi-annual ‘Esso Night at the Cpera’ on 6 December 2018 with a full house
audience enjoying the show and a post-performance reception. A parinership between Esso,
Opera Australia, Orchestra Victoria and Wellington Shire Council, this free community concert
provided a wonderful opportunity for our community to experience first class cpera locally. Opera
Australia also staged Madame Butterfly at Yarram's Regent Theatre to an audience of over 400
people, further expanding the reach of perdforming arts into the shire’s rural communities.

Hosted by Kilmany Park Mansion, The Wedge presented the Australian Shakespeare Company's
performance of Romeo and Juliet with 390 patrons attending on a windy night on the lawn of the
beautiful, historic mansion.

The first of three Jane Austen-themed events at Wellington Shire Libraries for 2019, "Dining with
Jane', was held in Yarram's Regent Theatre on 17 April 2019 which doubled as the library's
annual participation in the local Tarra Festival.

Following the Victorian Govermment announcement to establish a new 325 million TAFE campus
in Sale, Council has worked closely with TAFE Gippsland to ensure the needs of the community
and indusiry are considered when preparing a new campus. Council has briefed TAFE on how
the new campus can integrate into the hroader Port of Sale precinct. Council has also partnered
with TAFE Gippsland, Gippsland East Local Leaming and Employment Network and Nexus
Mutual to establish a Higher Education Study Hub in Sale to support local university students.

Amendment C103 applies to 55 hectares of rural land immediately adjacent to the West Sale
Airport. The amendment facilitates the future industrial use and development of the land.
Following the completion of reguired statutory processes, the amendment was adopted by
Council on 18 June 2019 as the next stage of activating this important economic precinct.

The North Sale Development Plan (Development Plan) facilitates the coordinated and integrated
urbran growth of 284 hectares of land o the north of Sale over the next 15 — 20 years. While the
Development Flan was previously adopted by Council, the final stage of the project, being the
Infrastructure Contributions Mechanism is currently being finalised to support future
implementation of the Development Plan.

Mew Residential Road and Street Construction Plan was developed to provide an opportunity for
poth Council and residents to upgrade urban streets via a special charge scheme.

2.3.4 Economic Factors
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Ongoing severe drought conditions had a significant impact on local economy causing financial
challenges to Council during the 2018/19 year.

RAAF Base East Sale continued to expand during the year and the influx of personnel and their
families balanced the negative impacts of the drought on the local economy to some degree.
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3.0 Our Councill

3.1 Municipality Profile

Wellington Shire is the third largest municipality in Victoria, covering an area of 10,924 square
Eilometres to the east of the state. Wellington is easily accessible from Melboume by either road or
rail with a convenient travel time of approximately two hours.

Wellington Shire is ideally placed for enjoying all that Gippsland has to offer, whether as a resident,
visitor or tourist. Located at the hean of Gippsland, Wellington Shire extends from the Great Dividing
Range and Victeria's High Country, through rich irfigated flats and some of the most productive
grazing land in Australia to the intemationally significant Gippsland Lakes and Wetlands and the
Minety Mile Beach and Bass Strait.

Wellington Shire provides the finest and hest aspects of regional Victorian living from its kilometre
upon kilometrs of pristine coastline, dramatic vistas of the Victorian High Country, rich irrigated
agrazing and cropping land and intemationally significant rainforest Mational Parks. The variety of
communities and residential options are as diverse as the [andscape.

Wellington Shire residents can choose from a wide range of affordable housing options in any of our
towns ar in the hear of the country with views of the ocean, open plains or mountain ranges.

The most recent Census data showed that the Wellington population grew from 41 440 in 2011 to 42,
B71in 2016.

Council is very active in planning to ensure there is a plentiful supply of new residential and industrial
land to encourage this growth.

Aftractive features of the Wellington region include the excellent public facilities for sports, health and
reqgional shopping centres. The new Port of Sale precinct in Sale combines arts and culture with the
Gippsiand Art Gallery, Sale Library, community spaces and The Wedge performing arts cenire.
Dutstanding sporting and health facilities including Agqua Energy and the Gippsland Regional Sporis
Complex are important, along with plentiful education options including outstanding public and private
schools, TAFE campuses with a wide range of programs.

Thirteen percent of the Wellington population work within the agriculiural sector, with a wide variety of
other local opportunities ranging from manufacturing and construction to retail, mining, public sector
and education, ans and recreation.

There is a wide variety of industry and business confributing to the local economy including; mining,
offshore il and gas extraction, primary production and agriculture, tourism and service indusiries,
retail, healthcare, education and community services, RAAF Base East Sale is 3 major air and ground
training base and home to the famous Rouleties, Central Flying School, the Officers’ Training School
and the schools of Air Warfare and Air Traffic Conirol. The relocation of the Basic Flying Training
component of Defence Project AIR 5428 to RAAF Base East Sale, announced by the Federal
Govermment in 2015, is expected to boost the local economic output by up to 5168 million per year,
over a 25 year period.

The Council-owned West Sale Airport provides a hase for helicopters servicing the Bass Strait oil nigs
and for the servicing of aircraft and training of civilian pilots and aircraft maintenance engineers. It is
also soon to become a leading facility for aviation education with a recent runway extension and
[ighting upgrade providing the required standard for use hy RAAF Air Academy for its new Pilot
Training System, along with the Federation Training for its avionics training.
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With Yarram Aerodrome and aerodromes at Bairnsdale and other locations in East Gippsland, there
are extensive faciliies for defence, general and recreational aviation and considerable capacity for
expansion. Esso Ausfralia's Longford plant, south of Sale, supply gas to Victoria, New South Wales
and Tasmania. A number of local companies provide services to the Bass Strait oil and gas industry,
operated by Exxon Mohil (Esso).

The Macalister Irrigation District, with its centre at Maffra, supports Wellington's strong dairy, beef and
vegetable growing industries comprising award winning businesses providing goods Ausiralia wide.

Timber is another natural resource which contributes to the local economy through direct
employment, contract and transportation senvices. Australian Sustainable Hardwoods (ASH), at
Heyfield, mill timber products from sustainably grown forests and manufacture preducts such as
windows, doors, staircases, flooring and architraves.

Durs is a diverse, vibrant and connected community where delivering liveability, economic prosperity
and sustainability outcomes underpin all that we do.

3.2 Councillors

Cr Alan Hall (Mayor) 0476 000 159
alanh@wellington.vic.gov.au

Coastal Ward
Terms Elected: 2016

Cr Malcolm Hole (Deputy Mayor) 0408 541 746
Nkt Waird malcolmh@wellington.vic.gov.au

Terms Elected: 2000, 2003, 2005, 2008,
2012, 2016

Cr Carolyn Crossley 0409 495 833
Kt Azl carolync@wellington vic.gov.au

Terms Elected: 2012, 2016

Cr Carmel Ripper 0418 875 523
Northerm Ward carmelr@wellington.vic.gov.au

Terms Elected: 2016

Cr Gayle Maher 0476 000 162

Coastal Ward gaylem@wellington.vic.gov.au

Terms Elected: 2016
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Cr Garry Stephens
Coastal Ward
Terms Elected: 2016

Cr lan Bye
Central Ward
Terms Elected: 2016

Cr Darren McCubbin
Central Ward

Terms Elected: 2003, 2005, 2008, 2012,
2016

Cr Scott Rossetti
Central Ward
Terms Elected: 2008, 2012, 2016
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0476 00D 157
gamys@wellington_vic.gov.au

0476 000 146
ianb@wellington_vic.gov.au

0458 D06 486
darrenm@wellington vic.gov_au

0415 366 686
scottr@wellington.vic.gov.au
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4.0 Our People

4.1 Organisational Structure

Council is the governing body that appoints a Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for the day to day management of
operations in accordance with the strategic directions of the Council Plan. Four General Managers and the Chief Executive Officer form the Corporate
Management Team (CMT) and lead the organisation.

Chief Executive
Officer
David Marcom

CORPORATE SERVICES UNIT
General Manager Manager " Manager Manager
Corporate Services > ' Corporate Finance Informatlon Services ~ People and Excellence
Arthur Skipitaris lan Carroll H Phillip Phillipou _J Vacant

BULLT & NATURAL ENVIRDN MENT UNIT

General Manager . Manager Manager . Manager
Built & Natural Environment > Bullt Environment Natural Environment & Parks Assets & Projects
Chris Hastie John Tatterson Tim Rowe ¢ Dean Morahan

DEVELGPMENT UNIT

Business Development Land Use Planning

Development ]
Paul Johnson Ll loshClydesdale

John Websdale

General Manager N . Manager Manager

COMMUNITY & CULTURE UNIT

General Manager Manager Manager _ Manager
Community & Culture > Arts & Culture ‘Community Wellbeing Lelsure Services
‘Sharon Haulihan _..‘ Stephen Dempsay Karen Mclennan - Mic Hall
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4.2 Senior Officers

As at 30 June 2019, senior officers as designated by the Local Government Act, 1989 were David
Morcom, Arthur Skipitanis, Chris Hastie, Sharon Houlihan, John Websdale, Phillip Phillipou and lan
Carroll.

4.3 Council Staff

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff by organisartional
swructure, employment type and gender

CEO Unit  Full Time _
Built & Natural Envirenment Full Time
Part Time
Casual
Community & Culture Full Time
Part Time
Casual
Corporate Services Full Time
Part Time
Development Full Tirme
Part Time
Casual

m Full tinve-F
mFull time-M
= Part ime-F
B Part ime-M
u Casual-F

B Casual-M

€
5
in
5
2

Built & MNatural CED Office Community & Corporate
Environment Culture: Services

Divisi
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A summary of the number of full ume eguivalent (FTE) staff caregorised by employment
classification and gender

S

Band 1
Band 2
Band 3
Band 4
Band &
Band &
Band 7
Band &
EBand not applicable

ol

Mo of Staff (FTE)
T A« I~ TR -
8 & & 8 & O 8

e
=]

BEFemale FTE
I BMale FTE
I I I I I I I B Grand Total
ui i _m i
'i:r

& & & & & & gyf

&

@

Employee Classification
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A summary of age spread of staff by headcount

258  25<>35  35<45

Built & Natural Environment B 22 21
CEOQ 2 2 2
Community & Culture B3 43 31
Corporate Services 1 7 12
Develm}ment_ 11 12 23

=

=]
=]

B Built & Matural Environment
B CEQ Office
B Community & Culture

: lL 1! IJW' IIJ =

Under 26 years 25 <> 35 AE =45 45<=58 Owver 55 years
WEArs years years
Age

Mo of Staff (headcount)
H 8 & B

o

Years of service summary by headcount

5& between between between between between Greater
under 5810 10815 15820 20825 25830 than30

95 54 36 14 T & 13

24 15 16 10 3 1 2
33 19 10 1 - 2
71 34 11 4 1F]
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B E B

8

Mo of Staff (headcount)

B Full time

B Part time

W Casual
h h B w

Under § G > 10 10« =15 15 ) 20<> 25
years years years YEars yEars

Years of Service

Our workforce by generation

Built & Natural Environment
CEQ

Community & Culture
Corporate Services
Development

— Towr
: _|‘|

Mo of Staff (headcount)
g &8 & 8 & 3

e
[=]

B 5um of Generation £
B 5um of Generation Y
B Sum of Generation X
W Sum of Baby Boomers
B Sum of Veterans
I

Built & Matural Chief Executive Community & Corporate Development
Emvironment Officer Culture Serices
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4.4 Equal Employment Opportunity

Wellington Shire Council is committed to supporting a workplace culture that treats all people with
dignity and respect. Employees, contractors and volunteers of Council have the right to conduct their
work in a safe environment unimpeded by bullying, harassment and/or discrimination. Council has an
Equal Employment Opportunity program which is designed to eliminate discrimination, promofte equal
opportunity and provide a means for consultation in regard to employment matters which have the
ahility to adversely affect staff or the organisation,

The objective of Wellington Shire Council's Equal Employment Opporunity program is to ensure there
is no discrimination relating to the characteristics listed under the Egual Opporfunity Act 2010 such as
race, colour, sex, marifal status, parenthood, physical or mental impairment, age, religious or political
affiliation, gender identity and sexual orientation. Further objectives include ensuring the workplace is
free from bullying and harassment. The provision of Equal Cpportunity Awareness sessions for all
new employees and managers ensures they are aware of their ohligations and responsibiliies in
maintaining a workplace that is free of bullying and harassment andfor discrimination.

Wellington Shire Council has appointed a new Equal Employment Opportunity Committee who will
senve for the next three years. The purpose of the committee is to provide a forum for the promotion
and discussion of equal employment opportunities, access and inclusion, anti-hullying/harassment,
discrimination and human rights matters affecting cument and potential employees of Wellington Shire
Council. The elected representatives represent a diverse group of individuals from across the
organisation and act as contacts for staff wanting to find information about reporting a grigvance, or
for advice on a workplace issue that breaches Equal Employment Opportunity.

4.5 Our Volunteers

Yolunteers are vital to our organisation as they deliver great senvices to our community.

While it is complex to assign a monetary value for the social value of volunteering, it is important to
estimate the economic value to emphasise that voluntary work makes a significant contribution to the
delivery of council services.

We recognise the specialist nature of some of the roles, gqualifications and vast industry experience
these volunteers bring to their voluntary roles.

As shown in the following table, the economic value of volunteer services provided through council
senvices equated to close to 32 million for 2018/19. This is excluding the volunteering work offered by
numerous service and volunteer organisations during various events, which was uncounted.

Yolunteering in Wellingfon website (www volunteeringinwellington.com.au) provides

information for people locking for volunteer opportunities in Wellington and for community groups and
service providers who are looking for volunteers.
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Volunteer
service

Main duties

Volunteer
number

Volunteer
hours

Estimated
economic
value of
volunteering
per year*

Visitor
Information
Centre (Sale,
Maffra)

FProvide customer service, fourism advice,
directions, local business information and
administration support

=127 hours
per week

=5249 169

Art Gallery
Guides

Celiver education programs and workshops
for kindergarten, primary and secondary
schools and community groups

=19 hours
per week

~§37,277

Friends of
Sale Botanic
Gardens

« Afttend monthly gardening day in Sale
Botanic Gardens

« Parks Week 2019 — Sale Botanical
Gardens, Teddy Bears Picnic

=25 hours
per month

20 hours per
year

=512,074

Wellington
Shire Council
Community
Committees

Manage, operate and maintain a facility for
the community in an efficient, effective and
practical manner. This includes facilities
such as halls, reserves and pavilions.

=3.200 hours
per month

=§1,448 832

Wellington
Bike
Education
Project

Provide training and assistance to schools
to run the Bike Education project which is
funded by TAC and VicRoads.

105 hours
per year

Community
Planning
Groups

Coordinate development of Community
Plan

Support Community in implementing Plan
Liaise with Shire and other agencies
regarding Plan projects

Plan and run events, markets and
projects as part of the plan

=2 480 hours
per year

=$93,570

Access and
Inclusion
Advisory
Group

Assist communication on access and
inclusion matters, to and from their local
communities, through their contacts and
networks.

ldentify and address access issues via
the Access and Inclusion Policy and
Action Planning process.

Provide access and inclusion experise
and experience during the planning
stages of Council projects and policy
development.

Fromote Access and Inclusion throughout
Wellington Shire. Act as a reference

=360 hours
per year

=$13,563
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group for the Rural Access position
located at Wellington Shire Council.

Wellington
Shire Youth
groups:
=  Youth
Council

* Propellor
FReeZA
group

Provide opportunities for young people fo
have their voices heard, to act on issues
and advocate for different youth needs.
Tao he a youth voice for the Council.

To put on events and activities that are
inclusive of all young people and to
engage them in community life.

Provide opportunities for young people to
perform and experience music events.

6 (+up to 10

casual
volunteers
for events)

=1,872 hours
per year

=730 hours
per year

=598,173

L2P Program
{Council run
program in
partnership
with Mission
Australia)

Support and mentor young people in
Wellington Shire to get their probationany
license

30

936 hours
per year

Total

>$1,991,955"

*Using estimated projected gross opportunity cost wage rate for volunteer in 2018 - $37.73 per hour
(Source: Key Facts and Statistics about Volunteering in Victoria, January 2018 Repaort)

4.6 Other Staff Matters

4.6.1 Professional Development

Wellington Shire Council recognises the benefit of supporting staff to increase their professional
development. Council acknowledges the value gained from staff advancing their qualifications and
acquiring enhanced skills and knowledge that can be applied within the workplace. We take an
integrated approach to leaming, focusing on a mix of on-the-job experience, online and instructor lead
training and formal education.

The table below shows the total number of employees who undertook online training during the

2018/M19 year.

Course

Target
Audience

MNumber of
staff

Child Safe Standards

All staff

306

Community Engagement Awareness

All staff

223

Confractor Safety

As needed

36

Fraud and Cormruption Awareness Al staff
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Human Resources Mew starters

Human Rights All staff

Interview Panellist Training As needed

Occupational Health and Safety Awareness All staff

Prevention of Workplace Bullying and Harassment All staff

Prevention of Workplace Bullying and Harassment - for Managers Supervisors
and Supervisors only

Procurement Awareness All staff

Procurement Delegations Only staff with
financial

delegations

Record Keeping and Privacy All staff 2490

The table below highlights a sample of the instructor led training undertaken as of 30 June 201%9:

Course Target Audience

Prevention of drug and alcohol use in the workplace All staff

Writing far the web Human resources staff
Prepare work zone frafiic management plan Outdoor staff as needed
Fire warden training Emergency wardens
Improving the customer experience All staff

Speechcrafi - Toastmasters All staff

Mew Leader Mentoring Mew supenvisors
Looking after your mates All staff

Manual handling All staff in manual handiing roles
Dispute settlement All staff

First Aid & CPR Designated first aiders
Elevated work platform Outdoor staff as needed

4.6.2 Staff Recognition

Wellington Staff Achievement Awards Program seeks to recognise individuals who go 'above and
heyvond’ in their roles, or in their senvice to the community. The Wellington Staff Achievement Awards
include recognition at:

+  The business unit level

+ Anannual awards preseniation
The nomination categories of:

+« |Leadership

+ Customer Focus

+ Relationships

« |nnovation
have been developed in line with Council values and staff are encouraged to nominate their peers for
going "above and beyond' in these categaries.
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Council also recognises employees for their ongoing contribution, commitment and service to the
arganisation by acknowledging their key service milestones. The following 81 staff members
celebrated and received Service Awards for 20181% year.

Years of
service

Staff members

=40 years

Jennifer Young

=35 years

Ricky Renooy

=30 years

Peter Elston

Sheryl Saynor

=20 years

Phillip Brooks
Bruce Jackson

Wictor Cassidy
Chris Hastie

=20 years

Michele Cowie

Lisa Lyndon

=15 years

Damian Allman
Lynette Holmes
Philip Medhurst
Margaret Goddard
Lisa Davey
Janelle McLaren

Robyn Dewar
Mark Bavly
Kerr Brewer
Joshua Last
Sheryl McHugh
Karen Edwards

=10 years

Ray Giddings
Kristy Glover
Tobias Leeds
Ross McWhirter
Melissa Glover
Rozanne Leah
Sharon Macgowan
Simon Gregg
Catherine Fogarty
Pamela Lyndon
Diane Devitt

Casey Bishop
Mathew Goodwin
Wayne Craft
Mark Benfield
Kerryn Bassett
Meil Morrison
Brian Gibson
Glenda Amos
Elizabeth McGuinness
Debra Morgan
Robyn Kerton

Liam Cole

Asela Kaluarachchi
Jeremy Beatson
Amie Stone
Lindsay Roberts
Melinda Hobbs
Sarah Atkinson
Melissa Wingate
Wiatt Kilgower
Sophie Jackson
Cassandra Dyce
James Christison
Max Horvath
Michael Kewish
Cathenne Vassiliou
Amelia Taylor
Sharon Houlihan
Chantal Henderson
Damian Norkus

Lucas De Kunder
Phillip Phillipou
Sharon Smith
Sasha Standen
Leanne Fountain
Barbara Yan Ette
Kirlyy-Anne Boyle
Rheanna Hammond
Ashlyn Weston
Jack Goodwin
Christopher Pennycuick
Dyanne Cox

Debra Taylor

Scoft O'Shanassy
John Websdale
Benjamin Proctor
Jessica Drane
Michael Andrews
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4.6.3 Prevention of Violence Against Women

The Prevention of Violence against Women (PVAW) is supported by Wellington Shire Council through
the promaotion of gender equity and other educational activities as a part of the PVAW strategy and
the Paving the Way Project, both Victorian Government initiatives. These two programs are delivered
via a parinership agreement with the Gippsland Women's Health in order to create organisational and
community awareness around the preventicn of men’s vioclence against women.

Family violence includes physical, sexual, financial, verbal or emotional abuse by a family member or
partner and Wellington Shire Council has in place a Family Viclence Leave Policy to support staff who
are experiencing family violence through the provision of unlimited Family Yiolence Leave to attend
medical appointments, legal proceedings andfor other preventative activities.

Wellington Shire Council is committed to primary prevention initiatives through its annual participation
in White Ribbon Day, gender equity awareness and Mentors in Violence Prevention (MVP) accredited
training. This year's moming tea, ‘Cheese for Change’ raised a sum of 5108.55 on behalf of White
Ribhon Ausftralia and these funds go to programs promoting respectful relationships and gender
equality within the workplace and demonsirate a culture of zero tolerance of violence against women.

4.6.4 Health and Safety

Wellington Shire Council is committed to providing and maintaining a safe work environment, and
protecting the health, safety and welfare of staff, Iabour hire personnel, volunteers, contractors,
customers and visitors.

Wellington Shire Council's Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) committee meets each guarter to
maintain its proactive focus on reviewing safety issues including incidents and prevention strategies
and to assist with the development of remedial actions to address any identified gaps or opportunities
for improvement.

The OHS Strategic Action Plan, which is reviewed annually, was used to monitor progress and
identify new or increasing safety issues during the year. Sixty out of 76 strategic tasks in this plan
scheduled for 2018/1% were successfully completed.

In 201819, several projects and improvements were undertaken to improve Council's OHS functions.
These include:
+ Developed new OH&S specific Corporate Performance Indicators for Supenvisory Roles.
+ [ntegrated Gippsland Regional Livestock Exchange safety systems to align with Council's
OH&S vision and current OHES Management System.
Reviewed and implemented new volunteer OH&S inductions.
Implemented revised staff health monitoring program.
Developed short OH&S awareness courses for supenvisory roles.
Implemented anline reaccurring review schedules.
Reviewed OH&S Commitiee Terms of Reference to align with new technology advances.
Investigate cost effectiveness of in field safety programs.
Complated internal occupational noise sampling.

Below is a small snapshot of some data being closely monitored to proactively identify potential risks
and hazards,
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Measure 2015116 2016117 2017118 2018/19

WorkCover claims 4 h 10 T

Days lost to WorkCover 3
injury
Incidents reported 139

Mear misses reported 17

Incidents resulfing in injury 33

Worksafe notifiable 2
incidents

4.6.5 Employee Health and Wellbeing

Cwr health and wellbeing programs, initiatives and support services are designed to:
* |mprove work performance and productivity
+ Reduce costs associated with absenteeism, presentesism, disability and workers' compensation
« |mprove the workplace culture of the organisation and retain existing employess
+« Improve our branding and image.

Council continued to deliver the following iniiatives during 2019720 to support these objectives.
Promoting physical health and fitness:

+« Employees at Council are provided a 10% discount on membership to our leisure facility Agqua
Energy. Aqua Energy provides fitness classes, a fully equipped gymnasium and swimming pool.

+ Ride to Work Day which encourages staff to ride their push-bike to work instead of driving.

Promoting mental health and wellbeing:

« Our Employee Assistance Program provides free access o Converge Intermnational (an external
service) for our employees and their families for confidential counselling and support for work
and personal related issues.

R U OK Day: Council acknowledges RUOK Day annually by providing organisational awarensess
into suicide prevention by reducing the stigma surmounding mental health issues.

‘World Mental Health Day: Council promotes World Mental Health day each year to shed a more
positive light on mental health issues and initiate an open conversation within the organisation.

Promaoting employee social inclusion:
« Social Club: Provides social connection for staff by providing social events such as communal
lunches, weekend outings, movie nights and health initiatives such as yoga, walking and soccer
nights.

4.6.6 Child Safe Standards

As an organisation providing child related services, Wellington Shire Council is committed to creating
a culture of child safety and recognises that protecting children and preventing and responding to
child abuse is an organisation wide responsibility.

Council is also committed to achieving compliance with the Child Safe Standards, the Reportable
Conduct Scheme, recent criminal law reform and other practices to monitor and report child abuse
related concerns.
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In December 2018, the Child Safe Standards Policy was reviewed and approved by the CEQ which
applies to all employees, contractors and volunieers. This policy also meets Council's obligations
under the Child Wellbeing and Safefy Amendment (Child Safe Standards) Act 20135,

A total of 306 employees undertook online training on Child Safe Standards during 201819 year. All
employees, contractors, and volunteers who have direct contact with children are required to have a
current Warking with Children Check.

4.6.7 Recruitment Trends

As an organisation, it is important to track recruitment statistics to identify market shorifalls and
improvements. Wellington Shire Council is a remote rural council, and as such, faces a variety of
recruitment constraints including difficulty attracting talent to the area, keeping remuneration
competitive and offering competitive employee conditions. Within the next year, Council will be
focused on aftracting talent through improved media presence and diversifying our applicants to
include more culturally diverse applicants and applicants of different ability levels.

* Total number of external recruitment campaigns for the year: 53

+  Number of internal recruitment campaigns for the year: 12

+« Total number of applications received for extemnal recruitment campaigns: 978

+ Employee tumover rate for permanent staff. 11.9%

Report of Operations Page 49 of 114

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019




5.0 Our Performance

5.1 Measuring our Performance
5.1.1 Local Government Performance Reporting Framework

This annual report is prepared in accordance with the Local Government Amendment (Performance
Reporting and Accountability) Act 2014 and Local Government {Planning and Reporting) Regulations
2014,

These form the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework, which provides the foundation
for standardising and strengthening performance measuring and reporiing across the local
government sector. As a tool, the framework enables local communities to compare how their council
has performed during the year against others.

Qwr Repart of Operafions and audited Performance Stafement in section two of this report provide
comparative performance data for 2018/M19 and data trends for the [ast three years.

Ratepayers, residents and other stakeholders can compare our performance results against other
large rural Victorian councils via the My Council website (www Knowyourcouncil. vic.gov_au).

5.1.2 Community Satisfaction Survey

The annual Local Government Community Satisfacfion Survey provides an additional means fo
compare with other similar councils as well as tracking our resulis over recent years.

Owr 2019 survey resulis indicated that Wellington Shire Council is performing better than other large
rural Councils. Council scored a rating of 63 out of 100 for overall council performance compared to
56 for other large rural councils and 60 state-wide._

The three areas that survey participants highlighted that Council performs particularly well in are, arts
centres and lihraries, the appearance of our public areas and emergency and disaster management.

Council also scored significantly higher results compared to other large rural councils in the areas of
consultation and engagement, lobiying and local streets & footpaths.

The survey results also suggested that Council should make improvements to sealed and unsealed
road maintenance and community consuftation. Council will underake further investigation of those
areas idenfified for improvement.

The Local Government Satisfaction Survey is independent of Council. The research is conducted
annually by JWS Research on behalf of the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning.

A summary of core Community Satisfaction Survey Results is included helow with the detailed report
available on Council's website.
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Summary of core measures

Wellington | Wellington State-wide

Performance Measures 2019 2018 2019

Overall Performance : 60

Community Consultation
(Community consultation and
engagement)

Advocacy
{Lobbying on behalf of the community)

Making Community Decisions
(Declsions made in the interest of the
community)

Sealed Local Roads
(Condition of sealed local roads)

Customer Service

Overall Council Direction

5.1.3 Reporting against the Council Plan 2017-21 and Annual Budger 2071819

The following diagram shows the relationships between the Annual Report and the key planning
documents in local govemment. It also shows community and stakeholder engagement as the
foundation to our planning and reporting process.
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Council undertook an extensive community consultation program to review the "Wellington 2030-
Community visicn for the future’ document during 2016. The revised Wellington 2030 was used to
develop and guide the key themes and strategic objectives of the new 2017-21 four year Strategic
Plan, our Council Plan.

We continued to work throughout 2018/19 towards better integration of the Council Plan and other
strategic documents with key operational documents such as annual business plans and individual
work/performance plans. Qur aim was to create a strong focus across the organisation on achieving
the plan's strategic ohjectives while continuing to meet our operaticnal and sernvice delivery
requirements.

We continuously kept the community informed about our progress and performance through our
website, social media, quarterly community newsletter Wellington Matters, local newspapers and
actively engaged members in our planning and decision-making processes via surveys, workshops,
focus groups, forums, committees and meetings.

Section 5.3 details how we performed during the year fowards realising the various strategies
identified in 2017-21 Council Plan, major initiatives and initiatives as idenfified in the 201819 Annual
Budget and achieving the performance measures and targets related to each.

5.2 Council Plan
The Wellington Shire Council Plan 2017-21 includes six themes, each comprised of strateqic

objectives and strategies for achieving these, strategic indicators for monitoring achievement as well
as Council's four-year strateqgic resource plan as included in the 201819 budget.
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The following includes the six themes and corresponding strategic objectives as detailed in the
Wellington Shire Council Plan 2017-21.

iﬁﬂaﬁﬁw 2.1 Council services and infrastructure are responsive to identified
ervitannant it i susianabie current and future community needs within budgeted parameters.

1 i = " [2.2 Council assets are responsibly, socially, economically and
appropndle, HECESEIE ol |sustainably managed.

responsive to the community. i e
Transport connects peagie o 2.3 Welihgtnn Shire is well planned, considering long term growth
[and sustainability.

communities and places. Events |, ' ur o 4 improvement to Wellington Shire's connectivity with

and services support our strong ] — ;
unities. [further developed, accessible transport networks.
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5.3 Performance

Council's perfformance for the 2018/19 year is reported against each theme and strategic objective to
demonstrate how Council is performing in achieving the 2017-21 Council Plan. Performance is
measured as follows:

Results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators in the Council Plan

Progress in relation to the major initiatives identified in the budget

Services funded in the budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided
those services

Results against the prescribed semnvice performance indicators and measures.

The following statement reviews the performance of council against the Council Plan including results
achieved in reiation to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.

Satisfaction with enforcement of Local
Laws

Community satisfaction with Influence
Emergency and Disaster
Management
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Percentage of annual Municipal Focused on action
Heaith and Wellbeing Action Plan planning and

items achieved negotiation within the
Healthy Wellington
Partnership on reparting
of the Healthy
Wellington Action Plan.

Percentage of annual Action Plan Influence 80%
items achieved for the Wellington
Youth Strategy.

Monitor utilisation and diversity of Maonitor Currently establishing a
usage of Council's community numbers baseline for

facilities participation and usage
of community facilities.
Total value of Community Assistance Monitor Assistance Grants
Grants distributed annually annual total $242.290

Cluick Response Grants
$102 867

Community Newsletter
Grants
56,000
Definitions: Control: Council actions directly controf the result Infiuence: Council can influence the result, but
other external factors may also have an impact. Monitor: Council has no influence on this result but monitors it
to assist future planning

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the
2018/19 budget for the year.

Finalise detailed project brief for  Investigation of needs and redevelopment options for  Progressin
refurbishment of aguatic Council's Aqua Energy aquatic complex has been (90%)
faciiities at Aqua Energy. undertaken and concept plans produced and costed

for a series of proposed future projects. The aims of

the suite of redevelopment projects are to: address

the need for improved access and inclusion; address

structural integrity and increase design life of the

facility; and modemisation of the facility to meet

cument community expectations.

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2018/19 budget
and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.,
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Community Community Wellbeing Unit provides opporiunities for communities
Wellbeing to work in partnerships with local govemment to achieve identified
priarities. The unit works to ensure all members of the community
have equal opportunity to participate in community activities. Special
focus is given to those who have traditionally remained marginalised
such as the young, elderly, disabled and transport disadvantaged.
+ Social Policy and Planning
= Access and Inclusion
+» Youth Liaison

« Community Engagement

Initiatives

*  Report Council achievements in the delivery of the
RuratAccess Work Plan and Qutcomes for Wellington Shire
Council. {Compieted)

Implement two recommendations from the Age Friendiy
Position Statement 2018. {Progressing 10%)

Leisure Services  The Leisure Services Unit provides services and functions directed
at fostering a healthier and more active community through the
facilitation and provision of a range of recreation, fitness and
community activities and programs at Council's recreation facilities.
This Unit ensures Councll owned recreation facilities are managed
sustainably, are fully utilised and accessible to peopie of all abilities.

Initiatives
= Continue fo implement recommendations and actions fo
Support the S-year work pian to reduce energy consumption
by 3% per year at Aqua Energy and Gippsfand Regional
Sports Complex (Progressing §0%)
Undertake the implementation of a Workforce Management
System across all Leisure Services managed facilities.
{(Progressing 535%)
Municipal The Municipal Services Unit works with people to ensure the life,
Senvices health and safety of the community is maintained through educating
and enforcing the Environmental Health {including food safety
support programs), Buillding and Local Laws regulations and animal
management senvices.
Emergency The Emergency Management team coordinates Council’s
Management emerngency management responsibilities ensuring the crganisation
has the skills and capacity to respond appropriately to emergencies
and facilitates a coordinated shire approach through the Municipal
Emergency Management Planning Commitize.
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The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and
measures including explanation of material variations.

Aqguatic Facilities

Service standard
Heaith inspections of
aguatic facilities
[Mumber of authorised
officer inspections of
council aguatic facilities f
Number of council
aquatic facilities]

Reportable safety
incidents at aquatic
facilities

[Mumber of WorkSafe
reportable agquatic facility
safety incidents]

Wellington Shire Council operates one
indoor aquatic, all year facility in Sale
and five outdoor seasonal aguatic
facilities {Heyfield, Mafira, Rosedale,
Stratford and Yamam). All six facilities
are inspected at least once per year.

The safety and quality of all six
aquatic faciliies, one indoor all year
and five outdoor seasonal, has been
maintained throughout the year with
no Worksafe reporiable safety
incidents occurring during this period.

Service cost

Cost of indoor aguatic
facilities

[Direct cost of indoor
aquatic facilities less
income received /
Mumber of visits to indoor
anquatic facilities]

Dwiring 201819, Wellington Shire
Council's only indoor aquatic, all-year
facility in Sale (Aqua Energy)
operated at a cost to Council of
$1,021,406 and recorded 228,689
visitors. This resulted in an average
cost per visitation of 34 47 The slight
increase in subsidy per visitis
aftributable to additional maintenance
waorks carried out at Aqua Energy.

Cost of outdoor aquatic
facilities

[Oirect cost of outdoor
aquatic facilities less
income received /
Number of visits to
outdoor aguatic facilities)

$21.41

3754

2141

An increase in the number of
operating days with temperatures over
25 degrees compared to previous
year, and the subsequent requirement
for additional pool lifeguard coverage,
contributed to the increase in the cost

of outdoor pools operations in
Wellington Shire in season Z018/19.

Utifisation
Litilisation of aguatic
facilities

[Mumber of visits to
aquatic facilties /
Municipal population]

The combined number of visits
recorded at Council's indoor and
outdoor aquatic facilities during
2018M19 was 251,892, This equates to
an average of over 5.7 aquatic facility
visits, per Wellington Shire resident,
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for the year. Improvements in
promotion and adverising including a
dedicated Agua Energy website,
improved Facebook profile have
contributed to the steady increase in
utilisation during last four years.

Food Safety

Timeliness
Time taken to action food
complaints

[Number of days between
receipt and first response
action for all food
complaints / Number of
food complaints]

Council only received =ight food
complaints in 2018. Even though
Council endeavours to action all food
complaints within cne day, there were
twio instances where this service level
was breached resulting in &
significantly skewed result for the
Year.

Service standard B4 5%
Food safely assessmenis
[Mumber of registered
class 1 food premises
and class 2 food
premises that receive an
annual food safety
assessment in
accordance with the Food
Act, 1984 f Number of
reqistered class 1 food
premises and class 2
food premises that
require an annual food
safety assessment in
accordance with the Food
Act 1984 x100

T0:1%

Council recognises the importance of
food safety and aims o provide an
annual assessment of every
registerad food premises at least once
during a year. During 2018 calendar
year, Environmental Heaith team
completed T0% of assessments of
registered food premises. Staff
attention was focused on high risk,
high volume premises and businesses
that have performed poorly in the
past.

Whilst figures are lower than the
previous year, council will endeavour
to improve its assessment processes
using new and improved technology.

Service cost 3402
Cost of food safety

service

[Direct cost of the food

safety service f Number

of food premises

registerad or notified in

accordance with the Food

Act, 1984]

Direct cost of Council's food safety
program per all registerad and
notifiable food premises is $352. Cost
decrease is mainly due to improved
reporting of Temporary and Maobile
premises accounts and conseguent
increase in number of food premises.

Health and safery H7%
Critical and major non-

compliance oufcome

During 2018 calendar year, Council
recorded a total of thirty four critical
and major non-compliance
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notifications

[Mumber of critical non-
compliance outcome
notifications and major
non-compliance
notifications about a food
premises followed up /
Number of critical non-
compliance outcome
notifications and major
non-compliance
notifications about food
premises] x100

notifications for food premises and
followed up thirty two of these which is
a significant improvement from last
year.

Animal Management

Timeliness

Time taken to action
ammal requests

[Mumber of days between
receipt and first response
action for all animal
management requests /
MNumber of animal
management requests]

Local Laws officers responded to
1152 domestic animal management
requests during the reporting period,
with an average initial response time
of 1.2 days. Animal management
requests range from lost, wandering
or nuisance pets to barking dogs,
animal welfare concems, dog attacks,
reports of dangerous or menacing
dogs and reporis of illegal pet
hreeding activities.

Service standard
Animals reciaimed
[Mumber of animals
reclaimed f Number of
animals collected]

The reclaim rate for domestic animals
collected by Council is cumently 68%,
however the collectionremoval of
feral cats from the environment is also
included in this data and as such has
reduced the reclaim rate from 74%. 67
feral cats were removed from the
natural environment during the
reporting period.

nclaimed animals are placed into the
care of Victorian Animal Aid Trust
and, if suitable, rehomed through their
pet adopiion program.

Service cost

Cost of animal
management sernvice
[Direct cost of the animal
management senvice [
Mumber of registered
animals]

5009

$57.65

596.26

26583

Animal management costs have
increased over the reporting period to
$65.83 per animal. The increase can
he attributed to increased compliance
and enforcement activities, particulariy
in the area of domestic animal
husinesses due to recent legislative
changes.
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Animal registration fees are adjusted
to reflect cost recovery. By doing so,
the general ratepayers who may not
own pets are protected from the
financial impact of the increased
activities.

Health and safety Wellington Shire Council undertook 5

Animal management direct animal management

prosecutions prosecutions during 2018/M1%. Of note

[Mumber of successful was one illegal dog breeding

animal management prosecution involving 155 charges

prosecutions] against the Prevention of Cruelfy fo
Animals Act and Domestic Animals
Act. The other matiers related to
serious dog attacks, mainly dog vs
dog or dog vs livestock.

5.3.2 Theme 2 - Services & Infrastructure

The following statement reviews the perfformance of council against the Council Plan including results
achieved in relafion to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.

Council Target 201819 Result
Responsibility
Level

Strategic Indicator in 2017-21
Council Plan

Community satisfaction with Control
coendition of local streets and

Footpaths.

Community satisfaction with

planning permits

Total annual value of municipal Influence Maonitor annual Wellington
development total $122,396,230

Victorian rural

average

$4 971,100
Percentage of sealed local roads Monitor percentage 2017 Inspection -
that are below the renewal 09 68%
intervention level set by Council 2019 Inspection —
and not reguiring renewal 99 39%

Definitions: Confrol: Council actions directly control the result. Influence: Council can influence the result, but
other external factors may alzo have an impact. Monitor: Council has no influence on this result but monitors it
to assist future planning
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The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the
2018M%9 budget for the year.

Major Initiatives Progress Status

Complete Gippsland Regional  Synthelic playing surface on the four indoor Completed
Sports Complex Timber Floor sports courts was replaced with a sprung timber
Project. sports floor with positive feedback from

stakeholders.
Complete 1st year scheduled The streetscape works did not progress as Progressing
design and civil works for expected due to the confractor overcommitting on (15%)
Maffra Streetscape upgrade. various projects including the Marley Street

project, in Sale. The site has been established

and drainage works will commence in July

foliowed by kerb and channel and footpath

repiacement in the south service road.

Designs are being completed to aliow the north
senvice road works to be tendered following
Gippsland Water replacing the water main along
the full service road length.
Finalise design stage and The West Sale Runway extension was openad to  Completed
begin civil works for the West air traffic prior to Easter and the pavement
Sale Airport Runway grooving occurred in May completing the project.
Extension Project.
Complete a master plan for Community consultation and a needs and Progressing
The Wedge as part of the demand assessment was completed to (80%)
broader Port of Sale cultural investigate befter integration of The Wedge
precinct performing aris centre into the new Port of Sale
precinct addressing broader Gippsiand
investment in performing arts facilities and
identifying potential future redevelopment options
for The Wedge.
Undertake a twelve-month An operational review covering the first 12 Completed
review of the Wellington Centre  manths of operation of the new Port of Sale
operations (including structure,  Wellington Centre was completed in June. The
hours, eic.) with findings to report provides comparisons with senvice
Council prior to 30/6/2019. outcomes delivered during the prier 2017
calendar year and covers financial, procedural,
communication, staffing and structures,
programming, visitation, hours of operation,
access and other factors that affect service
delivery and support continuation as a highly
functioning community facility.
Update flood overlay controls Following preparation of required background
and policy in the Planning work and consultation with the West Gippsland
Scheme to minimise future risk  Catchment Management Authority, Amendment
to the community. C99 was presented to Council for consideration
at the 18 June 2019 Council meeting. At this
meeting, Council resalved to lay the item on the
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table. Further background work will be advanced
_prior to the matter being reconsidered by Council.

Secure funding for the upgrade  Significant funding totalling $4,000,000 from the Completed
of Cameron Sporting Complex  Victorian Government was secured fowards a
Maffra to ensure the facility major redevelopment of the Cameron Sporting
meets growing demand. Complex in Maffra. Together with the community

user groups' combined contribution and Council

funding, the total project budget of 58,450,000

was fully funded during 201819 and design

works were completed with construction works to

commence in the second half of 2019,
Owversee upgrade of the Sale Detailed design for the Sale Memorial Hall Progressing
Memaorial Hall. Refurbishment Project was completed early in (60%)

20159 and construction works will progress in the

first half of the new financial year.
Owversee upgrade of the Sale The Sale Tennis Club Redevelopment Project Progressing
Tennis Club redevelopment. design was completed, and construction works (70%)

commenced late in 2018. The pavilion was

completed in June 2019. Stage 1 of court

construction works is well underway,

(redevelopment of three existing courts and

construction of two new courts). Stage 2 of the

court construction works will commence in the

second half of 2019 (redevelopment of seven

existing courts).

The following statement provides information in relaticn to the services funded in the 2018/19 budget
and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Met Cost
Actual
Business area Description of services provided Budget
Variance
$000
Assets and The Assets and Projects Business Unit manages a diverse range of 3,185
Projects senvices for Council including the implementation and management of 3418
capital projects across the organisation in the order of $28 million to 223
546 million per annum: planning for new infrastructure development
opportunities and providing asset management and information
systems and support.

Initiatives
= Prepare Special Charge Schemes for Council adoption and
progress as required. (Ongoing)
=  Provide engineering input for the development of Strategic
Land Use Plans in a fimely manner. {Ongoing)

Built The Built Environment Unit manages the maintenance, renewal and
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Environment improvement of Council’s road and boating infrastructure, in addition
to various civic facilities and buildings, including roadways, paths,
drainage, boat ramps and jetties etc. This includes managing
Council's road maintenance teams and ensures that maintenance of
Council's road and other infrastructure is performed in a coordinated
way to maximise benefits to the community and other users.

Initiatives

» Review the Residential Road and Street Construction Plan,
including opportunity for community engagement, and present
to Council for consideration. {Complieted)
Undertake holistic review of town centre and tourism feature
signage for major townships and develop action plan.
(Frogressing 80%)
Develop an implementation pian for the fown enfry
improvement program and commence the development of
inittal priorities for Loch Sport, including opportunities for
community engagement where appropriate. (Completed)
Progress a review of the Boating Facilities Strategic Plan,
including apportunity for community engagement, and present
to Council for consideration. {Completed)

Arts and Culture  The Wedqge, as part of the Arts and Culture Unit sesks to assist in the
development of a vibrant, cutturally active community that: promotes
expression and paricipation through visual, literary and performing
arts; informs and educates the community on various aspects of the
arts; enhances the lifestyle of Wellington residents; and encourages
visitors to explore the heritage and culture of the region.

Initiatives
« Undertake an audit of the HVAC system at The Wedge, to
identify best patron comfort and environmental savings.
(Completed)
Continue fo implement recommendations and actions fo
support the 3-year work plan to reduce energy consumption by
3% per year at The Wedge performing arts centre and the
Wellington Centre. (Completed)
Land Use The Land Lise Planning Unit through our statutory planning and
Flanning strategic land use planning senvices, aims to develop and improve
forward looking land use planning policies and plans that guide and
support sustainable growth and appropriate land use and
development. Many of these semnvices are provided through and driven
by legislation. We aim to provide services that satisfy community
needs by encouraging and supporiing development that meets
required standards and is of good design.

Initiatives
» Advance the industrial rezoning of fand in Wurmmuk/West Sale to
support economic growth. (Completed)
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Implement the North Sale Development Plan info the Planning
Scheme to support well planned housing growth. (Ongoing)
Facifitate preparation of a development plan for the Wurruk
Growth area (subject to a private request) to support well
planned housing growth. (Not progressing)

Implament Project 1 and 2 of a Planning Scheme Review (as
part of the State Government's Flanning in the Economic
Growth fone project] to ensure that the Planning Scheme is
tip to datedrelevant. (Ongoing)

Implement updated noise contour mapping for RAAF Base
East Sale {subject to consuitation with the Department of
Defence) to support the ongoing operation of this airfield.
{Ongoing)

Community The Community Facility Planning team provides services and

Facility Planning functions directed at fostering a heaithy, well serviced community with
a primary focus on community infrastructure planning, priorities and
projects; project funding atiraction; management and governance of
community facilities and administration of Council's community
assistance grants scheme. The team plans for and supports
recreation facilities that encourage the community to parficipate in
physical and general wellheing activities and
the development of community infrastructure that addresses
community service needs.

Initiatives

» Finalise the tools and data to inform annual reviews of the 10
Year Community Facilities Capital Program, making sure that
the program incorporates all community facilities. (Progressing
T0%)
Review the logic of the placement of community managed
facifities in the Facilities Hierarchy including operafing subsidy
amounts and make appropriate recommendations for any
changes reguired to be considered by Council. (Completed)
Rewvigw the processes, maintenance fevels and responsibilities
of communify-managed facilities (particiiarly Crown fand) and
make appropriate recommendations for any changes required
to be considered by Council. (Completed)

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and
measures including explanation of material variations.

Service Indicator/Measure Result Commentary

201516 201617 2017118 201819

Roads

Sartisfacton of use In 201819, Council
Sealed local road requests 161 15.7% 112% 9.6% received a total of 147
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[Mumber of sealed local
road requests / Kilometres
of sealed local roads] x100

Customer Action Requesis
(CARs) for local sealed
roads, which is a significant
decrease compared fo last
wvear. A range of factors
influences the community
contacting Council in
relation to sealed roads,
which may include impact of
weather events. The
reduced rainfall received
across Wellington Shire in
2018/19 attributes to
Council's improved sealed
road maintenance
performance.

Condition

Sealed local roads below
the intervention level
[Mumber of kilometres of
sealed local roads below
the renewal intervention
level set by Council /
Kilometres of sealed local
roads] x100

Wellington Shire Council
conducts inspections of
local roads every three
years, pursuant to the
inspection frequencies
within its Road
Management Plan. Further
to this, Council completed a
seal condition inspection
this financial year which
included an update on the
existing pavement
condition. The percentage
of roads below the set
intervention level for the
2018/15 financial year is

849 5%, which is a slight
improvement from last year.
Council continued its focus
on reconstruction of failed
pavements in both rural and
urban areas this financial
year.

Service cost

Cost of sealed local road
reconstruction

[Direct cost of sealed local
road reconstruction /
Square metres of sealed
local roads reconstructed]

The cost of sealed local
road reconstruction has
increased compared to last
financial year. Council's
reconstruction program has
focused primarily on urban
sireet construction in
2018/1%9, which resulted in
increased project costs
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Cost of sealed local road
resealfing

[Direct cost of sealed local
road resealing / Square
metres of sealed local roads
resealed]

3.7

33.09

33.42

53.88

compared to standard rural
road reconstruction due to
the use of asphalt and
additional traffic
management requirements.
A number of our road
reconstruction projects last
year involved desp
pavement rehabilitation
which attributed to the
increase in costs for
particular jobs.

‘Wellington Shire Council
continues to procure road
sealing services in a cost-
effective manner in
2018195, despite the cost
per square meire being
slightly higher than last
year. The increased cost
resulted from the type of
treatments completed within
the 2018/19 program, as
well as a change in
contractor through Council's
procurement process.

Sarisfacton

Safisfaction with sealed
local roads

[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with how
Council has performed on
the condition of sealed local
roads]

Results from the 2019
Community Satisfaction
Survey showed no change
in residents’ satisfaction
rating for Wellington Shire's
sealed local roads. Thisis @
points higher than the
average for similar large
rural councils. Council is
responsihle for a road
network of 3,115km, where
1.523km are sealed and
1.5%2Kkm unsealed.

Statutory Planning

Timeliness

Time taken to decide
planning applications

[The median number of
days between receipt of a
planning application and a
decision on the application]

Council achieved a result of
39 for the median number
of days between receipt of a2
planning application and a
decision heing made, which
is significantly better than
the Rural Average of 67
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days. (Source: Wellington-
June 2019 Planning Permit
Activity Monthly Report
produced by Department of
Environment, Land, Water
and Planning)

Service standard
Planning applications
decided within 60 days
[Mumber of planning
application decisions made
within 60 days [ Number of
planning application
decisions made] x100

96.1%

93.5%

The statutory timeframe for
issuUing planning pemits is
60 days for regular
applications and 10 days for
Vic Smart applications.
Council has achieved
strong results with 97% of
reqular applications and
100% of Vic Smart
applications being decided
within specified time
frames, compared to the
Rural Average of 67% and
83% respectively. (Source:
Wellington-June 2019
Planning Permit Activity
Monthly Report produced
by Department of
Envirenment, Land, Water
and Planning)

Service cost

Cost of sfatutory planning
selvice

[Direct cost of statutony
planning service | Number
of planning applications
receped]

$1989.80

$2,265.12

$1752.56 §1857 42 Council received 402 new

planning permit applications
in 2018M19. The cost to
deliver the service was
$746,683, less than the cost
incurred in the 2017/18
financial year. However,
Council's cost per application
has marginally increased in
2018139, which can be
attributed to a reduced
number of new planning
permit applications being
received in 201819 (402)
compared to 474
applications being received
in 2017M18.

Decision making

Council planning decisions
upheld at VCAT

[Mumber of VCAT
decisions that did not set

100%

100%

50%

Only one planning decision
was appealed at VCAT
during 2018M19, with
Council's decision being
upheld by YCAT. This is an
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aside Council’s decision in improved result from
relation to a planning 201718

application / Number of

VCAT decisions in relation

to planning applications]

=100

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the
201815 budget for the year.

Partner with key industry bodies, Continuing to work with key industry bodies to ensure Completed
regional and other stakeholders  long term recycling remains a sustainable senvice in

to ensure long term recycling Wellington. Council has been provided guarterly

remains a sustainable service in - updates on this and a range of other waste

Wellington. Provide quarterhy management issues.

updates to Council, including

early recommendations on

pricing to the community.

The following statement reviews the performance of council against the Council Plan including results
achieved in relation to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.

Community satisfaction with
the appearance of public
areas

Community satisfaction with
wasle management

Community satisfaction with
Council's slashing and wead
confrol activity
Monitor participation rates Monitor participation rates 262 sessions with 8301
of Council's Sustainahle participants
Living Education Program
Definitions: Control: Council actions directly control the result. Influence: Council can influence the result, but
other extemnal factors may also have an impact. Monitor: Council has no influence on this result but monitors it
to assist future planning

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2018/19 annual
budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.
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Matural The Natural Environment and Parks Unit covers a range of

Environment activities related to the operational managemeant of public

and Parks open space, which includes approximately 320 hectares of
parkland and associated infrastructure, such as picnic
shelters, BBQs, seating, boardwalks, fences and public
toilets. The service also proactively manages 30,000 —
35,000 urban trees and is responsible for the management,
design and development of parks and streetscapes in urban
areas.
The unit is also responsible for moving the Wellington
community towards a more sustainable future. Key priority
areas include biodiversity, water consumption and quality,
waste management and energy use.

Initiatives
= [evelop a consistent and practical internal land use

planning process to ensure open space requirements
are adeguately considered. (Compileted)
Complete a feasibility study on the benefits of changing
Sports furf over fo more drought and disease tolerant
tT species. (Completed)
Audif accessibility heeds and complete required
designs for refrofitting of all existing Regional & District
feve! play spaces (Completed)
Build a netwark with other Gippsfand based councils to
share knowledge and learn from each other's
experiences in Parks and Gardens. (Completed)

Wellington The Wellington Coast Subdivision Strategy Project Manager

Coast is responsible for implementing the Ninety Mile Beach Plan

Subdivision Yoluntary Assistance Scheme. Expenditure for 201718 is

Strategy funded through unspent State Government grant funding
carried forward.

The following information provides the results of this strategic objective's semvice performance
indicators and measures, including where required, an explanation of material variations.

Waste Collection
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Sarisfaction

Kerbside bin collection
requests

[Mumber of kerbside
garbage and recycling hin
collection requests |
Mumber of kerbside bin
collection households)
x1,000

Council receives requests
for damaged ar stolen hins
to be replaced, uncollected
bins to be collected, and
additional bins to be
provided. In 201819, we
received a total of
approximately 39 requests
per 1,000 households. 1201
garbage hins are reaching
the end of their useful life
and may be the cause of
the continued elevated
number of bin requests.

Service standard
Kerbside collection bins
missed

[Mumber of kerbside
garbage and recycling
collection bins missed /
Mumber of scheduled
kerbside garbage and
recycling collection hin
lifts] x 10,000

Owver 1.55 million bin lifis
were performed during
2018/19 as part of
Wellington Shire's waste
collection service which
operates within a defined
collection houndary within
the 11,000km? municipality.
anby 251 hins were
reported as missed during
2018M9.

Service cosT

Cost of kerbside garbage
coflection service
[Direct cost of the
kerbside garbage bin
collection service [
Mumber of kerbside
garbage collection bins]
Cost of kerbside
recyclables colfection
service

$63.86

565.49

$65.95

$67.40

Wellington Shire's kerbside
collection includes the
weekly garbage waste
collection service of 19,545
bins across the
municipality. Additional
senvices for residents in
Wellington Shire, not
incorporated in this cost,
inciude an annual hard
waste collection service,
and two no charge green
waste disposal weekends
and a fortnightly recycling
bin collection senvice.

Service cost

[Direct cost of the
kerbside recyclables bin
collection service [
Mumber of kerbside
recyclables collzction
hins]

8377

HEE.49

" China's 2018 ban on some
recyclable material has
resulted in increased costs
for Australian waste
collectors including the
Wellington Shire Council.
This increased costis a
direct cost to Council and
the main contributor to the
increase in cost per bin for
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the kerbside recyclable
collection service compared
to previous years.
Wasrte Diversion 32 9% 33.6% 35 7%  More than 3,800 tonnes of
Kerbside collection waste recyclahble material diverted
diverted from landfill from landfill in 2018/19
[Weight of recyclahles and which is a 10% increase
areen organics coliected compared to 2017/18.
from kerbside hins { Weight That's an average of 200kg
of garbage, recyclables of recyclables per collection
and green organics household in Wellington
collected from kerbside Shire. Wellington Shire
hins] x100 Council does not currently
have a kerbside green
waste collection service in
piace limiting the diversion
rate percentage under this
category.

The following statement reviews the performance of council against the Council Plan including results
achieved in relation to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.

Maintain or increase Monitor Wellington - 57.7%
the proportion of
residents with post Gippsland - 57.3%
school gualifications of
some sort relative to
the Gippsland average
Increase participation Influence Monitor Library visits — 282,728
at Council's libraries participation

rates Active library members — 6,212
Increase participation ) Monitor i Art Gallery - 32.290
at Council's Arts and participation
Culture facilities rates The Wedge — 21 785

Definitions; Control: Council actions directly control the resuft rnﬂue.;nc&: Council can influence the result, but
other external factors may also have an impact. Monitor: Council has no influence on this result but monitors it
to assist future planning

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2018/19 budget
and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the senvice.
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Arts and Culture  The Ar Gallery and Libraries as part of the Arts and Culture
Linit, seek to assist in the development of a vibrant culturally
active community that promotes expression and
pariicipation through visual, literary and performing arts;
informs and educates the community on various aspects of
the arts; enhances the lifestyle of Wellington residents; and
encourages visitors to explore the herntage and culture of the

region.

Initiatives

» Continue fo implement recommendations and actions fo
support the 3-year work plan fo reduce energy
consumption by 5% per year at The Wedge performing
arts centre and the Welliington Centre. {Completed)

The following information provides the results of this strategic objective’s service performance
indicators and measures, including where required, an explanation of material variations.

Libraries

Urtilisation Wellington Shire's library

collection is available through

six branches and four cutreach

sites at local Community

[Number of lirary Houses to cover the

collection tem loans 11,000km® municipality.

{ Number of library Collection use has improved

collection items] overall, with increased
proportion of newer items
improving the collection, alcng
with promotion of eResources.
Other libraries of the SWIFT
Library consortium can request
items from every member
library’s coliection without
additional charge, and this
enables resources sharing and
reduced duplication of titles.

Library colfection
usage

Resource standard Our book, audio-visual, and
: ATTE%  50.02% 54.46% eResources stock is refreshed
Stanekind af Sy 41.38% with contemporary matenal
_each year, and together with a
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[Mumber of library
collection items
purchased in the last
5 years { Number of
library collection
items] x 100]

weeding program of older
titlies, has again resulted in an
improved standard of the
library collection.

Service cosr

Cost of fibrary
senice

[Direct cost of the
library service f
Mumber of visits]

56.54

6T

Wellington Shire's library
facilities continue to provide
value and service across the
Shire, with a further cost
reduction per visit in 2018/19.
This was mainly due to
significantly increased number
of visits and activity with the
new library facility in
Wellington Centre and across
the library system. Our brary
organises a diverse range of
physical and electronic
resources and services fo
meet personal information,
recreation, and lifelong
leaming needs for all sectors
and needs in the community.
Outreach senvices suppaort four
remote rural communities, with
items from our collection and
that of the Swift Librany
Consortiunt promptly delivered
free of charge.

Farticipation

Active fibrary
members

[Number of active
library members /
Municipal

population] x 100

13.42%

13.62%

13.82%

14.11%

Wellington Shire libraries offer
a broad range of popular
programs including author
talks, baby rhyme times,
toddler story time and schoal
holiday programs. These are
well attended and apen to all
residents within the Shire. The
new Sale Library has proven
very popular, with significant
increases in visits, loans and
new memberships. Council
continues to actively promote
library services to all sectors of
the community, resuiting in an
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increase in active library
membership.

The following statement reviews the performance of council against the Council Plan including resulis
achieved in relation to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.

Maintain or increase the Infiuence =14 192 jobs 18,111 jobs (17.18% of Gippsland
total number of jobs in (15.88% of waorkforce)

Wellington Shire relative Gippsland

to the Gippsland waorkforce)

workforce

Maintain or increase =3 B8O 4 012 husinesses
number of businesses husinesses

Maintain or increase ) = 41,965 44 019 residents
estimated resident residents

paopulation relative to

Fippsiand populaticn

Maintain or increase $2.32hb GRP $3.215b GRP (3.7% up from 2018
Gross Regional Product result)

(GRP) relative to

Gippsland GRP

Maintain or increase Monitor Domestic daytrips 808,000
visitor numbers by Destination
type/duration Gippsiand data Domesiic ovemight visitors 854,000

Maintain lower Moniior ABS data Gippsiand average —4 5%
unemployment rate than
the Gippsland Average. Wellington — 4 8%

Defmitions: Control: Council actions directly condrol the result. Influence: Council can influence the result, but
other external factors may also have an impact. Monitor: Council has no influence on this result but monitors it
to assist future planning

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the
201819 budget for the year.

Progress West Sale Airport The $6M runway extension and lighting upgrade at Completed
initiatives including future West Sale Airport has been completed. Runway
stages of the Eastem 0%2T has been lengthened to 1800 metres and
Recreation Aviation Precinct  further strenagthens Wellington's aviation capabhility.
and the Infrastructure The upgrade will support the needs of RAAF Base
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Upgrades {Rumway East Sale’s Basic Pilot Training School.
Extension) Project. Detailed designs for the Eastern Recreation Aviation

Precinct (ERAP) have been preparad.
Strongly advocate for the Following the Victorian Govemment announcement Progressing
relocation of the Federation io establish a new 525 million TAFE campus in Sale, (95%)
Training's Fulham campus to  Council has worked closely with TAFE Gippsland to
Sale CBD and in doing so ensure the needs of the community and industry are
improve accessibility to considered when preparnng a new campus. Council
education and training has briefed TAFE on how the new campus can
outcomes for the Wellington integrate into the broader Port of Sale precinct.
community. Council has also partnered with TAFE Gippsland,

Gippsiand East Local Learning and Employment

Metwork and Nexus Mutual to establish a Higher

Education Study Hub in Sale to support local

~ university students.

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 201819 annual
hudget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Business Council's Business Development service aims fo support business
Development growth and employment, lifestyle opporunities and a vibrant fourism
sector.

Initiatives
* Implement the 2018-20 Action Plan associated with

Weliington Shire Economic Development Strategy.
{Completed)
Seek funding for and develop a business case for the
extension of the Greaf Southern Rail Trail through fo Yarram
to increase visitation and business opportunities in adiacent
areas. (Progressing J30%)
Implement year one actions emanating from the Recreation
Vehicle (RV) Strategy. (Completed)
Frovide excepfional visitor information services through
Council’s Visitor information Cenire nefwork and report to
Council on key deliverables by June 2019. (Completed)
Waork with partners including Latrobe Vailey Authority, ROV
and Ausindustry to promote government funding
opportunities to Wellington businesses to SUpport expansion
plans and job creation and report outcomes fo Council,
{Completed)
Review Council’s fist of surplus fand so that land value can
be realised in accordance with policy and standards of best
practice and develop a business case that supports the
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recommended processfimeframe. (Completed)

« Engage with stakehoiders fo complefe designs of the Fort of
Sale Mooring Access Project. (Completed)

The following statement reviews the performance of council against the Council Plan including results
achieved in relafion to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.

Maintain or increase Influence 63%

community satisfaction with

Council’s overall {7 points higher than large rural

performance. average)

Increase satisfaction with 57%

community consultation and

engagement. (3 points higher than large rural
average)

Maintain or increase 57%

safisfaction with advocacy
on behalf of the community (5 points higher than large rural
to other organisations and average)

levels of government

Maintain or increase RA%

community satisfaction out

of 100 with how Council has (G points higher than large rural
performed in making average)

decisions in the best

interests of the community

Maintain or increase overall Influence 5.48 satisfaction 5.48 =satisfaction
siaff satisfaction and

engagement ratings 9% engagement T2.7% engagement

Definitions: Conftrol: Council actions directly control the result. Influence: Council can influence the result, but
other external factors may alzo have an impact. Monitor: Council has no influence on this result but monitors it
to assist future planning

The following statement reviews the progress of Councll in relation to major initiatives identified in the
201815 annual budget for the year.

Effectively manage and Effectively managed and operated the Gippsland Completed
operate the Gippsland Regional Livestock Exchange and intfroduced a range
Reqgional Livestock Exchange of new initiatives to improve the communication and
(GRLE) and develop a customer service for producers, agents and
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business plan and associated ftransporters including:
governance structures to -Securing Commonwealth funding to improve facilities
Council's satisfaction. and services at GRLE 2018 including perimeter fencing
along the eastern boundary.
-Launching the GELE eMewsletter
-Continuation of the GRLE fee freeze in 2019720
-Introduction of ‘Sutto’s Market Summary” available on
GRLE's Facebook page and wehsite.
-Expanding liveweight calf scales every Monday and
Wednesday.

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2018/19 annual
budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Councillors, This area of corporate includes the Mayor, Councillors, Chief

Chief Executive Executive Officer and Executive Management Team and associated
and Executive support which covers senvice provision across the entire

Team organisation.

Initiatives
« [dentify and facilitate shared services opportunifies with
participating GLGN Councils. (Ongoing)

Media and Public This area provides internal and external communication services

Relations and suppon and branding initiatives for Council. The team also
seeks o proactively inform our community and our staff ensurnng
transparency, consistency and clarity of our message.

Initiatives
& [Design and deveiop a new Wellington Shire Council website.
{Deferred)

Information The Information Services Business Unit provides centralised and
Services integrated information services and new and emerging technologies
to assist Council to reach the 2030 Vision.

Initiatives
»  Complete improvement upgrades for the Microwave
Communicafions Infrasfructure across Wellington Shire
Council and East Gippsland Shire. (Completed)
Plan and manage the rofiout requirements for the EduCloud
Project across Wellington Shire Council’s participating
Schools and Wellington libraries. (Completed)
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People and The People and Excellence Unit provides responsive advice and

Excellence services in the areas of Human Resources, Leaming and
Development, Occupational Health and Safety, Risk Management,
Corporate Planning and Reporting and Business Improvement.

Initiatives
«  [Develop a Workforce Management Plan to address the
human resourcing requirements while meeting relevant
Access and Inclusion plan outcomes to ensure that Council
has the right employees, with the right skills, to deliver the
Council Plan and senvices required by the community, both
now and in the future. (Frogressing 10%)

Commercial The Commercial Faciiities team as part of the Business

Facilities Development Unit, manages a range of commercial property
portfolios including strategic projects in addition to completing the
transactions for property acquisitions, disposal and fransfers.

Municipal The Customer Service team as part of the Municipal Services
Senvices Business Unit provides responsive, guality customer service to all
stakeholders.

Finance The Finance Unit provides financial, payroll, rating and property
valuation services to the organisation, community and external
stakeholders. These services underpin the drive to be a financially
sustainable Council, comply with the necessary leqgislative
reguirements and meet community needs. The unit also aims {o
provide a safe, reliable and sustainable fleet of vehicles to support
the organisation in achieving its goals. The significant procurement
goal is that of gaining good value from our purchasing.

Initiatives
« Lipdate finance business sysfems fo meet govemance
requirements. {Compieted)
Establish a central Register for all contracts across the
organisation to ensure consistency and good governance.

{Not progressing)

The following information provides the results of this strategic objective’s service performance
indicators and measures, including where required, an explanation of material variations.

Governance
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Transparency

Council resolutions at
meetings closed fo the
pubiic

[Number of Council
resolutions made at
ordinary or special
meetings of Council, or
at meetings of a special
committee consisting
anly of Councillors,
closed to the public /
Number of Council
resolutions made at
ordinary or special
meetings of Council or at
meetings of a special
commitiee consisting
only of Councillors] x100

Wellington Shire Council
made 250 resolutions
during the 201819
financial year. Of those
decisions, 279 or 96.21%
were made in meetings
open to the public. Council
demuonsirates leadership
and maintains transparent
processes in order that the
community is informed by
and engaged with Council
husiness. Additionally, all
meetings open to the
public are breadcast live
via Council's website and
made available via an
online video archive.

Consultation and
efngagement
Safisfaction with
community consultation
and engagement
[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with
how Council has
performed on community
consultation and
engagement]

As per Community
Saftisfaction Survey 2019
resufts, Wellington Shire
Council is performing three
points higher than the large
rural council average for
community engagement.

Artrendance

Councilior attendance at
Council meetings

[The sum of the number
of Councillors who
attended each ordinary
and special Council
meeting / (Number of
ordinary and special
Council meetings) x
{(Mumber of Counciilors
elected at the last
Council general
election)] x100

88 4% 82 6% BB 9% Wellington Shire Councillor
commitment to actively
serve the community is
reflected in its 92 27%
attendance rate at the 22
ordinary Council meetings
and one special Council
meeting held in 2018/19.

Service cosr
Cost of governance

Although a Councillor's
role is largely voluntary,
$40,977 $42074 540834 343 898 they receive an allowance
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[Direct cost of the
governance service |
Number of Councillors
elected at the last
Council general election]

within the limits set by the
Victorian Government. It is
also appropriate that
allowable expenses
incurred are reimbursed
whilst undertaking Council
duties. This cost reflects
both Councillor allowances
and reimbursements for
the period. Wellington
Shire Councillor
reimbursement is at the
lower end of the scale for
Victorian councillors.

Satisfaction
Safisfaction with Council
decisions

[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with
how Council has
performed in making
decisions in the interest
of the community]
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Council's participation in
the 2015 Community
Safisfaction Survey
showed no change in
community satisfaction
rating with the way Council
has performed in making
decisions in the interests
of the community. Council
has performed six points
higher than large rural
average and three points
higher compared to state-
wide average.
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6.0 Governance, Management and Other Information

6.1 Governance

Wellington Shire Council is constituted under the Local Government Act, 1989 to provide leadership
for the good govermnance of the municipal district and local community. Council has a number of roles
including

« Taking into account the diverse needs of the local community in decision-making.

+ Providing leadership by establishing strategic objectives and monitoring achievements.

+ Ensuring that resources are managed in a responsible and accountable manner.

« Advocating the interests of the local community to other communities and levels of

government.

« Fostering community cohesion and encouraging active participation in civic life.

Council is committed to effective and sustainable forms of democratic and corporate governance as
the key to ensuring that Council and its administration meet the community’s priorities. The
community has many opportunities to provide input into Council's decision-making processes
including community consultation activities, public forums such as community meetings and the ability
to make submissions to Council and Special Committees of Council.

Council places a strong emphasis on good govemance, ensuring that Council operates effectively,
efficiently, impartialty and with integrity. Council employs good governance principles by making
decisions based on proper processes and systems, making sure Council officers carry out these
decisions appropriately.

Council’s formal decision-making processes are conducted through Council meetings and Special

Committees of Council. Council delegates the majority of its decision making to Council staff and
these delegations are exercised in accordance with adopted Council policies and relevant legisiation.

G.1.1 Meetings of Council

Council conducts open public meetings on the first and third Tuesday of each month. Members of the
community are welcome to attend these meetings and ochserve from the galieny.

Council meetings also provide the opportunity for community members to submit a question to
Council, make a submission or speak to an tem.

Wellington Shire Council streams live video and audio of Council Meetings and Special Council
Meetings. Recently recorded meetings or earlier meetings can he accessed via Council web page at
http-fhwww wellington.vic.gov_ aulYour-CounciliCouncil-Meetings/l ive-Council- Meetings.

Council held the following meetings during 2018719
« 22 Ordinary Council Mesfings
« One Special Council Meeting
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6.1.2 Councillor Meeting Attendance 2018/19

The following table provides a summary of Councillor attendance at Council meetings and Special
Council meetings for the 2018/M% financial year.

Councillor (3 July 2018 to 6 Ordinary Council | Special Council Total
November 2018) Meeting Meeting

Cr Carolyn Crossley (Mayor) 0

‘Cr lan Bye (Deputy Mayor)

Cr Alan Hall

Cr Malcolm Hole

Cr Gayle Maher

Cr Darmren McCubbin

Cr Carmel Ripper

‘Cr Scoft Rossetti
Cr Garry Stephens

| o= | 00| =] | = | 0O | 08| = | @O
G|~ | @] "] @@ =~ @

Councillor (7 November 2018
to 18 June 2019)

Cr Alan Hall iMayor)

Cr Malcolm Hole (Deputy Mayor)

‘Cr Carolyn Crossley

Cr lan Bye

Cr Gayle Maher

‘Cr Darren McCubbin

Cr Carmel Ripper

Cr Scoft Rossetti

‘Cr Garry Stephens

6.1.3 Special Committees

The Local Government Act, 1969 allows for the establishment of one or more Special Commitiees
consisting of:

=  Councillors

=  Council staff

= Dther persons

= Any combination of the above.
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The following list provides all current Section 86 Committees of Wellington Shire Council with their
purpose and Councillor Representation.

Special
Committee.

Councillors

Officers

Purpose

Briagolong
Quarry Reserve
Coammittee

‘Cr Cammel
Ripper

To protect, promote and develop the Briagolong Quarry
Reserve.

Briagolong
Recreation
Resenve

Committee

Cr Cammel
Ripper

To protect, promote and develop the Briagolong
Recreation Reserve.

Cameron
Sporting
Complex
Committee

Cr Malcolm
Hole

To protect, promote and develop the Cameron Sporting
Complex, Maffra.

Gordon Street
Reserve
Committee

Cr Malcolm
Hole

To protect, promote and develop the Gordon Sireet
Reserve, Heyfield.

Maffra
Recreation
Reserve
Committee

Cr Camel
Ripper

To protect, promote and develop the Maffra Recreation
Reserve.

Mewry
Recreation
Reserve

Committee

Cr Malcolm
Hole

To protect, promote and develop the Newry Recreation
Reserve.

Sale
Performance
Space
Fundraising
Committee

Cr Damen
McCubbin

To maintain a public fund into which the public may
confribute towards the construction, maintenance,
upgrade and expansion of Counci-owned cultural
spaces, facilities and equipment.

To maintain a public fund into which the public may
confribute towards cultural activities, programs and
events conducted by Wellington Shire Council through
Council-owned cultural spaces and facilifies.

To coordinate fundraising activities an behalf of Council-
owned cultural spaces and faciliies. To obtain all
necessarny permits and approvals required for eligible
fundraising activities.
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« List of Advisory Commitiees

Audit & Risk Commities

CEQ Performance Review Committes

Gippsland Art Gallery Advisory Group

Gippsland Regional Sporis Complex User Group Commitiee

Place Names Committes

Remuneration Committee

Stephenson Park Advisory Committee

Strategic Land Use Planning Projects Review Group

The Wedge and Masterplan Advisory Group

Wellington Access & Inclusion Advisory Group

Wellington Youth Service Network (WY SN)

« Commitiees of Other Organisations (Delegates)

Australian Coastal Councils Association

Coastal Agencies Ligison Group

Gippsland Climate Change Network Incorporated

Gippsland Local Government Network (GLGN)

Gippsiand Local Government Waste Forum

Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV)

Mational Timber Council Association Inc

South East Australian Transport Sirategy (SEATS)

Timber Towns Victoria

Wellington Regional Tourism (WRT)

« Other Groups, Taskforces, Project Control Groups (PCG's) & Statutory Committees

Healthy Wellington Action Group

Wellington Shire Council Emergency Management Planning Committee
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6.1.4 Code of Conduct

Counciliors are bound by a Code of Conduct. The Code describes the standards of ethical and moral
hehaviour expected of Councillors. The code covers relationships between Councillors and siaff, the
use of Council resources and dispute resolution procedures.

The Code was reviewed and revised on 20 December 2016 following the 2016 general election as
provided for in the Local Government Act 1989, however due to a resignation and subsequent count
back the Code was readopted on 21 November 2017.

Council's current Code of Conduct includes:
* Processes for resolving intemal disputes between Councillors;
+ Provisions prescribed for in The Local Government Amendment (improved Governance) Act
2013;
Provisions addressing any prescribed matters;
Any other matters relating to the conduct of Councillors which the Council considers
appropnate.

In addition, the Code also outlines:

s« (Other conduct definitions under the Local Government Act, 1989 such as those relating to
misuse of position, improper direction, breach of confidentiality and conflict of interest.
Representatives on behalf of Council.

Roles and relationships.

6.1.5 Conflict of Interest

Councillors are elected by Wellington Shire residents and non-residential ratepayers to act in the best
interests of the community. VWhen a Council delegates its powers to a Council officer or a Committee,
they must act in the public interest.

A conflict of interest occurs when a personal or private interest might compromise the ability to act in
the public interest and exists even if no improper act results from it. Council has a standard procedurs
for all Councii and Committee meetings requiring the declaration of a conflict of interest and then
stepping aside from the relevant decision-making process or from the exercise of public duty.

Dwring 2018159, 10 conflicts of interest were declared at Council and Special Committee meetings.

Date of Conflict of Councillor Conflict of Interest - Council Meetings
Interest Nominated

17 July 2018 Cr McCubhbin Indirect - Section 78B - Quick Response Granis

21 August 2018 Cr McCubhin Direct - Section 778 - The Wedge Masterplan
Advisory Group Membership

16 October 2018 CrMaher Indirect - Section 788 - Community Assistance Grants

T November 2018 Cr McCubbin Direct - Section 778 - The Wedge Masterplan
Advisory Group Membership

20 Movember 2018 Cr Bye Direct - Section 77B - Quick Response Grants
Scheme
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19 February 2019 Cr Rossett Indirect - Section 788 - Sale of Road at the rear of 85
Filzroy Street Sale

19 March 2019 Cr Bye Indirect - Secfion 78B - Quick Response Grant
Scheme

2 April 2019 Cr Bye Indirect - Section 78B - Receipt of petition - Relocation
of gaming machines from Lakeside Bowls Club to
Sporting Legends

7 May 2018 Indirect - Section 788 - Response o Petition -
Relocation of gaming machines from Lakeside Bowls
Club to Sporting Legends

21 May 2018 r Stephens Indirect - Section 788 - Community Assistance Granis

6.1.6 Councillor Allowances

In accordance with Section 74(1) of the Local Government Act 1389, Councillors are entitled to
receive an allowance while performing their duty as a Councillor. The Mavyor is also entitied to receive
a higher allowance.

The Victorian Govemment sets the upper and lower limits for all allowances paid to Councillors and
Mayors, divided into three categories based on the income and population of each Council and in this
instance Wellington Shire Council is recognised as a categony two council.

For the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019, the Councillor annual allowance upper limit for a category
two Council (as defined by the Local Government Act 1989) was fixed at §25,225 per annum and the
allowance upper limit for the Mayor was $78,051 per annum. The Minister for Local Government
approved an annual adjustment of 2.0 per cent to take effect as from 1 December 2018, The annual
allowances were adjusted for the period 1 December 2018 to 30 June 2019 at $25 730 per annum for
the councillor allowance and $79 612 per annum for the Mayoral allowance.

This table contains a summary of the allowances paid to each Councillor during the 2018/19 year.

Mote: Allowances include an amount eguivalent to a superannuation contribution of 9.5%.

Councillor Term of Office during the financial year Allowance $

Cr Carolyn Crossley 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 48.385
(Mayor, 1 July 2018 to 6§ November 2018)

Cr Alan Hall 1 July 2018 - 30 June 2019 66,014
{Mayor, 7 November 2018 - 30 June 2018)

Cr Darmen McCubhin 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 27943

Cr Scoft Rossetti 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 27,943

Cr Malcolm Hole 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 27,943
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Cr Gayle Maher 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 27943

Cr Garry Stephens 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 27943

Cr fan Bye 1 July 2018 1o 30 June 2019 27943

Cr Carmel Ripper 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 27,943

Total ($) 310,000

6.1.7 Councillor Expenses

In accordance with Section 75 of the Local Government Act, 1989 Council is reguired to reimburse a
Councillor for expenses incurred whilst performing his or her duties as a Councillor. Council is also
required to adopt and maintain a policy in relation to the reimhursement of expenses for Councillors.
The policy provides guidance for the payment of reimbursements of expenses and the provision of
resources, facilities and other support to the Mayor and Councillors to enable them to discharge their
duties.

Council also publishes in its Annual Report the details of the expenses, including reimbursement of
expenses for each Councillor and member of a Council Committee paid by the council.

The details of Councillor expenses for the 201819 year are shown below.

Mote: No expenses were paid by Council, including reimbursements, to members of Council
Committees during the year.

Councillors Car Child Conf.

Mileage Care and
S

$

Cr Carolyn Crossley
(Mayor to 6 November 2018)
{01/07/18- 20/06/19)

Cr Alan Hall 10,381
{Mayor from 7 November 2018)
(0107718 - 30/06/19)

Cr Darmren McCubhbin) 2 8,870
{01/07/18 - 30/06/19)

Cr Scoft Rossetti 1,508
(01707718 - 30V06/19)

Cr Malcolm Hole ; 9,168
(0107118 - 30/06/19)

Cr Gayle Maher 9.055
{01/07/18 - 30/06/19)

Cr Garry Stephens 6,213
{0107/ 8 - 30/06/19)
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Cr lan Bye
(01/07/18 - 30/06/19)

Cr Carmel Ripper
(01/07/18 - 30/06/19)

6.2 Management

Council has implemented a number of statutory and better practice items to strengthen its
management framework. Having strong govemance and management frameworks leads to better
decision making by Council. The Local Government Act, 1989 requires Council to undertake an
assessment against the prescribed governance and management checklist and include this in its
Report of Operafions. Council’s Governance and Management Checklist results are set out in section
G6.3. The following items have been highlighted as impartant componenis of the management
framework.

6.2.1 Audit and Risk Committies

The Audit & Risk Committee's role is fo oversee and monitor the effectiveness of Council in camying
out its responsibilities for accountable financial management, good corporate governance,
maintaining an effeciive system of intermal control and risk management and fostering an ethical
environment. The Audit & Risk Commitiee consists of three independent members, Mr Peter
Craighead (Chair), Mr Chris Badger and Ms Michelle Dowsett and two Councillors. Independent
members are appointed for a maximum term of three years. The chair is elected from amongst the
independent members.

The Audit & Risk Committee meets at least four times per year. The Intemal Auditor, Chief Executive
Cifficer, General Manager Corporate Senvices and Manager Corporate Finance attend all Audit & Risk
Committee meetings. Other management representatives attend as required to present reparts.

Each year the external auditors provide an external audit plan and independent audit report.

Recommendations from each Audit & Risk Committee meeting are subsequently reported to and
considered by Council.

The Committee met on four occasions during 2018/19, providing advice to Council on a wide range of
issues including:

quarterty legal and insurance repors,

risk management updates

financial reports

updates on outstanding audit recommendations and
updates on Information Services.

Other key outcomes for the 20189 year are summarised below.
In August 2018 the Committee:

» Adopted in-principle the 201718 financial and performance statements in accordance with
legislative reguirements;
Received and noted the external auditor's (Victorian Auditor General's Office) management letter
for the year ending 30 June 2018;
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Received and noted intemal audit reporis on Management of Leisure Services, Debis and Rates
Collection {Debtor Management), Port of Sale Cultural Hub Development {Part A — Project
Management) and Follow-up of Agreed Actions from Prior Year Intermal Audit Reports;
Received and noted the reports by the Victorian Auditor General (VAGO) on Local Government
Insurance Risks and Local Government and Economic Development;

Received advice that Wellington Shire Council will be pariicipating in the YAGD Performance
Audit on Fraud and Comuption Control;

Maoted the Chairman’s report for the period ending 30 June 2018;

Received and noted an annual update on the Road Management Act processes;

Received a report on Related Party Transactions;

Received a report on the Chief Execufive Officer's credit card expenditure.

In November 2018 the Committes:

Considered a proposed Sirategic Internal Audit Plan 2018 — 2019;

Reviewed Council’s Risk Strategy;

Reviewed the introduction of new Council Policies;

Considered and noted the VAGO report on Delivering Local Government Services;

Moted the IBAC report on comuption and misconduct risk associated with employment practices
in the Yictorian public sector;

Reviewed the Audit & Risk Committee Charter.

in February 2019 the Commities:

Received a presentation on the evaluation of the Port of Sale Redevelopment Project;
Received the VAGO report on Results of 2017-18 Audits: Local Government;

Moted a request from the Ombudsman for information on the Ninety Mile Beach Subdivision;
Received a report on the Chief Executive Officer's credit card expenditure;

Received a report on Related Party Transactions.

In May 2019 the Commitize:

Received and reviewed the Extemal Audit Strategy as provided by Crowe Horwath;

Received the final Strategic Internal Audit Plan;

Received a presentation on Council's process for dealing with under excess claims;

Received and noted the internal audit reports on Building and Facilities Maintenance and Port of
Sale Cultural Hub Development (Part B — Operational Management);

Received and considered the proposed report from YAGO on Fraud and Corruption Control;
Received the report from IBAC on Review of Integrity Frameworks in six Victorian Councils;
Received a report on changes to Accounting policies/Accounting Standards;

Received a report on the draft Council Budget 2019/20.

6.2.2 Internal Audit

Council's intemal audit function provides independent and objective assurance that the appropriate
processes and controls are in place across Council. The function is undertaken by an independent
external provider. A risk-based three year Strateqgic Intemal Audit Plan (S1AP) is revised annually to
ensure the audit resources remain focused on the appropriate areas. The review process considers
Council's risk framework, the Council Plan, the impact of any change to operations, systems or the
husiness environment; prior audit coverage and outcomes and management input. The SIAP is
reviewed and approved hy the Audit & Risk Commitiee annually.
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The Internal Auditor attends each Audit & Risk Committee meeting to report on the status of the SIAP,
to provide an update on the implementation of audit recommendations and to present findings of
completed reviews. All audit issues identified are risk rated. Recommendations are assigned to the
respansible Manager and tracked in Council’s corparate planning system. Managers provide quarteriy
status updates that are reviewed by the Audit & Risk Committee.

The SIAP for 2018/1%9 was undertaken with the following reviews conducted:
Debts and Rates Caollection (Debtor Management) July 2018
Management of Leisure Facilities July 2018
Port of Sale Cultural Hub Development (Part A — Project Management) August 2018
Buildings and Facilities Maintenance May 2015
Fort of Sale Cultural Hub Development (Part B — Operational Management) May 2019

6.2.3 External Audit

Council is externally audited by the Victorian Auditor-General's representatives to provide an
assurance that financial statements reflect the financial position at the end of the financial year. These
auditors conducted audits of Council’s Financial Statements and Performance Statement for 201819
by testing a sample of Council's internal controls, observing processes being performed, making
enquiries of key staff within Council and examining financial and accounting records and other
relevant documents. The extemal auditors also attended the May and August Audit & Risk Committee
meetings to present the annual audit plan and Independent Audit Report. The external audit
management letier and responses were also provided to the Audit & Risk Committee.

6.2.4 Risk Management

Council is committed to proactive risk management and has continued {o maintain a Risk
Management Framework which is in line with the Risk Management Principles & Guidelines, (ASINZS
(S0 31000: 2009). Council's risk management objectives are to;
+ Integrate risk management practices into all of Council's work practices.
+ Promote and support best practice risk management throughout Council.
+ Equip staff and management with the knowledge and ability to identify, analyse and prioritise
areas of risk to Council.
Implement effective processes o reduce andfor eliminate high-level risk.
Continuousty improve risk assessment, monitoring and reporting standards.
Allow for the effective allocation and use of resources.
FProvide a hasis for higher standards of accountability through the creation of effective
performance objectives and measurement of performance against these objectives.
Manage appropriate cover and minimise costs associated with insurance and litigation.

In 2018/19:
* Risk Management Policy was reviewed and appraved by the CEQ.
» Strategic and operational risk registers were reviewed with emerging risks identified and
included in the risk register.
Council has continued to review its insurance profile, policies and cover for 2018/19. Council
wiorked with our insurance brokers and insurers to ensure that our insurance cover is
consistent with Council’s identified risk profile and requirements.
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+ Key compliance training modules were developed and delivered across Council including
Fraud and Corruption, Procurement Delegations, Record Keeping and Privacy.

Council is actively using the Enterprise Risk Management Framework which details the approach and
comprehensive actions Council will take in delivering best practice risk management and embedding
a culture of risk awareness throughout the organisation. This tool also provides a rnsk managemeant
solution to assist officers with identifying, profiling and assessing rsks within a combined maonitoring
and reporting framework. Controls and actions are documented to ensure where possible nisks are
heing reduced or maintained at an acceptable level.

6.3 Governance and Management Checklist

The following are the results in the prescribed form of Council's assessment against the prescribed
Govemance and Management checklist.

Governance and Management ltems Assessment

1. Community engagement policy (policy
outlining council's commitment to engaging with Date of adoption: 12 December 2018
the community on matters of public interest)

2. Community engagement guidelines Community Engagement Strategy 2017-
(guidelines to assist siaff to determine when and 2020 includes a range of community

how to engage with the community) engagement tools and guidelines to assist
council staff to provide quality engagement
for council projects.

Date of adoption: 6 September 2016

3. Strategic Resource Plan Adopted in accordance with Section 126 of
(plan under section 126 of the Local Government | the Local Government Act, 15989,

Act 1289 outlining the financial and non-financial | Date of adoption: 4 June 2019

resources required for at least the next 4 financial

years)

4 Annual budget Adopted in accordance with Section 130 of
(plan under section 130 of the Local Government the Local Government Act 1989,

Act, 1989 setting out the senvices to be provided Date of adoption: 4 June 2019

and initiatives to be undertaken over the next 12
months and the funding and other resources
required)

5. Asset management plans Wellington Shire Council has documented
(plans that set out the asset maintenance and Asset Management Plans far all major asset
renewal need for key infrastructure asset classes classes including Open Space, Properiies
for at least the next 10 years) and Roads, which includes Roads, Bridoes
and Paths.

Date of operation of current plans:
Roads-January 2019

Paths-January 2019

Bridges- January 2019

Drainage- January 2019

Property- January 2019
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Cpen Space- January 2015

G. Rating strategy
(strategy setting out the rating structure of council
to levy rates and charges

Strategy adopted.
Date of operation of current strategy:
18 December 2018

7. Risk policy

(policy outlining council's commitment and
approach to minimising the risks to council's
operations)

Risk Management Policy inciuded in Council
Policy Manual.

Date of operation of current policy:

18 December 2018

8. Fraud policy
(policy outlining council’s commitment and
approach to minimising the risk of fraud)

Fraud Control Policy included in Council
Policy Manual.

Date of operation of current policy:

18 December 2018

5. Municipal emergency management plan (plan
under section 20 of the Emergency Management
Act 1986 for emergency prevention, response and
recovery)

Prepared and maintained in accordance with
Section 20 of the Emergency Management
Act, 1986.

Date of operation: 22 November 2018

10. Procurement policy

(policy under section 186A of the Local
Government Act 1982 outlining the matters,
practices and procedures that will apply to all
purchases of goods, services and works)

Prepared and approved in accordance with
Section 186A of the Local Government Act,
19849

Procurement policy included in Council
Policy Manual.

Diate of operation of current policy:

18 December 2018

11. Business continuity plan

(plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken
to ensure that key services continue to operate in
the event of a disaster)

Ezxisting document is currently being
reviewed.
Date of operation: 4 December 2014

12. Disaster recovery plan

{plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken
to recover and restore business capabhility in the
event of a disaster)

Existing document is currently heing
reviewed.
Date of operation: 4 December 2014

13. Risk management framework (framework
outlining council's approach to managing risks to
the council's operations)

Date of operation of current strategy:
20 February 2018

14. Audit & Risk Committee

{advisory commitiee of council under section 139
of the Local Government Act, 1989 whose role is to
oversee the integrity of @ council’s financial
reporting, processes to manage risks to the
council's operations and for compliance with
applicable legal, ethical, and regulatory
requirements)

Established in accordance with Section 139
of the Local Government Act, 1989,

The Audit & Risk Committee has been in
operation since February 19586 (based on
available evidence)

Date of establishment: February 1996
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15 Internal audit

{independent accounting professionals engaged
by the council to provide analyses and
recommendations aimed at improving council's
governance, risk and management controls)

Date of engagement of current provider:
29 June 2017

16. Performance reporting framework

(a set of indicators measuring financial and non-
financial performance, including the performance
indicators refemed to in section 131 of Local
Government Act, 1983

Date of operation of current framework:
1 July 2017

17. Council Plan reporting

(report reviewing the performance of the council
against the council plan, including the resufts in
relation to the strategic indicators, for the first six
months of the financial year)

21 August 2018

18. Financial reporting

(quarterly statements to council under section 138
Local Government Act, 1989 comparing budgeted
revenue and expenditure with actual revenue and
expenditure)

Statements presented to the Council in
accordance with Section 138(1) of the Local
Government Act, 1989,

Date statements presented:

17 July 2018, 16 October 2018

& February 2019, 16 April 2018

19. Risk reporting

(six-monthly reports of strateqgic risks to council’s
operations, their likelihood and consequences of
occurring and risk minimisation strategies)

Date of reports:

17 July 2018

5 February 2019

Strateqgic risks, and controls are currentiy
being reviewed.

20. Performance reporting

{six-monthily reports of indicators measuring the
resulis against financial and non-financial
performance, including performance indicators
referred to in section 131 of the Local Government
Act 18889)

Cuarterly Reports.

Date of reports:

17 July 2018, 16 October 2018
& February 2019, 16 April 2018

21. Annual report

(annual report under sections 131, 132 and 133 of
the Local Government Act, 19893 to the community
containing a report of operations and audited
financial and performance statements)

Considered at a meeting of Council in
accordance with Section 124 of the Local
Government Act, 1989,

Date statements presented: 16 October
2018

22 Councillor Code of Conduct

{Code under section 76C of the Local Government
Act, 1989 setting out the conduct principles and the
dispute resolution processes to be followed by
councillors)

Reviewed in accordance with Section 76C of
the Local Government Act, 1989
Date reviewed: 21 November 2017
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23. Delegations Reviewed in accordance with Section 98(6)
(a document setting out the powers, duties and of the Local Government Act, 1989
functions of council and the Chief Executive Officer | Date reviewed: 5 March 2015

that have been delegated to members of staff)

24 Meeting procedures Local law No 1, Meeting procedures made in
(a local law govemning the conduct of meetings of | accordance with Section 91(1) of the Local
council and special committees) Government Act, 1989

Date local law made: 6 November 2014

| certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council's governance and management
arrangements.

Dravid Morcom Cr Alan Hall
Chief Executive Officer Mayor
Dated: 19 September 2019 Dated: 19 September 2019
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6.4 Statutory Information
The following informatfion is provided in accordance with legislative and other requirements of Council
6.4.1 Documents Available for Public Inspection

In accordance with regulation 12 of the Local Government (Generall Regulations 2015 the following
are prescribed documents that are available for inspection or which can be obtained for the purposes
of Section 222 of the Local Government Act, 1980 (the Act) at 18 Desailly Street, Sale.

A document containing details of overseas or interstate travel (other than interstate travel! by
land for less than three days) underiaken in an official capacity by councillor or any member of
council staff in the previous 12 months, including:

2 The name of the Councillor or member of Council staff, and

o The dates on which the travel began and ended; and

2 The destination of the travel, and

o The purpose of the travel, and

o The total cost to the Council of the travel, including accommodation costs.

The agendas for, and minutes of ordinary and special meetings held in the previous 12 months
which are kept under section 93 of the Act, other than those agendas and minutes relating to a
part of a meeting which was closed to members of the public under section 8% of the Act and are
confidential information within the meaning of section 77(2) of the Act.

The minutes of meetings of special commitizes established under section 86 of the Act and held
in the previous 12 months, other than those minutes relating to a part of a meeting which was
closed to members of the public under section 89 of the Act and are confidential information
within the meaning of section 77({2) of the Act.

A register of delegations kept under sections 87(1) and 98(4) of the Act, including the date on
which the last review took place under sections 86(6) and 98(6), respeciively, of the Act;

A document containing details of all leases involving land which were entered into by the council
as lessor, including the lessee and the terms and the value of the lease.

A register maintained under section 224(14A) of the Act of authorised officers appointed under
that section.

A list of donations and grants made by the council in the previous 12 maonths, including the
names of persons who, or bodies which, have received a donation or grant and the amount of
each donation or grant.
In addition, there is other information that Council is obliged to have available for inspection. This
includes:
*» |locallawNoitohb
« Procurement Policy

« Record of Assembly of Councillors

« Register of Interests
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6.4.2 Best Value Principles and Continuous Improvement

The Best Value Principles contained in the Victoran Local Government Act 1989 place a duty on
councils to ensure that their senvices:

Offer the best possible guality and value for money

Are responsive to community neads

Are accessible to the people they are intended for

Show continuous improvement

Are subjected to regular community consultation

Are reported back regularly to its community on how they measure up against the best value
principles.

We also recognise continuous improvement as fundamental to improving community outcomes. We
are committed to pursuing continuous improvement as a core part of how we pracfice our business
daily and in our strategic and operational planning.

The corporate planning cycle puts into practice the Best Values principles through:

+« |dentifying the community needs in terms of Council services and creating strategic
ohjectives to identify the services to be offered and their intended outcomes, as voiced in our
Strategic Vision Wellington 2030
Identifying the service delivery with best possible quality and value for money through
linking the community vision- Wellington 2030 with the Council Plan 2017-21 and business
planning, and measurng service performance by the means of Corporate Performance
Indicators (CPls)
Ensuring services are accessible fo the people for which they are intended by service
planning and explicitly seeking users' experience of the service through forums such as
Community Reference Groups, surveys
Monitoning and refining the services to ensure there is continuous improvement on quality
and value, currently through the customer satisfaction survey, senvice reviews, process
mapping in Promapp and business plan reporting in Pulse, Councili's Corporate Planning and
Reporting system
Reviewing the service following regular community consultation as part of ongoing strategic
planning
Council reporting regularly to its community on the results of consultation and how the
council's services have measured up against the best value principles.

G.4.3 Community Engagement

Wellington Shire Council adopted a Community Engagement Policy on 16 August 2017 to support
Council's Community Engagement Strategy 2017-2020.

During 2018-19, the following has been undertaken within Wellington Shire Council to build on
Council's current community engagement approach;
+« An employee advisory group for Community Engagement known as WENDI (Wellington

Engagement Netwark — Direction and Innovation) for colieague support in completing
community engagement activities has been successfully embedded in Council's internal
operations; and
Fifty five Council projects have ufilised Community Engagement plans to seek community
feedhack and participation.
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Dwring the year, Wellington Shire Council has continued improving community engagement practice
to align with all recommendations from the Victorian Auditor Generai's Report (VAGO) '‘Public

Participation and Community Engagement Local Government Sector (released May 2017), and
subsequent legislation changes.

WSC STATUS
RECOMMENDATION

That all Councils:

1. Assess their public parficipation policies and Completed Wellington Engagement
associated resources against the Intemational Strategy and Action
Association for Public Participation (IAP2) model, FPlan
update them as necessary, and promote their use
throughout the Council.

. Build monitoring, reporting and evaluation activiies | Completed WEMNDI Group
into their public participation activities.

. Develop and document comprehensive public Completed Completing Community

participation plans and their outcomes. Engagement Plans for
each project {(Part A, B
C documents)

G.4.4 Carers Recognition

The Carers Recognition Act 2012 (the Act) formally recognises and values the role of carers and the
importance of care refationships in the Victorian community. The Act defines a carer as someone who
provides care to another person and includes carers under the age of 18. Carers can provide care for
a person wha:

«  Has a disability

*  Has a menial ilness

*  Has an ongoing medical condition

* |5 an older person with care needs.
Care relationships aiso include those situations where a person is being cared for in a foster, kinship
or permanent care arrangement.

Within the Carers Recognition Act 2012 Wellington Shire Council is required to report annually on its
care measurement obligations under Section 11 of the Act.

Wellington Shire Council has taken all practicable measures to comply with its responsibilities outlined
in the Act.

Some of the ways Wellington Shire Council supports carers is through:

«  Recognition of Carers through awareness raising activities such as Volunteers and Seniors
Week.

Participation on networks such as Sale and District Aged Care Metwork, Wellington Early Years
Metwork and Wellington Access and Inclusion Advisory Group.
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Projects listed in Council’s Access and Inclusion Plan, Wellington RuralAccess Program, and
Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan, more specifically within the Social Connection and
Inclusion Priority area.

Wellington Shire Council’s funding agreement with Central Gippsland Health and Yarram and
District Health Service, who are the providers of Home and Community Care {HACC) services,
outlines compliance with all legislation.

6.4.5 Contracts

During the year Council did not enter into any contracts valued at 150,000 or more for senvices of
$200,000 or more for works of a kind specified in section 186(5)(a) and (c) of the Act.

It also did not enter into any other contracts valued at $150,000 or more for goods or services or
$200,000 or more for works without engaging in a compeditive process.

6.4.6 Disability Action Plan

The Victorian Disability Act 2006 aims to reaffirm and strengthen the rights and responsibilities of
people with disability, which includes recognising the role that govermment and community support
plays in achieving this. In accordance with section 38 of the Disability Act 2006, as council has
preparaed a Disability Action Plan it must report on the implementation of the Disability Action Plan in
its annual report.

Wellington Shire Council has reviewed and developed the Wellington Access and Inciusion Plan 2017
— 2022 and accompanying action plan which incorporates a Disability Action Plan.

The focus of the strategy and action plans is:

+ Toincrease accessible programs, senvices and events offered or funded by Council

+« Toincrease accessible and inclusive information and communications produced by Council

« Toincrease inclusive employment opportunities at Council for people with disabilities

=  For persons employved at Council to be informed about the access requirements of people with
disahilities
To increase advocacy for improved access and inclusion within the Wellington Shire community.

Over the last 12 months some achievements that have come from the Access and Inclusion Plan
include:
« Accessibility audits of a large number of community managed facilities owned f managed
through Council
- All Level 2 and 3 Halls and Recreation Reserves
- Childcare and Kindergariens
- Senior Citizen's Centres
- MNeighbourhood Houses
Council's capital works program has embedded accessibility audits on outdoor play space
improvemeants.
Council's interview panellist training for those involved in recruiting prospective Council
employees addresses diversity and inclusion in the training.
Reprinting of the Low Cost No Cost Activities guide for Wellington Shire residents.
Aqua Energy facility is registered to provide senvices under the Mational Disability Insurance
Scheme.

Report of Operations Page 98 of 114

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019




6.4.7 Domestic Animal Management Plan

All Councils in Victoria are required to prepare a Domestic Animal Management Plan {DAMP) every
four years. The primary purpose of the DAMP is to provide a strategic guide to the community
towards the goal of responsible pet ownership and to assist Council o achieve a professional,
consistent and proactive approach to domestic animal management.

DAMP 2017-21 was developed hased on the key considerations for:

«  Maintaining qualified and experienced staff

«  Encouraging increased pet registration and compliance, with an emphasis on cats

+  Reducing the number of dog attack incidents by encouraging responsible pet ownership,
increasing safety awarensss around dogs and enforcing legislation
Maintaining continued compliance relating to the keeping of declared menacing, dangerous and
resiricted breed dogs
Reducing the feral cat population and euthanasia rates of unwanted pets
Ensuring Domestic Animal Businesses are identified and regulated
Responding to and investigating animal nuisance complaints in a imely and effective manner
Responding to any emergency involving people and their pets.

In Gctober 2018, a review of the DAMP was conducted to evaluate the implementation of the plan.
Highlights of the review included:

A T.7% increase in cat registrations and 8.75% increase in dog regisirations

Increased monitoning of registered domestic animal businesses

A reduction in the number of serious dog attack incidents

39 Dogs and Puppies seized from an illegal breeding operation and a successful prosecution
involving 155 Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act. Domesfic Animals Act and Local
Govemment Act charges, all proven.

Increased training of Local Laws officers.

6.4.8 Food Act Ministerial Directions

In accordance with Section 7E of the Food Act, 1984, Council did not receive any Ministerial
Directions.

6.4.9 Freedom of Information

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 (the Act) was created to promaie openness, accountability and
transparency in the Yictorian public service by giving the public the right to access government
information.

This general right of access to information is limited only by exceptions and exemptions which have
been prescribed to protect essential public interests, and the private or business affairs of people
ahout whom information is held by the Council.

To access documents under the Freedom of Information Act 1982, a request must he valid’. A valid
request is a request which is in wrting, clearly describes the documents to which access 1s requested
and includes an application fee or evidence that the applicant qualifies for the application fee to he
waived.
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From 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2018, Wellington Shire Council received 13 “valid® Freedom of
Information requesis.

Total number of valid requests received

Qutcomes of Requests

Access granted in full (no exempt material)

Access granted in par (some exempt material)

Access denied in full (2ll material exempt)

Withdrawn

Mo documents

Mot finalised in 2018/ 9 reporting period

Outcomes of requests outstanding from previous reporting period
Released in full

A total of $1143.80 was collected through application fees & access charges in 201819,

Complaintis) received by the Commissioner

Maote: This complaint was withdrawn by the applicant — no further action

Applications for review to the Commissioner

Application to the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT)

Motices served on the agency under Section 12{1)

Disciplinary action taken out against any officer in respect of the administration of this Act.
Qutcomes of reguests outstanding from previous reporting period

Wellingten Shire Council's Freedom of Information Policy is published on Council's website and for
more information regarding freedom of information, please refer to Council's website

woinw wellington vic goy gu or visit the Office of the Victarian Information Commissicner {OVIC)
website www ovic vic.gov.au.

Mrs Mar] Mcinnes, Coordinator Information Management is authorised under Section 26{1) of the
Freadom of information Act 1982 ('FOI Act’) to make decisions in respect of Freedom of Information
requests made to Wellington Shire Council.

The Principal Officer of Council is Mr David Morcom, Chief Executive Officer.

6.4.10 Privacy and Data Protection

Wellington Shire Council is committed to protecting people’s right to privacy and the responsible and
fair handiing of personal information, consistent with the Privacy and Data FProtection Act 2014 and
Health Records Act 2001.

The Privacy & Data Frotection Act 2014 has ten (10) Information Privacy Principles (IFPs) which
govern the collection, use and handling of personal information by Victorian public sector

organisations, local councils and contracted service providers.

Council will only collect, use or disclose personal information where it is necessary to perform Council
functions or when reguired by law.

Council's Privacy & Data Protection Policy is available on our website www wellington. vic.gov.au.
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Mo privacy breaches were recorded against Wellington Shire Council in 2018/19.

Privacy enquiries can be made to Council's Privacy Officer by phoning (03) 5142 3112 or emailing
enquiries@wellington.vic.gov.au.

6.4.11 Protected Disclosure Procedures

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 aims to ensure openness and accountability in government by
encouraging people to disclose improper conduct within the public sector, including Wellington Shire
Council, its employees and Counciliors, and to provide protection for people who make disclosures.

In accordance with Section 69 of the Act, Council must include information in the Annual Report about
how to access procedures established under Part 9 of the Act, and about the number and types of
protected disclosures investigated during the financial year.

Procedures on how to make a disclosure are publicly availahle on Council's website under
Documents Available for Public Inspection.

During the 2018/19 year no disclosures were notified to Council officers appointed to receive
disclosures, or to IBAC.

6.4.12 Road Management Act Ministerial Direction
In accordance with Section 22 of the Road Managemeant Act, 2004, Council must publish a copy or

summary of any Ministerial direction in its annual report. Mo such Ministerial Directions were received
by Council during the financial year,

6.4.13 Infrastructure and development contributions
In accordance with section 46GM and 4600 of the Planning and Environment Act 1987, a Council
that is a collecting or development agency must prepare and give a report to the Minister for Planning

on infrastructure and development contributions including levies and works in kind. The report must
be published in council's annual report. There were no such reports in 201819,
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6.5 Other Operational Information

6.5.1 Grants Distributed

6.5.1.1 Community Assistance Grants 201819

Fifty four {54) applicants were successful in receiving Community Assistance Grants across the
categories: Projects, Events and Facilities, totalling 5242, 290 (details below).

Project Title

Amount
funded

Balook & District Residents Assn

Rainforest Rhythms

$4.070.00

Binary Shift Inc

Binary Shift Conference

4,000.00

Briagolong Community House

Fitm, another piece of the thriving art
community that is Briagolong

4.100.00

Briagolong Mechanics' Institute Hall
ColM

Briagolong Film Festival 2019

$3.000.00

Briagolong Quamy Reserve CoM

Purchase and Installation of 5 picnic
tables and seats

$3,654.00

Bundalaguah Myrtiebank Hall
Committee

Bundalaguah Hall Storage Room

55,000.00

Bundalaguah Myrtlehank Public Hall Inc

The Gippsland Magical Mystery Tour

54.000.00

City of Sale Eisteddfod Society

City of Sale Eisteddfod 72nd year

35,000.00

Coongulla Reserves COM inc

Community NYE in the Park

$2,500.00

CWA Sale Branch

Make it tidier, make it safer, make it
easier

$3.815.00

East Gippsland Dog Obedience Club

Shed/club room extension

$5,000.00

Glenmaggie & District Boat Club

Glenmaggie Cup Championships 2019

54.000.00

Glenmaggie Mechanic's Instifute

20158 Glenmaggie Country Rock Festival

54.000.00

Golden Beach Golf Club Inc

Golden Beach Golf Club Mew Year's Eve
Fireworks Display

£5,000.00

Golden Paradise Beach Residents &
Ratepayers Association

End of Summer Surf Festival 2019

54.800.00

Gormandale Foothall Methall Club

Improvement of club facilities - painting of
clubrooms, change rooms and upstairs
areas

%5,000.00

Heyfield and District Vintage Machinery
Group

Heyfield Vintage Machinery Rally

$5,000.00

Heyfield Traders & Tourism Association

Heyfield Food and Wine Festival

34,000.00
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Hockey Victoria

Gippsiand Bulls Regional Development
Program - Sale

55,000.00

Hyland Community Kindergarten

MNature Play at Hyland Kinder

$5,000.00

Kath Foley Children's Cenfre &
Kindergarien

Outdoor space improvement

$5.000.00

Loch Sport Community House

Loch Sport New Year's Fireworks

$5.000.00

Loch Sport Community House

Community Chairs and Tables and
container storage

$3,492.00

Loch Sport RSL

Keep the RSL Open and Cooking

$5,000.00

Maffra Cricket Club

Scoring Hut-Sun Smart Project

$5.000.00

Mafira Neighbourhood House

Christmas Maovie in the Park

$4.000.00

Maffra Neighbourhood House

Community Indoor Movie Night

$3.070.00

Maffra Tennis Club

Asbestos removal from MLTC's old
swimming hall

$4,333.00

Port Albert Maritime Musesum

Part Albert Maritime Museum information
far alll

$4.191.00

Port Albert Mechanics Institute CoM Inc

Port Albert Hall facility refurbishment and
upgrade works

55,000.00

Port Albert Progress Association

Let's Celehrate Australial

$5,000.00

Rosedale Men's Shed

Rosedale Men's Shed storage container

34 455.00

Rotary Clulb of Sale Central

Monday Tucker

55,000.00

Sale & District Touch Association

207 year Anniversary Sale Touch Knock-
out

$5,000.00

Sale Amateur Baskethall Association

Sale Amateur Baskethall Association
Toumament 2019

$5.000.00

Sale Baptist Church

FREE Community Fun Day

$5,000.00

Sale Field and Game Association Inc

Range Upgrade Project 2019

35,000.00

Sale Fire Brigade

Peter Glover Training Complex upgrade

$5.000.00

Sale Lions Club Inc

Kids Day 2019

34.921.00

Sale Music Festival Committes

The Sale Music Festival: Picnic on the
Green 2019

$5,000.00

Sale Polocrosse Club

Sale Polocrosse Camival 2018

$5.000.00

Sale Swimming Club

Gippsland Swimming Championships
2018

$5,000.00
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Sale-Maffra & District Kennel Clulb

Gippsland International Winter Festival -
All Breeds Championship Dog Shows

$4.,000.00

Stratford on Avon Shakespeare
Association

Shakespeare on the River Festival 2019

£5,000.00

Tarra Festival Committee Inc

20158 Tarra Festivai

£5,000.00

Upper Maffra Mechanics Institute

Improving security and protecting our
community asset

$2,979.00

Veronica Maybury Memorial Rec
Resenve Inc

Upgrade of power, solar, air conditioning

$5,000.00

Wellington Hockey Club

Regional All Ahilities Program

£5,000.00

Wines of East Gippsland

Tinamba Food and Wine Festival

$5,000.00

Woodside & District Football Netball
Club

Woodside & District Football Methall Club
Annual Family Fun Day & Show 'n’ Shine
car Show

$3.,500.00

Woodside & District Foothall Nethall
Club

Methall and Tennis Club Room roof
repairs and restoration

$5,000.00

Woodside Playgroup

Playgroup outdoor play space revamp

$3.,500.00

Yarram Agricultural Society Inc

Yarram Agricuitural Show

$5,000.00

Yarram Eisteddfod Inc

Yarram Eisteddfod 2019

$4,000.00

6.5.1.2 Quick Response Grants 2018/19

Seventy-five (75) applicants were successful in receiving Quick Response Grants, totalling $102,867.

6.5.1.3 Support for community committees

Wellington Shire Council provided $549 233 to support 101 community committees of management in

201819.

6.5.2 Citizenship

During the last year Wellington Shire Council conducted four Citizenship ceremonies, including a
ceremony an Australia Day for new citizens. Throughout the last year we were able to welcome 35
new citizens to our community from 13 different countries. Some of the countries represented include
India, China, Russia, Thailand, Germany, Philippines, Macau and Singapore. All of the new citizens

wera warmly welcomed into our community and we anticipate a similar number in 2019720,

6.5.3 Civic Reception

The foliowing Civic Receptions were held during the 2018/15 year.
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Event’ Civic
Reception

Brief Description

Date or
Month

2019 Australia Day
Awards Luncheaon

A luncheon was held for approximately 95 guests to honour the
winners of the 2019 Wellington Shire Council Citizen of the
Year, Young Citizen of the Year, Community Event of the Year
and Community Group of the Year. This is the seventh year
that the winners, and those who nominated them, have been
recognised with a special luncheon. Numerous communities
and individuals were represented by the nominations which
highlighted the outstanding achisvements of all the volunteers
in our community and the maagnificent contributions that they
make. In many instances, some events would not be possible
without the help of all our great communities, big and small. To
see the quiet achievers and humble people awarded was a
rewarding expenence for all those present.

11
December
2018

Stratfords of the
World Sister Cities
Reunion: Civic
Reception

Every 2 years the towns of Stratford from around the world hold
a reunion and 2018 was an opportunity for Stratford, Yictoria to
host this wonderful event. Approximately 220 guests atiended
our Civic Reception with 67 of those attending from the
Stratfords around the world. The overseas Stratfords
represented included England, Ontario (Canada), Prince
Edward Island (Canada), New Zealand and Connecticut (LI5A).
The evening aiso included a market of stallholders showcasing
local produce, the Waorld Youth Theatre ensemble, a string
quartet from a local secondary college, cultural dancers, host
families and local indigenous representatives. This reception
was a great example of being able to showcase our shire,
tourist attractions, talented youth and local businesses, to our
overseas guests. Multiple compliments were received
indicating this was the best reunion held ever and we look
forward to hosting another reunion in coming years.

5
September
2018

Mew Professionals
Civic Reception

This year the civic reception for Mew FProfessionals attracted
approximately 85 guests and was heild at the Port of Sale. The
guests are new to the Shire within the last year and tertiary
gualified. Cur guest speaker this year was the Managing
Director of Bambach Cables who relocated the company from
metropolitan Sydney to Rosedale in Wellington. Guests were
interested to hear about the challenges, advantages and
forward planning required when undertaking such a huge
relocation and the reasons for choosing the smatler location of
Rosedale. The evening was enjoyed by guests from a range of
occupations such as teachers, doctors, accountants, aged care
workers, real estate agents, forestry workers, engineers and
numerous other occupations. Metworking and meeting
likeminded professionals was a big attraction for many
attendees new to our area, who complimented us on a great
evening.
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6.5.4. Awards received

+ Port of Sale was the winner of two architecture awards at the 2019 Victorian Architecture
Awards - 2019 Architecture Award and Public Architecture; and the 2019 Regional Prize. The
judges said '...the support of an engaged client and collaborative community process, enabled
the architect to transform a dark, interior focused building to one filled with light and connected
to its local context. Major inferventions largely retained and celebrated the existing late
Modemist-Brutalist building, by Stephenson and Turner while improving its visual links to the
port and its purposeful sense of community identity and ownership. Careful and efficient
planning has resulted in a highty active civic hub with programmatically clear connections and
a sense of spatial generosity. The Port of Sale demonstrates that the careful revitalisation of
facilities, can uplift their value and conftribute to betier regional spaces.”

Regional Roads Victoria Awards - Wellington Shire Council received the Local Government
[nitiatives Award for embedding road safety into Local Government operations, strategies and
plans.

Mic Hall, Manager Leisure Senvices, awarded Life Membership with Aguatics and Recreation
Victoria (one of two peak bodies for aquatics) for his distinguished senvice to the industry.

Wellington Access & Inclusion Advisory Group Chair, James Griffiths, was named as an
Emerging Leader finalist for the Victorian Disability Sector Awards.

Youth Councillor and Maffra Secondary student, Ivan Reyes, was selected as one of 36
Heywire Competition winners (for dance) from across Australia. Heywire Competition winners
attend the Heywire Reqgional Youth Summit in Canberra to develop ideas o improve regional
Australia for young people.

6.5.5 Advocacy

| Love Kinder campaign supported pushing for Australian Govermment fo pledge to continue its
funding for 4-year-old kindergarien.

Watch Around Water community awareness building campaign undertaken at Aqua Energy
aguatic centre and outdoor pools.

Sale Bus Route Review advocacy with Victorian Government to include redeveloped and
future public infrastructure at the Port of Sale, growth areas and rural connections.

Council and Youth Council advocated for funding towards a Headspace centre to be located in
Wellington. Headspace cenfres act as a one-stop-shop for young people who need help with
mental health, physical health, alcohol and other drugs or work and study support.

Council advocated to the Victorian Government to renew its commitment to Victorians with
disahilities and continue to fund the unigue Building Inclusive Communities program untii the
impacts of the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) are known. Wellington shire is
amonagst the final set of areas to transition to the NDIS.

Council advocated for the Victorian Government to urgently address the adverse findings
contained in the Victorian Auditor General's Office report "Follow Up of Oversight and
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Accountability of Committees of Managemeant’ aiming to increase support to volunteer
community committees of managemeant for public land and buildings.

6.5.6 Youth Events and Achievements

Wellington Shire Council suppaorts the Wellington Youth Services Network and three youth groups:
« ‘Wellington Shire Youth Council (youth leadership);
« OPAL {an LGBTICQ+ youth group); and
« Propellor (music focus with the support of FReeZA which is a Victorian Government- funded
program providing opportunities for drug and alcohol-free events for local young people)

201815 youth events run by these networks and groups included:

* Down the Alley battle of the hands

* Open Mic Nights

* FReeZA events

* (n Board: Skate Deck Ant competifion and associated workshops in partnership with the
Gippsiand Art Galleny
Upswing youth mental health festival
Inaugural Wellington Youth Film Festival
2&A [ Meet the Candidates sessions with candidates for the Victorian and Australian
Govemment elections
Colours of the World colour run cultural diversity event (Wellington's Youth Week opening
event)
Youth Week acfivities including a YMCA skate competition and Solve it in Sale speed cubing
event which brought 100 entrants and their families from across the siate to Sale for a
weekend.

« Inaugural Wellington Youth Awards with 18 nominations across eight fields.

Councii provided many opportunities for youth to improve their skills or otherwise benefit the growth
and confidence of our young people:

First Aid

Tech for Good

Project Managemeant

Young Change Agents social enterprise pilot program

VicSRY student voice workshops

Ask lzzy consultations.

Council assisted young people to deliver 20+ events across the shire. 86 young people have been
directly involved in organising and presentation of these events and activities.

852 young people directly entered in Council-supported youth events, programs and activities and
over 1500 additional people have enjoyed these events as attendees.

6.5.7 Bushfires and Emergency Management - January to April 2019

« ‘Wellington Shire experienced bushfires from January to April 2019, During this time three
major fires occurred: Rosedale South bushfire; Walhalla-Stoney Creek Track Bushfire; and
several fires between Licola and Dargo which joined to become the Licola-Mt Margaret Track
bushfire.

The Rosedale South bushfire staried on 4 January 2019 and burnt approximately 10,000
hactares of Holey Plains State Park and 2000 ha of privately-owned plantation timber. The
state park was extensively damaged with peat fires continuing to bum for some months after

the fire was brought under control.
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Starting on 30 January 2019, the Walhalla-Stoney Creek Track bushfire burnt over 3,000
hectares east of Walhalla and approached Cowwarr hefore being brought under control. There
were some buildings lost around the Wathalla township however most of the fire was in state
forest or national park.

Around 28 February 2019, dozens of lightning strikes started fires between Licola and
Dargo. These fires eventually merged to become the Licola-Mt Margaret bushfire and the
Hibemia-Black Snake Creek bushfire which covered over 80,000 ha coming within two
kilometres of the Dargo township.

During these fires, Wellington Shire Council opened its Emergency Relief Centre (ERC) on six
occasions to support people who were advised to leave their homes as bushfires approached.
Council suppored community information meetings including provision of live streaming via
social media to maximise communications of response agencies' messaging.

Once fires were brought under control, Council was heavily involved in recovery activities
including supporting a YVictorian Government program fo clean water tanks contaminated by
ash from the fires. Council provided recovery information and suppornt through a series of “Pop
Up Recovery Centres” drop in sessions in the communities most affected by bushfires where
Council recovery staff and other community support agencies were available to provide
support, information and referrals.

On-going recovery activities will continue into the second half of 2019 with a Recovery Officer
employed to follow up any contacts with council during the fires to ensure that affected
community members have access to appropriate advice and services as well as support
improvements to emergency relief and recovery processes jidentified during the campaign.

6.5.8 Grants Received

» Local Government Victoria allocated a grant of $4.5M from the Rural Councils Transformation
Program, to four of the Gippstand Councils to begin work on planning for the shared senvices
opportunity.

Cameron Stadium Redevelopment (Victorian Government — 33M Better Stadiums, 1M
Latrobe Valley Authonty)

Stephenson Park Changeroom Redevelopment (Victonan Govemment - 5800k Community
Sports Infrastructurs Fund Majors)

Stratford Recreation Reserve Changeroom Redevelopment (Victorian Government - 3500k
Female Friendly Facilities)

Pine Lodge — Tennis Court Redevelopment (Victorian Government - 3250k Community Sports
Infrasfructure Fund Minors)

Briagolong Recreation Reserve Pavilion Redevelopment (Federal Government - $250k
Community Sports Infrastructure Grant)

Three years of FReeA program funding, which is a Victorian Govemment- funded program
providing opportunities for drug and alcohol-free events for local young people (Victorian
Govermment)

Safer Together program funding of 350,350 for strategic, nsk-based roadside vegetation
management pilot project in Briagolong (Victorian Govemment)

$15,000 from Creative Victoria to bring the entire Gippsland Art Gallery collection of over
2,000 artworks online and searchahle through the wehbsite.
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$15,000 received from Creative Victoria's Engaging Audiences Program to fund a pari-time
Indigenous Engagement Officer at the Gippsland Art Gallery.

Department of Environment Land, Water and Planning provided $320,997 for the Public
Libraries Funding Program.

§8,705 received from Depariment of Environment Land, Water and Planning for the Premier's
Reading Challenge.

Creative Victoria provided operational funding through the Regional Partnerships Program of
595,000 to both the Wedge and the Gippsland Art Gallery.

$23,100 subsidy from Depariment of Education for Gippsland Art Gallery for the Education
Dfficer.

Received $2,000 for the 2019 Victorian Youth Week to deliver the Coloured Up project.
§15,000 from VicHealth — This Girl Can promotion April to June 2019 (Gippy Girl Can}.

§24 500 from Department of Health and Human Services — Youth Freeza events

$114,000 from VicRoads — L2P Leamer Driver Mentor Program

$57 440 from Commonwealth Home Support Program — Senior Citizens Centres.

$137,034 from National Disahility Insurance Scheme, Independent Living Centres Australia
and Depariment of Health and Human Services for Rural Access.

$10,000 from VicHealth, Walk to School.

$27 415 from VicRoads, Community Road Safety Grant

$15,000 from Transport Accident Commission (TAC) for Road Safety Program.

$49 500 from Department of Justice and Community Safety, Bushfire Recovery.

Fixing Country Roads Program — Johnsons Road - 650,000

Fixing Country Roads Program — Balloong Road - $1.140,000.

Federal Blackspot Program — Freestone Creek Road - $121,031.

Federal Blackspot Program — Sale — Toongahhie Road - $620,201

6.5.9 Council Managed Recreational Facilities

6.5.9.1 The Wedge Performances

The Wedge entertainment centre is a contemporary hub for performing arts and enterfainment
complete with theatre, versatile meeting rooms and modem café. The following summary
demonsirates the breadth and diversity of performing catered for af this facility during 2018/19.

Type

Event Name

Musical Theatre

Marina Prior in Concert with David Cameron

Comedy

Melhourne Intemational Comedy Festival Roadshow 2018

Opera

Madame Butterfly Opera Australia

Musical Theatre

‘Showstoppers’ Sale Theatre Company

Tribute

Retum of the Bnts

Contemporary Music

A Taste of Tamwaorth

Tribute

Echoes of Pink Floyd

Play

Hell Ship The Journey of the Ticonderoga

Tribute

‘One Night With You® An Intimate Evening with Eivis & Tom

Play

Always Patsy Cline
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Classical Music Catalano Memorial Concert Stratford Sister Cities Event

Childrens/Family Theatre | Yo Diddle Diddie!

Play Mursery Rhyme Lane Maffra Primary School

Contemporary Music Music & More

Play Sale College George Orwell's Animal Farm

Film Loving Vincent Friends of the Gallery Event

Comedy Kevin Bloody Wilson The Almost Awesome Tour

Play Macbheth Australian Shakespeare Company

Children'sfFamily Theatre | The Gruffalo

Contemporary Music Fock Through the Ages Volume I

Classical Music Gippsland Grammar Spring Concert

External Event Sale College Gala

Tribute Sinatra at The Sands Tom Burlinson

Tribute Roy Orhison & Johnny Cash In Concert

Classical Music The Last Night of the Proms 2018 Sale City Band

Contemporary Music fan Moss Mational Theatre Tour

Tribute The Songs & Tales of Angry Old Men

Tribute Oilivia - Magic!

Comedy Menopause the Musical Women on Fire

Classical Music Gippsland Symphony Orchestra Peter & the Waolf

Tribute The Robbie Williams Story with Kylie Minogue

Contemporary Music Faul Grabowsky & Vince Jones Provenance

Play On Qur Selection Sale Theatre Company

Opera Esso Night at the Opera Free Community Concert

Comedy Peter Rowsthom & Fiona O'Laughlin Ron & Brenda Go Country

Dance Leaps and Bounds 2018 FASHION

Contemporary Music Christmas & All That Jazz

Comedy Melhourme Comedy Festival - Yarmam

Tribute Sam Cooke

Special Event Season Launch 2019

Play Macheth
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Play

Romeo & Juliet Presented by Kilmany Park

Contemporary Music

Boys in the Band Jukebox Revolution

Musical Theaftre

Marina Prior & David Hobson The 2 of Us

Children's/Family Theatre

Room on the Broom

Musical Theafre

The Complete Works of Gilbert & Sullivan

Classical Music

Gippsland Symphony Orchestra Brahms, Bruch & Beethoven

Dance

A Taste of Ireland The Irish Music & Dance Sensation

Physical Theatre

By a Thread

Children's/Family Thealre

The Real Dinosaurs

Tribute

Robenson Brothers 60's Variety Show

External Event

Glory Days The Boss Experience

Tribute

The Meill Diamond Super Hits Show 25th year Anniversary Tour

Circus

Circus Oz Workshop

External Event

Gippsland Grammar Autumn Concert 2015

Classical Music

Ceiltic Reflections Through the Ages

External Event

Foman Rudnytsky Pianistic Kaleidoscope

Circus

Circus Oz Precarious

Play

Much Ado About... Beatrice & Benedick

Contemporary Music

Canned Heat On the Road Again

Contemporary Music

Foster & Allen

External Event

Ceiltic Reflections Through the Ages

Contemporary Music

Michael Waugh Dairy Farmers Son

External Event

Mac & Cheese Catholic College Sale

Tribute

The Bob Dylan & Tom Petty Show True Confessions Revisited

Dance

Alice in Wonderland Melbourne City Ballet

Tribute

Across the Universe The Complete Beatles

Contemporary Music

Toni Childs Retrospective

Musical Theafre

Puttin’ Gn The Riz

Play

Hallowed Ground

Tribute

Johnny Cash Live Danigl Thompson San Quentin 50 years on

Classical Music

Grigoryan Brothers Songs Without Words
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External Event Central Gippsland Tourism Business Awards

External Event Latrobe Chorale Tutti’ Opera for All

6.9.9.2 Gippsland Art Gallery Exhibition program

Gippsiand Art Gailery is home to Gippsland's most comprehensive collection of art and hosts a
diverse and dynamic range of exhibitions and visitor programs. The following summary demonstrates
the breadth and diversity of visual arts offered at this venue during 2018/19.

Tvpe Exhibition Name

FPainting, F'rimmakﬁng, Drawing, sculpture, The Gippsland Collection
textiles, ceramics, woodwaork, craft and
design

Painting and Drawing The Esso Collection of Australian Art

Photography The Dreamers: Palliative Care Victoria

Textile, Drawing, Craft and Design The Art of Annemieke Mein (exhibition 1)

Installation Leonie Ryan: Invisible Tendrils

Painting Pat Waters: The Infinite Well - A Retrospective

Fainting Frank Mesaric: The Ashes of Children

Children's art Hyland Kinder & 5t Thomas's Primary

Painting, Drawing, Sculpture, Jewellery Call of the Wild (group exhibition)

Youth art 2018 Wellington Youth Art Prize

Painting, Sculpture The Art of the George Gray Cenfre

Painting, Sculpture Michelle Molinari: Posthumous Tableaux

Children's art St Columbus Kinder & East Sale Kinder

Sculpture Jacque Savage

Painting, Drawing Peter Gardiner. Event Horizon

Painting, Sculpture Steaphan Paton: Gunailand

Painting, mixed media Guiding Lights: Gippsland Art Gallery Guides

Children's art Cluesn Street Kinder & Longford Kinder

Painting, Sculpture On Board: Skateboard Art Exhibition

Painting Emma Heames

Children's art Gippsiand Grammar School - 5t Anne's

FPainting, Drawing Kevin Lincaln: Impressions of Gippsland
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Painting DOr Aunty Eileen Harrison: Connections to Country

Painting 2018 John Leslie Art Prize

Children's art Boisdale Consolidated Schoal

Textile, [ﬁrawing, Craft and Design The Art of Annemieke Mein {exhibition 2)

Painting, Craft, Sculpture, Photography Homeground: Kurec Family Exhibition

Children's art Maffra Primary School

Sculpture, Drawing Cameron Robbins: Sofar Loggerheads

Textile Ann Greenwood: The Peacock's Garden

Children's art 5t Mary's Primary School

Painting, Drawing, Sculpture, Multimedia Kevin Morensen: The Alchemist

Painting, Sculpfure A Fine Romance {Realism Group Exhibition)

Photography Jeff Carter: Kilmany Park Boys Home

Children's ant Gallery Geckos Summer Holidays program

Painting, Sculpfure The John Leslie Gifi

Painting Matthew Thomas: On Edge

Textile, [ﬁrawing, Craft and Design The Art of Annemieke Mein (exhibition 3)

Photography Jeff Carter: Kilmany Park Boys Home

Sculpture Anthea Wiilliams

Photography, Pn'htm:ahing, Painting Echo: Lesley Duxbury - A Sumvey

Printmaking The Enchanted: Odilon Redon, Master Prints

Painting Matthew Thomas: On Edge

Children's ant Gwenfa Hampton Kinder

Sculpture Christopher Miller

Photography, Installation Joanne Scicluna: Where the Land Lies

Children's art Guthridge Primary School

Painting Allan Fox: Good Vibrations

Printmaking Heather Shimmen: The Ladies of the Pleiades

Ceramics and Painting Margret Booth & Angeia Thomas: Insight

Painting, Sculpture The Art of the George Gray Cenire

Painting, Craft, Sculpture, Photography Baw Baw Arts Alliance
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FPainting, Sculpture, Printmaking, Stories from the Collection
Photography

Children's art Gumnuts Kinder

6.5.9.3 Aqua Energy

Agua Energy Leisure Centre offers a varety of dynamic fitness options and leisure facilities for users
of alt ages and abilities. The following programs were held at Aqua Energy during 2018/15:

30 in 30 Group Fitness Challenge — 437 participants, 8 compieted the challenge.

20 Workouts in 30 Days Challenge — 4500 attendances, 45 registered participants, 34
completed the challenge.

Teen Gym sessions — 362 sessions with 1275 attendances, providing fun, age-appropriate
fitness training te young people.

Living Longer Living Stronger sessions — 723 sessions with 6102 attendances, supporting
alder community members to remain physically active.

Premiers Active &pnl - 60 additional participation visits recorded for the month facilitating
physical activities for improved community wellbheing.

Gippy Girls Can — 23 participants in Group Fitness classes offered promoting female physical
activity.

Christmas Group Fitness Challenge — 310 parficipants, 16 registered. Of the 16 registered, &
were confirmed winners, of the 310 paricipants 6 were drawn in raffle style for paricipation
prizes.

(.5.9.4 Gippsland Regional Sports Complex (GRSC)

A wide range of team sports and social programs were held at the Gippsland Regional Sporis
Complex (GRSC) in Sale during 2018/19.

‘Tiny Dribblers’ baskethall program {(age 3-6)

‘Tiny Stars’ soccer program (age 4-46)

Futsal (social soccer) — juniors, men's and mized adults
Social mixed netball

Social hockey — juniors and mixed adults

Social basketball — men’s and women's

Jumping castles — school holidays
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Performance Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Description of municipality

Wellington Shire is the third largest municipality in Yictoria, covering an area of 10,924 square

kilometres in Central Gippsland, and includes the internationally significant Gippsland Lakes and
Wetlands and the Ninety Mile Beach.

With an estimated population of 44,015%* Wellington Shire Council comprises a wide varigty of industry

and business contributing fo the local economy including mining, offshore oil and gas extraction,

primary production and agriculture, tourism and senvice industries, manufacturing and construction,
retail, healthcare, education, arts and recreation and community services. In addition, RAAF Base
East Sale is a major air and ground training base and home to the famous Roulettes, Central Flying
School, the Officers” Training School and the schools of Air Warfare and Air Traffic Control.

Between January to April 2019, council experienced three major bushfires and several small fires

across the municipality. Extensive emergency management works were required to bring fires under
control and council was heavily involved in recovery and suppont activities.

*Australian Bureau of Statistics- Catalogue 3218.0 Population Estimates by Local Government Area
— Released 27 March 2019
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Results
indicator 2016 2017 2018 2019 Material Variations
measure
Fopulation
Expenses per head of BIFIT79 $181475 5208252 £1,850.74 A one-off adjustment for landfill rehabilitation spiked the 201718
municipal popuwlation result, with 201819 result returming to the longer-term trend.
[Total expenses |
Municipal population]

infrastructure per head of $19,099.08 3S1792045 §$1748648 51713794 Wellington Shire Council's infrastructure was valued at 5754 million
municipal population during the 201815 financial year. That equates to a total value of
[Value of infrastructure / $17 137 84 infrastructure per head of the municipality's population.
Municipal population]

Fopulation density per There are 3,115km of sealed and unsealed local roads for an
length of road estimated municipal population of 44,019 within Wellington Shire.
[Municipal population /

Kilometres of local roads)

Own-s0urce revenue

Own-source revenue per $147559 $1,563.36 $1.66530  $1,680.64 Additional own source revenue received in 201819 included revenue
head of municipal from supplementary rates and a full year operations of the Gippsland
popiiation Regional Livestock Exchange.

[Own-source revenue /

Municipal population]

Recurrent grants

Recurmrent grants per head Additional Financial Assistance Grants for 201815 was received,
of municipal population resulting in a minor increase in the indicator.

[Recurrent grants /

Municipal population]
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Results
Indicaror 2017 2018 Material Variations
measure
Disadvantage
Relative socio-economic The Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) index of relative socio-
disadvantage economic disadvantage indicates that one is the most disadvantaged
[Index of Relative Socio- and ten is the least disadvantaged. Wellington Shire's result is four
economic Disadvantage within Victoria.
by decilg] Reported index in 201718 was five within Australia and four within

Yictoria which is identical fo 2018/M9 result.

Definitions

"adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b} non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those refermed to above

“‘infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and eguipment excluding land

"local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004
"population” means the resident population estimated by council

"own-source revenug” means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government
grants)

"relative socic-economic disadvantage”, in relation to a municipality, means the relative socic-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for
the relevant financial year, of the area in which the municipality is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage
(Catalogue Mumber 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA

"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Infernet website
"unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Service Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Results

Service/indicator 2016 2017

NMeasure

2018 2019

Material Variations

Aquatic facilities

Uilisation

Litiisation of aguatic faciliies
[Mumber of visits to aquatic
facilities / Municipal population]

The combined number of visits recorded at Council's indoor and outdoor aquatic
faciliies during 2018/159 was 251,892 This equates to an average of over 5.7
aquatic facility visits, per Wellington Shire resident, for the year. Improvements in
promotion and advertising including a dedicated Aqua Energy website, improved
Facehook profile have contributed to the steady increase in ufilisation during last four
Years.

Animal management
Health and safery

Animal management
prosecutions

[Mumber of successful animal
management prosecutions]

Wellington Shire Council undertook & direct animal management prosecutions during
2018M9. Of note was one illegal dog breeding prosecution involving 155 charges
against the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act and Domestic Animals Act. The
other matters related to serious dog attacks, mainly dog vs dog or dog vs livestock.

Food safety

Health and safery

Critical and major non-
compliance notifications
[Mumber of critical non-
compliance notifications and
major non-compliance
notifications about a food
premises followed up § Mumber
of critical non-compliance
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about
food premises] x100

100% 100%

571% 1%

During 2018 calendar year, Council recorded a total of thirty four critical and major
non-compliance notifications for food premises and followed up thirty two of these
which is a significant improvement from last year.
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Results

Service/indicaror 2016 2017

NMeasure

2018

Material Variations

Governance

Sarisfaction

Satisfaction with council
decisions

[Community satisfaction rating
out of 100 with how council has
performed in making decisions
in the interest of the
community]

Council's participation in the 2019 Community Satisfaction Survey showed no
change in community satisfaction rating with the way Council has performed in
making decisions in the interests of the community. Council has performed six points
higher than large rural average and three points higher compared to state-wide
average.

Home and community care
FParticipation

Farticipation in HACC senvice
[Mumber of people that
received a HACC senvice /
Municipal target population for
HACC services] x100

N/A

Farticipation

Farticipation in HACC senvice
by CALD people

[Mumber of CALD people who
receive a HACC service /
Municipal target population in
relation to CALD people for
HACC sernvices] x100

The Wellington Shire council is not directly responsible for the delivery of Home and
community care service, so there is no perfformance data available for these
indicators.

The Wellington Shire council is not directly responsible for the delivery of Home and
community care service, so there is no perfformance data available for these
indicators.

Libraries

Participartion

Active library members
[Mumber of active library
members / Municipal
population] x100

13.42% 13.62%

13.82%

14.11%

Libraries are also one of our fop performing service areas according to the 2019
Community Satisfaction Survey. Wellington Shire Libraries offer a broad range of
popular programs including author talks, baby rhyme fimes, toddler Storytime and
school holiday programs. These are well atiended and open to all residents within
the Shire. Council continues to actively promote Library services to all sectors of the
community, resulting in an increase in active library membership.
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Results

Service/indicaror 2017 2018 2019
Measure

Material Variations

Maternal and child health
Participation

FParticipation in the MCH
Sernvice

[Mumber of children who attend
the MCH service at least once
(in the year) / Number of
children enrolled in the MCH
senvice] x100

Participation

Farticipation in the MCH
senvice by Abariginal children
[Mumber of Aboriginal children
who attend the MCH service at
least once (in the year) f
Number of Aboriginal children
enrolled in the MCH service]
x100

The Wellington Shire council is not directly responsible for the delivery of Home and
community care service, so there is no performance data available for these
indicators.

The Wellington Shire council is not directly responsible for the delivery of Home and
community care service, so there is no performance data available for these
indicators.

Roads

Sarisfaction

Satisfaction with sealed local
roads

[Community satisfaction rafing
out of 100 with how council has
performed on the condition of
sealed local roads]

Results from the 2019 Community Satisfaction Survey show no change in residents’
satisfaction rating for Wellington Shire’s sealed local roads. This Is 9 points higher
than the average for similar large rural councils. Council is responsible for a road
network of 3, 115km, where 1 523km are sealed and 1,552km unsealed.
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Results
Service/indicator 2007 2018 2019 Material Variations
Measure
Statutory Planning
Decision making
Council planning decisions 100% 50% 100% Only one planning decision was appealed at VCAT during 2018/19, with Council's
upheld at VCAT decision being upheld by VCAT.
[Mumber of WCAT decisions
that did not set aside council's
decision in relation to a
planning application / Number
of VCAT decisions in relation to
planning applications] x100

Waste Collection

Waste diversion

Kerbside collection waste 3210% 3292% 3355%% 3571% More than 3,800 tonnes of recyclable material diverted from [andfill in 2018M9 which
diverted from fandfill is @ 10% increase compared to 2017718, That's an average of 200kg of recyclables

[Weight of recyclables and per collection household in Wellington Shire. Wellington Shire Council does not
green onganics collected from currently have a kerbside green waste collection service in place limiting the
kerhside bins / Weight of diversion rate percentage under this category.

garbage, recyclables and

green organics collected from

kerhside bins] x100

Parformance Statement Page 8 of 16
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Definitions

"Aboriginal child” means a child who is an Abonginal person

"Sboriginal person” has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

"active library member” means a member of a library who has bormmowed a book from the library

"annual report” means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

“CALD" means Culturally and Linguistically Diverse and refers to persons bom outside Australia in a country whose national language is naot
English

“class 1 food premises”™ means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1 food premises
under section 19C of that Act

“class 2 food premises™ means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1884, that have been declared as class 2 food premises
under section 19C of that Act

"Community Care Common Standards "means the Community Care Common Standards for the delivery of HACC services, published from time
to time by the Commonwealth

“critical non-compliance outcome notification” means a notification received by council under section 19M (3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or
advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

"food premises” has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

"HACC program”™ means the Home and Community Care program established under the Agreement entered into for the purpose of the Home
and Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth

"HACC sernvice” means home help, personal care or community respite provided under the HACC program

"local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004
"major non-compliance outcome notification” means a notification received by a council under section 19M(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or
advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health
but may do so if no remedial action is taken

"MCH" means the Matemal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the
municipality from birth until school age

"population” means the resident population estimated by council

"target population” has the same meaning as in the Agreement entered into for the purposes of the Home and Community Care Act 1985 of the
Commonwealth

"“WiorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident” means an incident relating to a council aguatic facility that is required to be notified to the
Yictorian WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the Occupafional Health and Safety Act 2004.
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Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019




Financial Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Results

Dimension/indicator 2016 2017
Measure

Material Variations

Revenue level

Average residential rate per

residential property

assessment

[Residential rate revenue / SATTET 3127823 5133057 5137108
Number of residential

property assessments]

1457099 5147960 35149714

There has been a small
increass in residential
assessment in 201819
compared to 201718
resulting in additional rates
and charges. Fuiure years
are impacted by the increase
in charges for 202021 and
rate capping.

Expenditure fevel

Expenses per properfy

assessment $210393 5234422 5274691 3246831
[Total expenses { Number

of property assessments]

$2763.94 §275845

201718 included several
large one-off accounting
3272049 entries associated with
partial asset write offs and
additional landfill
rehabilitation expense
resulting in a higher
measure. Fufure years
expenditure is impacted by
provision of landfill expense
to meet EPA requirements
and increased depreciation.

Workforce turnover

Resignations and

terminations compared fo 13.14% 9.92% 13.86%
average staff

Number of parmanent sfaff

resignations and

terminations / Average

number of parmanent staff

for the financial year] x100

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019

There was a spike in
resignations and

11.00%  terminations in 2017718 due
to higher number of
planned retirements and
long serving staff moving on
to seek other opportunities.
But 201819 figure is mare
comparable with long tem
average for this measure
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Dimension/indicaror
Measure

Forecasts

2021 2022

Material Variations

which is approximately
11%. Mo significant change
in staff numbers are
anticipated based on
current organisational
sinuciure.

Liquidity

Working capital

Current assefs compared to
current liabilities

[Current assats [ Current
liahilities] x100

382.82%

416.15%

520.21%

375.15% 369 .86%

371.83%

Councils liquidity in 201819
and 201%20 is impactad by
Yictoria Grants Commission
advance payments being
received. The measure
from 2020021 will remain
relatively stable with
Council maintaining a
healthy cash balance.

Unrestricted cash
Unrestricted cash
compared fo current
liabilities

[Unresiricted cash / Current
lizhilities] x100

-71.49%

169.41%

250.59% 197.18% 176.36%

The reduction in the
measure in 2018M1%is
mainly due to a higher level
of grant funding (restricted
funds) received in late
201819 which will be
expended in 2018/20.
Council level of unrestricted
cash will peak in 2019720
and gradually reduce over
the next three years as
Council continues to fund
an extensive capital works
program with minimal
bomowings.

Asser renewal

Asset renewal comparad to
depreciation

[Asset renewal expenses /
Asset depreciation] x100

80.21%

94 65%

105.02% 99.48%

The slight increase in this
measure for 201819 is
mainly due to significant
projects completed in
201819 such as the West

FPerformance Statement Fage 11 of 16
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Dimension/indicator
AMeasure

Forecasts

2021 2022

Material Variations

Sale Airport Runway
Extension. Flanned renewal
works in future years will
remain steady except for
2020621 where some major
renewal projects will be
completed.

Loans and borrowings
Loans and bormowings
compared fo rates
[Interest bearing loans and
horrowings / Rate revenug)
*100

19.61%

15.62%

13.10%

12.43%

14.06% 14.72%

The minor reduction in this
measure results from the
deferral of 201819
proposed borrowings. The
measure after 2019720 will
increase slightly due to the
expecied increase in rate
revenue, while fufure years
bomowings are expected to
remain relatively stable.

Loans and borrowings
Loans and bormowings
repayments compared to
rates

[Interest and principal
repayments on interest
hearing loans and
hormowings / Rate revenueg)
x100

3.60%

1.89% 2.21%

The measure in 2019/20
will spike as Council repays
an interest only loan. During
the remaining years, the
measure will increase
marginally as future loan
bomowings are repaid.

Indebredness
Non-current iabilities
compared fo own source
revente

[Mon-curment liabilities /
Owin source revenue] x100

17.40%

18.79%

33.68%

25.80%

28.49% 25.79% 27 11%

The reduction in the
measure results from the
reclassification of non-
current borrowings to
current borrowings
associated with the planned
repayment of a $6 million
loan in 20159720 In future

Performance Statement Page 12 of 16
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Dimension/indicator
Measure

Material Variations

this measure will vary as
Council continues to
complete landiill
rehabilitation works which
will impact on non- current
landfill provision balance

Operating position
Adjusted underiying
result

Adivsted undenlying surpius
(or deficit)

[Adjusted underlying
surplus (deficity Adjusted
underying revenue] x100

16.82%

261%

5.79%

The increase in this
measure is hasically due to
the impact of early receipt
of 2014920 funds in 201819
including 201920 Victoria
Grants Commission
advance and funding for the
Gippsland Shared Services
project and lower
expendiure compared to
201718, The early receipt
of 201819 funds will also

impact on the 201920
results.

Stability

Rartes concentration
Rates compared to
adjusted underying
revenue

[Rate revenue [ Adjusted
underlying revenue] x100

69.10%

59.25%

64.29%

68.40%

67.39%

Comparad to 201718,
additional grant income has
been received, resulting in
a decrease in this measure.
In future the measure is
expected to increase
slightly due to projected
increase in rate revenue.

Rares effort

Fates compared o property
values

[Rate revenue [ Capital
improved value of rateable
properties in the
municipality] x100

0.54%

This measure is forecasted
to remain steady over the
next four years, consistent
with past trends.
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Definitions

"adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b} non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above

"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)” means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure

"asset renewal expenditure” means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that retums the service capability of the asset
to its original capahility

“cument assets” has the same meaning as in the Australian Account Standards (AAS)

"current liahilities™ has the same meaning as in the AAS

“non-current assets” means all assets other than cument assets

"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilities

“non-recurrent grant™ means a grant chiained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expecied to be recelved again
during the perod covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan

"own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council {(including govemment grants
"population "means the resident population estimated by council

“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, senvice rates and service charges

"recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant

"residential rates” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties
"restricted cash” means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other than for a purpose for which it
is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year

"unresfricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Other Information
For the year ended 30 June 2019

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report.
The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity,
service performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a
description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results.
This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Govermnment Act
1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Where applicable the results in the pefomance statement have been prepared on
accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other
results are based on information drawn from council information systems or from third
parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the
prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the
council's strategic resource plan. The Local Govemment (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 reguires explanation of any material variations in the results contained in
the performance statement. Council has adopted materality thresholds relevant to each
indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the
maternality thresholds unless the varnance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in
its strategic resource plan on 4 June 2019 and which forms part of the council plan. The
sirategic resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that
were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long
term. Detailed information cn the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose
Financial Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting council.
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WELLINGTON

e e
Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance
with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Govemment (Flanning and Reporting)
Fegulations 2014,

/-

lan Camoll CPA
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated: 19/09/2019

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Wellington Shire Council for
the year ended 30 June 2019 presents fairly the results of council's performance in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Govemment (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and
results in relation to senvice performance, financial performance and sustainable capaciy.

Atthe date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any
particulars in the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the counci and by the Local Government (Planning and
Reparting) Regulations 2014 to cerify this performance staterment in its final form.

( 'Eg-ﬁwﬁfb“‘”"

Alan Hall Garry Stephens
Mayor Councillor
Dated: 19/0%2019 Dated: 19/09/2019

h—

David Morcom
ChiefExecutive Officer

Dated: 15/09/2019

Sale Service Cenire 18 Desad ly Street (PO BOK 506}, Sake WC 3850 Telephone 1300 366 244
Yarram Service Centre 156 (want Stest Yaram VIC 3971 Telephone (03] 5182 5100
Web waromelbngDnvic govau  Emall enguines i elin glon wic goe 3u
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VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Auditor-General's Office

To the Councillors of Wellington Shire Council

Opinion 1 have audited the accompanying performance statement of Wellington Shire
Council {the council) which comprises the:

- description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2018

- sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019

- service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2015
financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019
other information for the year ended 30 June 2019 (basis of
preparation)

- certification of the performance statemenit.

In my opinion, the performance statement presents fairly, in all material
respects, the perfermance of the council for the year ended 30 June 2019, in
accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989,

Basis for Opinion 1 have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auvditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Performance Statement section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and |
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria. My staff and | have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion.

Councillors" The Coundillors of the coundil are responsible for the preparation and fair

responsibilities for the  presentation of the performance statement in accordance with the

performance performance reporting requirements of the Local Government Act 1989, and

statement for such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation and fair presentation of the statement of performance that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's As reguired by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
responsibilities for the  ©n the performance statement based on the audit My objectives for the audit
audit of the are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
performance statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
statement fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance

Lewel 31 / 35 Colling Street, Melbourme Yic 3000
T 03 86071 7000 enquiries@oudit vic.gov.ay  www,.ouditvic.gov.ou
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Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance
statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

* identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
performance statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
abtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
arder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council’s internal control
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether the
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

MELBOURME } ywelidis
23 September 2019 as delegote for the Auditor-Gi ! af Victoria
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WELLINGTON

SHIRE COUNCIL
e Heerd af Gipgitand

Certification of the Financial Statements

Iy apinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in acoardance with e Local Govammant At 1589, the Local Gewerrmnt (Planmng and
Raporting) Reguleions 2014, Ausiraian Accountng Standands and other mandatory professional reponing raquinmesnts

I pur opireon e accompanying financial sialements presant tary S Anancial ransactions of Walington Shire Counel for the year snded 30 ee 2019 and the
financial postion of the Councd as al thal dabe

A5 al the date of signing, we are not awane of any crcumstancas which would render any parkculars In the financial statesants ik be miskeading o naccurata,

We have baen authonised by Ihe Councl and by e Locs Gowemmen® (Plaving and Repoting) Raguibans 14 (o cedity the finarcial stalements in ther final

Y i
(€ [-»E_i-f-l/“'“*

Alan Hal Gamy Slephens

Councillor Councillor

Dated : 190918 Dated : 100949
Sak Sale

h—

D Marcom
Chief Executive Officer

Diated : 19005(19
Sy

Sale Service Centre 18 Desailly Street (PO BOK 506], Sale W 3850 Telaphane 1300 366 244
Yarram Service Centre 156 Grant Street, Yaram ViC 3371 Teleghone (03} 5187 5100
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VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Audilor-Genera's Offics

To the Councillors of Wellington Shire Council

Opinion | have audited the finandal report of Wellington Shire Council {the coundil) which comprises
the:

. balance sheet as at 30 June 2019
. comprehensive income statement for the year then ended
. statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
. statement of cash flows for the year then ended
statement of capital works for the year then ended
. notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
. certification of the financial statements.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
pasition of the council as at 30 June 2019 and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part & of the
Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

| have conducted my audit in accordance with the Awdit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finoncial Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Councillors’ The Councillors of the coundl are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
responsibilities  the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local

for the Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Coundcillors determine is
financial necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free
report from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.

Level 31 ¢ 35 Collins Street, Melboume Vie 3000
T ‘DE Bﬁ{:‘] ?G‘!}D Enquiries@jcudif.vi:.guv.nu Wﬂudil.\'iﬂ.&ﬂ'ﬂ.ﬂu
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Auditor's As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the finandal

responsibilities  report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance

for the audit about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether

of the financial due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable

report assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintzin professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the coundl’s internal control
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors
conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors’ use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the coundil’s ability to continue as a going concem. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
miodify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
thie date of my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council to cease to continue as a going concern.
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

MELBOURNE 5
23 September 2019 os delegate for the AuditorrGeneral of Victoria
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note

Income
Fates and charges
Siatutory fees and fines
Ussrfees
Grants - operaling
Granis - capital
Contributicns - monetary
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Employes costs

Materials and serices

Bad and doubtful debts

Bormowing costs

Met lose on disposal of property, infrastructurs, plant and equipment
Other expenses

Total expenses

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future perieds
Net a2zt revaluation mcrement{decrernent) X (21,728}

Total comprehensive result 1,947

The above comprehensive income statement should be read i conjunction with the accomparying notes.
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Wellington Shire Council
2018/2019 Financial Report

Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2019

Asszets

Cument assets

Cach and cach equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial azcels
Inventories

Other azsets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Intamgible azzets

Total non-current assets

Total aszets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Provizions
Interect-bearing liabilites
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provizions

Interesi-bearing liabilites
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net azzels

The above balance cheet chould be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

me

Balance at keginning of the financial year
Surphus/{deficit) for the year

Nt assst revaluation increment!{decrement]

Transier from asset revaluabon reserve to accumulated suplus
Transiers io other reserves

Transfers from other resenies

Balancs at end of the financial year

2018

Balance at beginning of the financial year

Effiects of comrection of emors

Swplusi{defict) for the year

Mt assst revaluation increment!{decrement]

Transier from asset revaluabon reserve to accumulated suplus
Transiers io other reserves

Transiers from othes resenies

Balanca at end of the financial yaar

The above statement of changes in equity should ke read in conjunchion with the accompanying notes.
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Wellington Shire Council
2 82010 Financial Report

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Gash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

LUser fees

Grants - operating

Grants - capital

Contrbufions - monetary

Interest received

Trust fumds and deposits taken

Other receipts

Goods and Services Tax Collected

Goods and Services Tax Refunds from the Australian Taxation Office
Employes costs

Materials and services

Trust fumids and deposits repaid

Other payments

Goods and Services Tax Paid to Supgliers
st cash provided by operating activitiss

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructurs, plant and equipment (inchuding intangikies] (33,604) {30,866)
Procesds from sale of propery, infrastructure, plant and equipment 634 1,445
Payments for mvesiments (154 348) [%07,37%)
Procesds from sale of investments 138972 103,027
Mst cazh used in investing activitias (48, 344) {33,773

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs

Repayment of borrowings
Hat cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the finandial year

Gash and cash squivalents at the end of the financial year

Financing arrangements
Restnctions on cash assets

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying nodes.
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Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Proparty

Land improvements

Total land

Buidings

Total buildings

Total property

Plant and squipmant.

Plant, machinery and equipment
Faochures, fittings and furrites
Computers and ielecommunications
Likerary books

Total plant and equipment

Infrastructurs

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cydeways

Dranage

Recreatonal, leisure and commurity facdities
Waste management

Parks, open space amd stestscapes
Asrodromes

Oiff street car parks

Oither infrastructurs

Total infrastructurs

Total Gapital Worka sxpenditure

Representad by:

Mew asset expenditure
Bzzatrenzwal experdiiure

Aszet expansion expenditure
Aszzatupgrads sxpendifume

Total capital works sxpenditura

Thie above Statement of Capital Works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying mofes.
The Statement of Capial Works includes work i progress and excledes intangikles.
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

OVERVIEW

Introduction
WeSingion Shire Councl was ectabliched by an Order of the Govemnor in Council on 2 December 1984, The Councils
man ofice is located at 18-20 Desally Street, Sale, Victoria 3850.

Statement of compliance

These financial siatements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Staiement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes
accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with the Australian Accounting
Stardards (AAS), other aufhonfziive pronouncements of the: Ausiralian Accounting Standards Board, the Local
(zovemment Act 1959, and the Local Govemment (Planning and Reportng) Regulafions 2014

Significant accounting policies

{2} Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been ussd in the preparation of fese Snandal slatements, whereby assels, lzbilifes,

equity, income and expenses are recognized i the reporting period fo which they relate, regandiess of when cach
received of paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the camying values of asssis and lisbilites that
are not readily apparent from ofser sources. The estimates and associated judgements are baced on professional
dgement desived from kestorical expesience and various ofher faciors fat are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ fom thess estimates.

Revisions to accounting esfimates are recognised in the period in which the sstimate i revised and also in futurs periods
that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that
have significant effects on the financial statements and esimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, infastructurs, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.1)

- the determination of depreciation for buikdings, infrastructure, plant and equipment {rsfr to Note 6.1)

- the determination of employes provisions (refer to Nate 5.5)

- the determination of landfil provisions (refer o Note 5.5)

Uriess otherwise stated, all accounting pobicies are consisient with those appled in fhe prior year. Where appropriate,
comparziive figures have been amended o accond with current preseniafion, and disclosure has been made of any
material changes to comparafives.
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2013

Mode 1 Performance againat budgst

The performance against budget notes compane Counci’s financial plan, expressed Tiogh is annual budget, with achual persormance. The Local
Govemment [Planning and Repovting) Reguianons 2074 requires explanation of any matenial vanances. Coundl has adopted @ maleriaiity threshoid of
he lower of 10 percent or $500 000 whers further explanation is warranied. Explanations have not been provited for varabons below the matenality
threshald uniess the vanance & considered 30 be material Decause of its nabwe.

Tre budget figures detailed below are ihose adopied by Council on 19 June 2018 The Budge! was based on assumplons that were relevant 31 the
time o adoption of e Budget Council 5215 guidelines and paramsters for income and expense tangets in this budget in order 1o mest Counci's
panning and Fnancial performance targets for both e shod and leng-lerm. The budget did not refiect any changes o equity resufing from asset
revaluations, as their impacts were not consiered predicable.

These nodes ane prepared fo mest the requirements of the Local Govemnment Act 7989 and the Local Govemment (Blanning and Reporing)

Reguianans 204

1 Income and sxpenditure

Grants - operating

Contributons - manetary
Contributions - non monetary
Cher ncome

Total incoms

Expensas

Employee costs

Materials and senvices

Bad and doabiful debls

Borowing costs

Ne loss dgain) on disposal of prperty, infrastnocture, plant and equi
Cnner expensas

Total expenses

Surpius for the year
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Weilingran Shire Council
204872049 Financial Repon

(i) Explanation of material variations - Income and Expenditure

varianca Ik=m Explanation
Fef

Cperating grants variance mainly relates o 50% of Councils 2019/20 Victoris Grams Commission [VGC) aliocation of 7.4
mikion and $4.5 million associabed with e Gippsiand Shared Services inative being received in June 2015, which will be
camied fonward 1o 201%20. New gramt funding of 50.7 millon has b=en recedved for drought comemunity resilence and support
programs and §0.2 milien for Straiord Recreabion Reserve. Addiional fanding of 50,5 milion has akso been received againsi
the 201519 Vicloria Grants Commission allocation in our budgel.

Capital grant variance mainly represenls the final imieces raised for the Por of Sake Redevelopment project of $2.2 millkon sor
1he work compieted in 201718, The conclusion of the curent five year Roads to Recovery program has resulied in additional
519 milign being received. This is offse by unsuccessful funding applications of 51.3 million for road and bridge upgrades.

Daoniations and asset contributions {non monstary) associated with new subdvisons have been recognised though the year.

Oiiher income primarily represents higher than projected imterest on investments of $0.5 milion due 1o advance funds being
received and expenditure frend being lower than budgeled. Mew assels of 50.6 milion [nan cash) have been recognised during
1he year.

Savings in employes cosls resulted from staff vacancies [some long ferm) but siighlly offset by use of casuals and agency
staff. Lower than expecied annual woncover premium wil generale overall savings of approximately §0.3 million for the year.

The Sake Memorial Hall Upgrade project has b=en defered and is expectsd o commence in Juy 2019, resulting in a 50.6
milion underspend in 18/19. The commencement of the Gippsland Shared Service's initiabive was delayed until 201%20
awaiing finalisation of @ government funding application resufing in @ $0U6 milion underspend in 201819, Savings in utifties
charges of $0.1 milion is mainty due to energy eSiciency nifaives implemented throughout Counce fadlites.

Writlen oown vale of assets replaced, bodgeted in depreciation was reciassfied to Net gainfioss) on disposal of property,
infrastrociure, plant and equipment afler adoption of he bwdget. Excluding this recassification, there was a savings of §1.5
milion mainiy in buildings depreciation

The peovision #of nappeopriale subdiision cutsanding rales was higher than budgeted.

Since the 2015819 budge! was sdopied, 356t wiitien down and replaced was reclassfied #om depreciation o Met gain (loss)
on disposal of property, infrastruciure, plant and squipment.

Dwring e year, Council wrole off assets of 50.3 million found to be the property of an extemal pary. In addition, 5004 milion of
assels were derecognised as they were no longer maimtained by Councl. This additional expenditurs was offset by 51.2 milion
for landdill rehabiitabion prowision not reguired this financial year as il was previously recognised in 201718 Snancial
statements.
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Mates to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Plant and Equipment

Fixtures. fitings and fumitue
Comguters and belecommunications®
Lilorary boois

Infrastructurs
Foads
Eridges
Footpaths and cydeways

Drainage
Recreational |sisure and community faciiies
\Waste managemen

Parks, open space and strestscapes
Bzrodromes

(O street car parks

Crher infrastruchure

Total Infrastrscturs

Tatal Gapétal Worka Expanditurs

Repreasnted by

Mew assst eoperiditune

Azzet remewal sxpendiue

Azzet exparrsion expendituns
Aszat upgrade expendituns

Tokal Capital Works Expanditure

* This budget comparizon exchies inbrgiles of 1554k
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Explanation

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019

Planned cell corstruction for Rosedale landfil ($30k] was canceled due o the closure of
Rosedale landfll in earfy 2018/19. Unbudgeted works have been completed om Kimany for
50.1 millon.

Dhee o delays in furding confirmatiion and community consuiation construchon on the
Cameron Sporting Complex Redevelopment will not commence until eary 2019720 fimancial
year resuling in 3 varance of $4.0 million. Commercement of the construction of the
changeroom redevelopment were also delayed awaitng confirmation of furding
announcements, resuiting in @ underspend in 201819 of $0.3 million. Expenditure of $0.2
milick at Amda Emergy was afso delayed while optiors were evaluated All these projects are
anticipated o be completed in 2019720, Rescoping of GRSC Stoge 24 delayed
commercement of the project with $1.9 milion spent in 201348 ard complefion oooured in
Ochober 2048,

The replacement of some fest velicies has been defered because of lower tham expected
kilzmetres and some vebicles ae bemg kept longer a5 an economy measure.

A number of miscelaneous unbudasizd fumiture and Fings were purchased durireg the year
inclucing additional artworcs for the Gippsland Art Gallery. New furding was received io
improve public safiety in the Sale CBO by installing CCTV with the majority of works
compheted in 201618, As the project was defivered under budget, addifional works are
planned for 201920 to expend the remairing funds.

Business systems upgrades have been defayed due i the outcome of the shared senvices
sulomission to Local Govemment Victoria,

The armuai resaal amd asehall program delivered $1.5 milion savings after completion of
programmed works. Some projects were cancelled due to unsuccessiul funding.

Firal works of $0.14 million on Boodyarm, Napier and Toms Cap bridges were completed in
eary 209819, Woeks on Staceys Bridge has commenced following delays in sourcing
government funding with works fo ke completed in August 2019,

Wiores on he Sale CBD rerewal program (Foster 5t Sale) were compieted but expendiure
fiar the majority of the remaining $2.2 milion will be delayed until 2020021 awaiing the
instaliation of underground power by SP Ausnet on Yosk St Sale. Expencibure of §2. 1
milion on the Maffra CBD Strestscape mulli-year project was delayed due fo an
wnscheduled watermain replacement and then contracior delays in mobilisieg o siz.
Commencement of works on the Tarra Trail Stage 2 of $0.3 milion has been delayed
awaitiryg issuing of pemmits. The final works of $0.3 milion on the 2017116 Gisbe Woondslla

shared path project (boardwallnidge and ighting] was completed in 201818,
Savings were achieved in the construction of minor dranage works.

The Sale Ternis Clue panilion upgrade is complete with court works progressing with the
remaining budget of $1.0 million io spant by late 2019, The ouldoor pool plart reom

repliacement project of $0.7 milicn was rescoped and retendered during 21BN witha
decision o ke made in 201520

New funding has been received in 2015/19 o construct E-¥Waste Siorages at landfil faciities
The multi- year Rosedale Chvic Rerewal project contirued in 201819 with the
redevelopment of Willow Park, inciuding mew todet and BEQ) facilifies completed. Maffra
Cameron Sporting Complex Water Bore & Irigation project required retendening hence
elaying the compietion of the praect from 20MTHE o 201EME

Wvoris on the Port Albert off street compark were delayed to avoid works disruption o the boat
ranmp project.

Bicafing faciities upgrades have not procesded due o deferral of boating faclities grants
funding.




Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Hote 21 Amalysia of Council results by program

Coundl delivers its funclions and activiies through the following programs.

Buift & Matural Environment

Built & Natural Envirorsment division promodes, plars and implements a range of strabegies that make a significant contribuiion b the
responsible care and sustanakle maragement of cur muricigalty's diverse nalural eavirconment and bt ervironment Sesvices delivered
by thits division include Capital works, Asset Management, Infrastuchere Development, Road Planning and Maintenance, Built
Erwvironment Faciiies, Pories Sesvices, Open Space Flanning and Waste & Sustainalbilty.

Chief Executive Officer
CEOD Office ensures keadership and engagement with our community to ensure our residents feel engaged and irformed by Councl
through services ncluding Media and Commurication.

Community and Culture

Community & Culiure division promotes, supports and advocates for fe socal ard cubiural wellbeing of our community ey providing
division is comprsed of service areas including Social Plarning & Policy, Commurity Ergagement, Youth Sesvices, Rural Access,
Emesgency Management, Community Faciliies Flanning and Community Commitiees. This division also manages our Art Gallery, Libeary
Services, The Wedge” Enteriaimment Cantre and Letsure Services which includes cur pocls and Gippsland Regional Sporting Complex in
Zale.

Gorporate Services

Corporate Services division provides support semvices across coundl to enakle the defivery of council's vision and srategic objecives. The
provision of hiese senices incudes Human Resowces, Ocoupational Heath & Safety, Risk Maragement, Corporate Flanning, Accourting
& Payroll, Rates & Valuations, Procurement, Records Management, Information Technology ard Business Sysiems. This division also
ensures the legislatve compliance by conducting owr affaims openly and with integrity, reflecing the highest level of good management and
BOVEMANCE.

Developmant

Development division suppors susainable growth and development in appropriate |ocations supgorted by levels of infrastrucure n
keeping with the needs of the community while retaining the amenity valued by the commurity. This include services such as Strategic
Planrimg, Statutory Plannirg, Economic Development. Towdsm amd Vistor Ecomomy. The division is resgonsibile for managing a rnumiser of
customer focussed, responsive senvices such as Local Laws, Emvironmenial Healfh, Municipal Buiding Services and Customer Service. It
also manages a range of commercial property portiolios ncluding the Gippsiand Regional Lvestock Exchange.
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 2.1 Analysis of Council results by program

21 (b) Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program
Grants included
Income Surplus/(Deficit) in income Total assets

2019 §'000 $'000 §'000 $'000

Built & Natural Environment 30,449 (22,597) 19,173 873,939
Chief Executive Officer : (1.328) = =

Community and Culture 5,618 (6,345) 4,855 5,100
Corporate Services 67,073 50,045 14,066 111,060

Development 12,309 4901 1,238

115,538 33,675 39,333 990,099

Grants included
Surplus/(Deficit) in income
2018 $'000 §'000

Built & Natural Environment (38,873 11,981
Chigf Exacutive Officer (1415) =

Community and Culture (6.733) 3510
Corporate Services 57,537 8566
Davelopment (2,559) 323

7.957 24,480
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Mote 3 Funding for the delivery of our ssrvices
3.1 Rates and charges

Council uses Cagpifal Improved Value [CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The CIV of a property is
its tofal land and improvements value.

The vakafon base used b calculaie genesal rates for 20981193 was $10,788 millon (2017/15 $9,547 million).

General rates

Waste management charge 3533
Service rates and charges 2005 1,826
Supplementasy rates and rate adjustments 448

Special rates and charges 388 44
Irterest on rates and charges 57 e
Total rates and charges 61,816 60,823

The date of the latest general revaiuabion of land for raling purpeses within the municipal district was 1 January 2019, ard the vaiuabon will
lbe first applied in $he rating year commencing 1 July 2019

Annual rates and charges are recognised s revenue when Councl issues annual rates noBices. Supplementry rates are recognised
when 3 valuation and reassessment & completed and 3 supplementary rates nobce issusd

32 Statutory fees and fines

Flanning fees £
Irfringemerits and costs "
Land and buiding information cesfficates

Fermits 134
Total statutory fees and finss 775

Statutory fees and fines (incuding parking fees amd fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided. the payment is
received, of when the penalty has been apelied, whichever first ocowrs.

3.3 User feea

Waste management services 2350
Leisure cenires

Regisiration and other permits 785
(ther fees and charges 732
Saleyards 369
Entertainment centre a0
Emergency management warks ™
Arnimal semvices e
Total user feas T80

User fees are recogrised as revenus when the service has been provided or coumcil has othenwise eamed the income.
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Mots 3 Funding for the delivery of our sanices

34 Funding from other levels of govemment
Grants were received in respect of the fiollowing :
Summary of granta
Commorweaith furded grants
State funded grants
Total grants received

(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Geants
Roads o Recovery

Recurrent - State Govemment
Librarias

Rural Access and Transport connection
Cultural Services

Muricipal emergency

School crossing SUpSrvisors
Parks and Ervironmental sesvices
Environmental health

Fire Sarvice Property Levy
Senior cifizens
Community support programs
Crher

Total recurrent operating gramts

Non-recument - Commonwealth Government
Dirzught Community Progeram

Non-recument - State Government
Ehared Services

Community and Recreation facilifies upgrade
Roads

Drought Commumities Program

(Orthes

Economic Development and Towrism
Planning

Community support programs

Property Valuation

Municpal emergency

Total non-recurrent operating grants

Total opserating grants
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Mots 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.4 Funding from other levals of govemment | continued)
[b} Capital Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery

Total recurrant capital grants
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Govermment
Paris, open space and strectscapes

Buildings

Dircught Community Program

Non-recurrent - Siate Government

Aerodrome

Recreafion and lefsure community facdities

Buildings

Roads

Footpaths and Cydeways

‘Waste Mamagement

Farks, open space and sirestscapes

Lilsrary Books

Crther Infrastructure

Plant, machinery ard couipment

Total non-recurrent capital granta 13249
Total capital grants 16,730

() Unapant grants received on condition that they be spent in a apecific manner

Balance at start of year 4537 45049
Recevad durng the financial year and remained unspent af balance date B.303 1,743
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (2,022) {1,713)
Balance at year end 10,818 4537

Grant ncome is recognised when Council obfains controd of the contribution. Control is normally cbtamed wpon receipt (or acquital).

Mareary

Nor-monetary
Total contributions

Contributions of non monstary assets were received i relation fo the following asssf classes.
Irfrastacture

Land

Land undsr roads

Total non-monstary contributions

Monetry and non monelary contrloutions are recognised as reverue when Councl obtains control aver the confributed assel.
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Mois 3 Funding for the delivery of our ssrices
3.5 Contributions (continued)

Unapent monatary contributions recsived on condition that they be spent in a
apacific manner

Balance at start of year

Reczived during the financal year and remained unspent at balance sheet date

Received in pror years and spent during the financal year

Balance at year end

1,342

833

TBT

™

102

6

Irterest on delstors 12 LI
Total other incoms 1840 421

Imterest is recognised as it = eamed.
Oter income is measwred at e fair value of the consideration received or receivalele and is recognised when Council gains contral over
the Aght to receive the ncome.
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Hote 4 The cost of defivering services

41 Employses costs

Wagss and salafes
Superarnuation
Casual saff

Oither

WorkCaves

Fringe benafits tax
Total employes coats

[b) Supsrannuation
Council made contributions {o the following funeds:

Disfined bensfit fund
Employer contributions o Local Aufhorities Superanmuation Fund (Wision Super)
Employer contribubions - other funds.

Empliayer confributions payakle af reporfing dabe.

Accumulation funda
Employer contributions io Lozal Authorities Superannuation Fund [Vision Super]
Empliayer confributions - afher funds

Empioyer contributions payable at reporting date.

Refer to note 9.3 for further information relafing o Counci's superanmuation okligations.
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Mote 4 The cost of delivering services

e
4.3 Depreciation and amortisation $000

Ifrastuchars 15110
Fropesty 4,030
Plant and couipment 1,904
Tatal depraciation 21,044
Intangikis assets 556
Total depraciation and amorfisation 21,600

Refer to note 5.2 o} and 6.1 for a more detailed breakriown of depreciation and amortisaiion charges and accounting peficy.

4.4 Bad and doubtful debta
Rates debtors
Infringemenis
Total bad and dowbtful dabts

Movement in provisions for doubthul debts
Balancs at the begnring of the year 1488 1,480
Mew Provisions recognised during the year 2 i
Balancs at end of year 1,507 1,488

Frovision for doubiid debt is recognised when there = oljective evidence that an impairment loss has oocurred. Bad debts are wrtien off

4.5 Bormowing costs
Idesest - Borowings 28

Changes io net present value due o ntzrest rate movements [38)
Total borrowing cosats 355

Borrowing costs are recognsed as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are capitalised as part of 2
aualifying asset construcied by Council.

4.8 Other expenses

Landfil Rehakditation Expenses (refer o note 5.3

Dierecognition of assets

Wilork in progress assets writen off

Councillors’ allowances

Operatng lease rentals

Auditors’ remunesation - VAGD - audit of the financal statements, performance statement
and grant acouittals

FAudiors’ remuneration - intemal

Total other expensas

4.7 Met loss on disposal of property, infrastructurs, plant and equipmant

Proceeds of sale
Wiritben down value of assets disposedireplaced
Total net gainf{lo=s) on disposal of property, infrastructurs, plant and squipment

The prafit o loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyes.
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Mote 3 Our financial position

3.1 Financial asssts
{a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Term depasits
Total czah and cash equivalants

[b) Other financial aasats
Term depasits - current
Term depasits - non-current
Taotal other financial asasts
Total financial zasats

36213 20763

36219 N7

¥

BaA3  Tiam

Council's cash amd cash equivalents are subject to external restrctions that imit amounts avaiable for discrefionary use. These indude:

Trust funds and deposits (Mote 5.3)

Other non discretionary reserves (Note 8.1)
Totl restricied funds

Total unresticted cash and cash eguivalents

Intendad allocations

2148 206
1327 1,59

4075 2,502

58,537 4895

Although not extemally restricied the following amounts have been allocated for specific fulure purposes by Council:

- Cash held to fund carmied forward capital works/operating projects
- Cash held in relafion to the Victoria Gramts Commission advance fo fumd general

operafions and roads works

- Unexpendad grants and contrbubons (Note 3.4 & 3.5)
- Discretionary resemve
Total funds subject to intended aliocations

4122 £.080

"

TaME 6,360

] W

11,445 5,065
7962 £.440

30,938 24118

Cash amd cash equivalerts inchude cash on hand, deposits at call, and ofher highly liguid irvestments with orginal maturities of 90 days o

less, net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

Cither #nancial assels are valued at f3ir vake, 3l balance dale. Term deposits are measured at oeiginal cost. Any unrealised gains and losses

on holdings at balance date ars recognised as either 3 EVENUE Of EXpense.
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Our financial poaition
Financial asssts [continued)
[c) Trade and other receivables

Currant
Siatdoy recenables
Rates debtors
Special charge schemes
iringzment and fire hazards
Net G5T recenakle
Non statutory receivables
Govemmert grants
Oher deltors
Wiasie management
Total current frade and other recedables
Non-cument
Siafdory recenablss
Rates delbors
Provision for doubtiul debts [1.470)
Special charge schemes ] 4
Provision for doubtful debts - special charge scheme ] 2
niringements and fire hazards Tr ]
Provision for doubtful debts - infringements [E)] [14)
Total non-current trade and other recevables 1,064 2.1
Total trade and other recervables 8,183 BT

Short term receivalles are camied at invoice amourd. A provision for doubtfl debts is recognised when there is objeciive evidence that an
impairmant has oocurred. Long tesm recesvables are carried at amortised cost using the efiective mterest rate method.

Inciuged in the provision for doubful debts is am amount relating fo land in inapproprate subdivisions mainly in fhe 90 Mie Beach area.
Council has a sigrificant number of rabeakie properdes in fiese areas for which provision has besn made for a tolal amount outstamding of
%1,504 737 (2048: §1 470 261). A provision has been established as these properties are unable to be sold in order for Councll o recover the
ekt

[d] Agsing of Recsivables

The ageing of the Councl's rads & cther receivabiles (exchuding statutory recsivables) that are not impaired was:
Currert [not yet dae)

Past dus by up to 30 days

Fast due between 31 and 180 days

Past dus between 194 and 365 days

Total trade & cther receivables

() Ageing of individwally impaired Recsivables
At balance date, other debioes representing financial assets with a nominal value of nd (2048 ri) were impaired.
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MNotes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Maote 5 Our financial position

5.2 Mon-financial assats
{3 Inventorias $o00

inventories heid For sake
Total inveniones

20
20

inventories heid for sale are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where invenbories are acquired for no cost of nominal
conskieration, ey are measured at current replacement cost al the date of acquisition.

(b} Dither assats

Prepayments 418
Accrued income 463
Total other assais T

{c] Intanginis asssts

Water rights

Software

Land$il air space

Tatal intangibls asasts

Gross camying amount

Balance at 1 July 2018
Additions
TransfesiRecognitizns
Derecogriion of Assel
Balance a1 30 June 2019

Accumulated amertization and impairment
Balance a1 1 July 2018

Amortisation expense

"Wirite off of assets

Balance &t 30 June 2019

Med book value 1 30 June 2018
Met book value i 30 June 2019

IntEngike assels Wit finie ives are amorised as an SXpense on 3 SYSIemalic Dask over M assel’s useful life. Amortisation is generaly
calcuiated on a straight line basis, a1 a ra% that allocates the ass=tvalue, kess any estimated residual value over its estimated useful i,
Estimates of the remaining w==ful Ives and amanisation method are revewed at least annually, and adjustments made whefe aporopria.
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Naote 5 Our financial position

5.3 Payables
{a) Trade and other payables

Trage payabies
Arcred sxpenses
Tatal trade and other payables

(b} Trust funda and deposits

Cwerpad rales [specal charge schemes) i | -
Refundatis deposits 333 270
Fire senices levy 574 157
Reention amounts 35 ara
Qther refundable deposits 155 REE]
Taotal trust funds and deposita 2,143 936

Ampunis received a5 0eposits and retention amounts controlied by Council are recognised as tust funds undil they are refurmed, transfernsd
in acoondance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds fal are forsiied, resulting in Council gaining control of the &unds, are
iz b recognisad as revenus at e time of soreil

Purpose apd nature of items

Owerpaid Rates - Owerpaid rates received from ratepayers which are ofsst when Snancial year's rales are raised.

Fefundatie deposits - Deposils are @ken by Council 35 a firm of surety in @ numiber of circumstances, including in relafon 1o building
works, 1ender deposits, comiract deposits and the use of cvic facilibes.

Fire Services Levy - Council is the colection agent for fire senvices levy on behalf of the State Govemment Counci remits amounts
received on @ quarierly bass. Amounts disciosed here will be remitied 1o he stale govEmMEnt in line with hat process.

Fetention Amounts - Coandl has 3 confractual right to retgin certain amounts untl 3 contracior Ras mel Ceramn requirements of a related
warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject 1o the satisfaciory completion of the contraciual obligations, or e elapsing of ime, these
amounts will be paid o the relevant confracior in line with Council's contaciual aolgations.

Cther Trust funds and depasits - Council holds in trust ficked sales for shows perfermed by third parties at The Wedge which are on
forwarted 1o pefommer on compiebon of the show.
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 5 Cur financial position
5.4 Interast-bearing liabiliies

Currant
Baorrowings - secured

Tatal

Baorrowings are secured by Coandl rate income.

(&) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:

Mot laler than one year £283 289
Later than one year and not i@er than #ve years 7,154
Lates than five years 180 449

7.604 7,892

Baorrowings are initially measured al fair value, being the cosl of the inferest bearing liabilides, net of ransaction cost. The measurement
basis sunsequent 1o initial recognition depends on whether the Council has calegorised its interest-bearing liabilities as either financial
liamilities designated a1 fair value through the profit and koss, or financial liabiftes 3l amortised cosL Any difierence bebween the initial
recogRiEad amount and e redemaqtion value i recogrised in Net result over the period of the bomowing using the effective intarest method.
The classification depends on e nature and purpase of the inferest bearing liabilities. The Coundil determines the dassHication of is
imerest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.

2019

Balance a beginning of the fnancial year
Additional provisions

Amounts used

Change in e discounled amounl ansing
because of time and the efect of any change in
the discount rate

Balance at the end of the financial year

2018

Balance a1 beginning of the Snancial year
Additional provisions

Amounts used

Change in the discounled amoumt ansing
pecause of time and the efiect of amy change in
the discount rale

Balance a1 the end of the financial year
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Naote 5 Our financial position
5.5 Provisions (confinued)
{a) Employes provisiona
Current provisiens expected to be wholly settied within 12 months

Annual feave
Lang s2nvice leave

Current provisiens axpectsd to be wholly settiad after 12 months
Annual eave =m
Long senice leave 3,448

3,949
Total GUTEN! empioyes provisons 5883

Hon-current

LLong semvice leave 417
Sick Leave Gratuity 1
Tatal non-curment BMpaYee pPROVISOns 418
Aggregaie camying amount of employee provisians:

Current 5,853

Mor-curnant 418
Total aggregale carrying amont of employes provisions 6,301

The calculation of empioyes costs and benedts includes all relevant on-costs and are calulated s folows at reporing date.

Wages and saanses and annual keave

Liabiffes for wages and salaries, including nan-monetary benedts, annual leave and accumulated sick legve expecied 10 be wholy setfed
within 12 maths of the reporting date are recognisad in T peovision for employes benefils in respect of emaloyes sendces up 1o the
reparting date, classified as curend Eabiities and measured at heir nominal values.

LiabifFfes hat are not expecied to be whaodly setiled within 12 months of the reparting date are recognised in the provision for emgplayes

oenedts as cument Eamiities, measured at the present value of the amounts expectsd 1o be paid when the iaities are setied using the
rEMUNErEhion rEte expectad o apply at the tme of seliement.

Long ssnace legve

Liabilfty fr long senice keave [L5L) i recogrised in the prowision for employes benedits. LSL s measured at presant value. Unconditional
L5L is disdiosad as a current liability. Conditional L5L thal has been accrued, where an employee is yet io reach a qualifying term of
empioyment, 5 disciosed 35 @ non - current liabiity.

Sick Leave Gramaty

A formes entity of Wialingion Shire Council hag established 3 sick leave gratully scheme which ceased al e end of Seplember 1551,
Under the scheme, sick leave is payable o all ex-Snire employess and is nod 1o exceed exising benefils as at the end of Seplember 1981,
using remuneration rales current at the me of leaving. The employees e entiied 1o the sick l2ave graluity upon their kkaving the
anganisation. The amount provided for appears a5 a noe- cusrent liabiliy.

Kiey assumptions:
- drscount rale %
- imdex e %
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Naote 5 Our financial position

5.5 Provisions {condinued)
B
{b} Landfill Restoration $700 Fo00
Current - 2
Moe-curret 17,390 16518
17,320 16.518

Coancil is obfigated b restore the Kilmany, Loagtord, Mafira, Rosedaie, Stratford and Yarmam sites %0 a paricular standand, The forecast life
of each 5t i based on cument estimates of Femaiing capacily and the forecast rale of AL The provision for landéill resiaration has been
caiculated based on the present value of the expecied cost of wons bo be undertaken, derfved from currenl contrachial works undertaien in
201718 7 has afso has been estimated based on current understanding of wonk required 1o reinstate the site 10 a suitadle standarnd.
Accordingly, the estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of the forecast timing of the work, work required and
reigied cosls of angoing monioning.

Key assumpfions:

- dispount rale % 258%
- inoeX e % 2.30%
- infation rale % 3.00%
- seTlement a8 27 years
- esimales cost 1o rehabiliale §15.8 million

Summary of Pravisions FLOT ]
1000

Current

Empicyes

Land#il Restoration

Total Cumrent Provisions

MWon Current

Empicyes

Lang#il Resloration

Total Mon Current Provisions

Tokal Provisions

5.6 Financing amangements

The Council has the foliowing funding arrangems=nis in piace as at 30 June 2015,
Bank cwesdraft

Credit card faciliies
Total faciifes

Used faciities
Unused fadilies
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Naote 5 Our financial position

5.7 Commitments
The Council has enfered into the following commitments. Commétments are not recogrised in he Balance Shest. Commitments are disclosed at their
nominal waloe and presented nclusive of the GST payable.

Later than 2

Later than 1 year years and not
andnotlater  laterthan 5 Later than 5
2019 than 2 yaara years years
$000 $00 $'000

Operating

Waste managemesnt

Heait Senvices

Animal pound and shefter service
Valuation contract

Sofware marenance

Litter bins

L to P project

Tatal

Capital
Parks, open space and STEstscapes
Roads

Foolpats and cycleways
Suikings

BEeNugg

g

Computsrs and {Elecommunications
Biidges

‘Wasie managament

Plant, machinery and equipment
Tatal
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Naote 5 Our financial position

5.7 Commitments jcontinwsd)

Later than 2

Later than 1 year years and not
andnotlater  later than 5
than 2 yaara years
fo00 $000

Oparating

‘Wasle management 4 506
Heaim senices 1,005
Animal pound and sheiter service 5
ialuation contract 11
Software maimenance -
Linter bins -
L to P project -
Total 3.207

Capital

Parks, apen space and sirestscapes

Roads

Foolpafs and cyclenays

Buildings

Recreational kisure and community facilities
Biridges

Agrodromes

Wasle management
Tatal

28
(Operating lease commitments 000

Al the reporting date, Te Council had the foliowing coligations under non-canceliable operatng leases for the lease of equipment and iand and
puildings fior use within Council's activities [Tiese oaligations are nod recognisad @5 liabildes):

Mo Iater than ane year 232 262
Later than one year and not i@sr than $ve years 147 450
Later than five years - 16

Erp] 728

Lease payments fof operating ieases are required by the accountng standand io be recognisad on a straight line basis, raher than expensed in the
yers in which they ane incurred.
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Note 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
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At Fair Value

30 June 2018 Revaluation Depreciation

$°000 $'000

£'000

Disposal
$000

£'000

At Fair Yalue
30 June 2019

£'000

204,992 1,144
13,285

B8E 568 (22.872)
973 i

4,030)
(1,904)
(15,110}

(#20)
(423)
{1471)

[#12)

&s0
1
0,266

208,200
13331
55682
5837

891,818 (21.728)

(21,044)

2314)

[#12)

561,050

Transfers  Closing WIP

§'000

$'000

(269)
(1
{5.668)

602

(6,147)

5,831




Wellington Shire Council
2018/2019 Financial Report

MNote 6 Assefs we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment {continued)

(a) Property

L Ul Total Land &
Roads Land
Improvements
$'000 $'000
At fair value 1 July 2018 126,695
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2018 (B8)
FoundDerscognised Azsets - Prior Year 25
Accum Depn Found/Derecognized Asset - Prior Year -
At fair value 1 July 2018 ; 126,632
Movements in fair value
Additions 356 273
Contributions 258
Fevaluation - B,2%6
Disposal {7
Transfers 853
11,422

Movements in accumulated depreciation

Depreciation and amortisation [3,551)

Accumulated depreciation of disposals 43

Accumulated depreciation at revaluation {7,152)

Tranzfers (3
(10,237)

At fair value 30 June 2019 127,181 157588
Accumuisted depreciation at 30 June 2018 (526) (78,043)

126,655 79,545
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Weilington Shire Council
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Mote 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) Plant and Equipment

fitti il Computers and
furniture
£000 £'000

At fair walue 1 July 2018

Accumuated depreciation at 1 July 2018

Found/Derecognised Assets - Prior Year 45
Accum Depn Found/Derecognized Asset - Prior Year

285

Movements in fair value

Addifions 264

Disposal (4. 028)

Tranzfers 1
(3.733)

Movements in accumulated depreciation

Diepreciabon and amortzation {102}

Accumulated depreciation of disposals 4022

Tranzfers 1m
4091

At fair value 30 June 2019 B85

Accumudated depreciation at 30 June 2012 (212)
633
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Wellington Shire Council
20182019 Financial Report

Mote 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment {(continued)

(¢} Infrastructure

Drainage

$'000

At fair value 1 July 2018 112,359
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2018 . {38.267)

Found/Derecognised Assets - Prioe Year &1
Accum Depn Found/Derecognized Asset - Prior Year (247}
75,056

Movements in fair value

Additions ) 1.181

Contributions B -

Recognized 9 - -

Revaluation [17.134) 2388 9a0 - {21,180)

Digposal [143) (149) (B18) (6,052)

Write-off - - 50 [}

Transfers 258 0 1,042 2 {1, 4)
(15.742) 37e2 4 5EB [173)

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciabon and amortsation {1,138) (B31) [924) - (15,1100
Accumuiated depreciation of disposals 252 5 2 578 45 - 4 581
Accumuiated depreciation at revaluation - 5216 (2,983) (2,164) (1,308) - {1,692)
Transfers - 2 3

(465) 4128 (3,500) 12.530) [2,125) z (12,218)

At fair value 30 June 2018 33,382 87,828 28,958 32262 16,027 1,005,601
Accumudated depreciation at 30 June 2018 {10.628) {34,385) (16, 185) {11.578) 8,261) : (344,815)

77 764 53,443 12,773 20,704 7 76k 660,786
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Nite 6 Aszets we manage
6.1 Proparty, infrastructurs, plant and squipment {continusd)

Froperty
Land

Buildings

Molor Vehices
Piant.

Pavement - Seakd
Pasemen! Gravel [ Local Acess A & ADVE)
Pavement Gravel [ Local ALcess B & )
Subgrade

Kert & Channed

Fioad Draimage - Minor Culvers

Bridges

Bridiges - Concete

Biridiges - Timber

Floodways & Major Cuverts
Footpaths and cycleways
AsphaltiEiumen

ConcrelePaved

Gravel'Sand

Dralnags

Pi= 100 Years
Pimes
Purp Walls 0 Years
Cmer Drainage
Cipen Ovain - ExrthvRelention Basn Indefnite
Structures
{OF Svect Car Pans 30 - 100 years 55,000
Receational, lesure and community faciites 10 - 100 years >§5,000
Waste management 20 - 100 years
Parks, open space and sinestscapes 10 - 120 years 55,000
Azpdromes 20- 120 years 55,000
Omer nfmsinacure 10 - 120 years #§5,000
intangible Assets
Landfil Airspace 4- 38 Years A
TSOfNErE 3- 10 years 55,000

Change in Threshalds

A resiew of capitalisation reshoits for Plant, Fumiture, Equipment & Informasion Technoiogy snd angibls Sofware wis undertaken and
the faiowing changes made effectie 1 Juy 2015

#Piant. jminor and major assets classes now combined) -Threshosd increased fom® 53,000 1o > 55,000

*Fumiture, Equipment & Information Technology - Threshaid increased from 51,000 ko #55,000

*Siofiware - Thveshiokd increased fom 51,000 o > 55,000

The estmated impact on annual depreciaion is @ reducion of 540 000,
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Mo 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructurs, plant and equipment {continusd)

Aok
Thie purchase method of accounting is wsed for all acquisiions of assets, being the fEr value of assets provided as monsideraion at the daie of
DCquistion pius @y inddental costs atibutatie o the aogastion. Fair value is the pce Tiat wodkd be recefved 10 5all an asse jor paid o
transfer a Kability) in an orderty iEnsaction between markst paricisants at the measurement date.

‘Where assets are constucisd by Coundl, cost ncludes al malenak usad in constnaciion, direc ibour, bormaing costs incumed durng
constniction, and an appropriate share of dinectly atinbutatie variabie and fixed ovemeads.

In accondance with Counci’s pobcy, the threshold limits have appied when recognising as5ets within an appicabie asset class and unless
gihenyise stated are consistent with the pror year.

During the year, a5 part of 3 continuous improvement focus, Coundl is abie to use technoiogy that Siows betler idenification of assets 'as
buit'. In aadtion, infommation fow from oficers in e Seld onveys more accurEle data 1o Asse! Managers as vanances are discovered. These
ariances resulisd in assets being recogrised and dereCcognisad in e Councils asset regisier and e deemad 10 D2 pROF yEAr STOrS Which
have been nbmepecively adjusied 1o equity against prior year opening balances.

A third Dalance sheet has not been presented 10 disciose hese prcr year &mors as ey were considered not mateial i the comparative

Priar year adjustmsnts Restated

Hewly Derecognised EE]
recagnised

$000

308
1,854

|37
8,360
53
205,345
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Motes to the Financial Report
For tie Year Ended 30 June 2013

NiiB 6 Assets we manage
6.1 Proparty, infrastructurs, plant and equipment {continued)

Land pnoer roads
Coundil recogrises land unoer roads it contris al fairvalue.

Buildings, land improsements, plant and equipment, MFFasmociure, and olher assets having imited useful lives are sysiematcaly depreciaisd
ower e useful lives 1o the Coundll in @ manner which refiects consumption of the senvice potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of
Temaining usetdl ves and residual values e made on @ reguiar basis with major asset dasses rexssessed avally. Depreciaton mies and
methods are reviesed anmualy.

‘Where assels nave separate dentiabis components hat ane subject to regular replacement, thess components are assgned distnct usesd
ves and residusl values and @ separdte depreciation rate is detemmined s each componant

Foad earthweons are not deprecialed on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited ussful e

Siraight ling deprediation s changed based on the residual usedul 182 as delemined each year.

Repairs and mairenance

‘Where the repair relles to the replacement of 3 component of an asset and the cost exceeds Te capitalisation threshold the cost is
capitaksed and deprecimed. The carnying value of the replaced asset is expensed.

valuation of land and buvidings

ialuation of bulldings were underaken oy @ quakfied msependent valuer APV Valuers & Assel Management - Lachian Biack Regisisred
Waler Mo 2913, Dan Atherion Ragisiered Valuer Mo 2962 and Ryan Cailier Registenst Valuer No £090.

The vallation of Lang and bulitings is at fair vake, being mancet waloe based on highest and best use permithed by relant tnd planning
prowisions. Where and use is restricied through existing planning prosisions the valuation 5 reduced 1o refiect this imitation. This adjustment
= an unabserdabis input in the valuaton. The atjusiment has no impact on T2 comprehensie income satement

Specigized @nd i valued at fair value using Sie values agusisd for engiobo [Undeveioped andior INseniced) characienisics, a0Cess ights
and private iMerests of other partes and entitiements of Infastuciune assets and senices. This adjustment is an uncbsenvable nput in the
vaugtion. The adustment has no impact on the CoMprenensie NCome siaement.

Any significant movements in e unobservable inputs for [and and land under mads will Rave a sgnificant moact on the fair value of these
assels.

Thee repiacement cost apporionment appiied 1o bulding components was modfied. This change refiects Te Migher cost of essential senices
[fire, sequnty, bghting, hesting/cooling] in Counc faclites Tat nave specialised Senvice COMponeNs of high value

Detgis of the Coundfs Land and bulidings and idormation about the fair value hierandTy as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:

Dizte of
‘valuation
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Nots f Azsets we manages

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and squipment {continued)
Walwation of infrastructure
Vallation of infrastnuciure assets {rmads, Beidges, foolpaths and drainage] has been detemined in accordance wilh 3 valuasion underaken by
Council Offigas Wir Chiis Hassie B.Eng (Cihif), Goar Mgl

' aluation of nfrasinuciure assels (FEcreational, ISsure and community facifties, wasie management, parks, open space and sTestscapes,
aemdmimes and o Infrastuciure] has been cetermined in acoondance Wit 30 indepandent waluation underaken oy APV Valuees & Assel
Management - Lachian Biack Regisiersd Valuer No 2913, Dan Atherion Registersd Valusr Mo 2962 and Ryan Colfier Registered Vauer Ko
&80,

The valuation & al fair value based on replacament cost less accumulated depreciafion as at fe date of vauation.

Drainage

Dranage assels were revalued wilh valustion dala colasd Apnl 2019 and Te valuaion appied at 30 June 2019, resufing in 3 debit 1o the
Asset Revauation Resene of §11,918 milion and a coresponding decreass of 511,518 milion 10 Te Drainage assets. As @ resull of Tis
deease fulure tepreciaton will decrease by aporoximately 5166k per annum.

Buildings

Biuilding and Infrastruciure assels Were revalued, Sseis Were inspecisd $om 22 Ociober 2018 - 2 Nowermzer 2015 and e vakation appied
at 30 June 2019, resuling in 3 dedit ip the Asset Revaluabion Reserve of $9,810 milkon and a comesponding decrease of 59,510 milion 1o the
Building and Infrastracture assets. AS 3 resuit of this decrease futue deprediation will decreass by approdmately S379K per annum.

Details of the Coundl's infrastruciure and ivormation about the fair value hisrarchy as ai 30 June 2019 e as follows:

Leval 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Cate of
$000 $000 000 aluation
443 435 T
68583 311207
2764 1RTNT
3453 3002019
12051 3002019
280 30062018

7728 30052018
2045 300G2MD
1004 20S209
1676 1,006

T2
=2
353% 17,068 052
a2
1%
48

Descripsion of significant mmabservahle inputs info feved 5 valrations

Speciaiized kand and Iand under riads s valued using @ marke! hased dired comparison tecrigue. Significant uncbsenabiz inputs
include e exiant and impact of esTiction of USe and the market cost of land per sSquAre metre. The exlent and impact of rEstictions on use
Varies and resuts in 3 reduction 1o sumounding Land values betwesn 5% and 955, The manke! value of land varnes significantly depending on
the location of Te land and the urrent marke? condifons. Cumently @nd values range bebween $0.05 and 518, 147 55 per squane metre and
lavd il Poads. VS Fange betwean 50,15 and 53,12 per square metre.

Specialized buiidings are valued using 3 deoredated replacement cost iechmique. Sagnificant unoteenabis Nputs ncude the carent
replaement oot and remaining useful Ives of oulkings. Cument repicement costs ae comgrised of 2 SQUGh MeTe basis mngng fom $370
1o58,000 per square mete. The remaining usedd ives of bulkdings are detemmined on e basis of the curent condition of ouikdings and vary
from 4 years io &7 years. Replacement cos! is sensifve 1o changes in marke! mndifions, with any increase or demease in cost Aowing though
1o the valuation. Useful Bves of buildings are sensifive to changes in expeciations of requirements that could sher shofen o extend the
usesd Ives of buildings.

Infrastrucive assets ans valosd based on Te depreciaisd repiacement cost Significant unobsenanie inputs indude the curent
replacement post and remaining useful Ives of infrastuciure. The remaning useful lives of nfEsinuciue assels oe delermined on Te basis of
the current condition of Te 3552t and vary #om 10 years to an indefiniz life. Replacement cost is sensiive 10 changes in manet condifions,
with ary inmrease of decrease in cost fowing throgh to the valiation. Useid ives of infrasrucire Ire sensive 10 changes in usse,
exnectations o nequirements Tat could sther shoen or extend e useful lives of dasinuchre assets.
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Motes to the Financial Report
For tie Year Ended 30 June 2013

Niote f Aszets we manage
.1 Proparty, infrastructure, piant and equipment {continusd)
Reconciliation of speciafised land

Parks, open Siace and srestscapes

Reversal of revalued components of assels disposed oF whiten of (Fansfer #om assel revaluation resenve 1o accumulated surpis).
Roads, Sirests, Dranage, Bridges & Culverts {350 e0)
Buildings & Srucures 1425} 1512
Lam d (44
{T75) e
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Hote T People and relationships
7.1 CGouncil and key managsmant remunsration

[a) Key Management Parsonnel [KMFP)

Welimghon Shire Council struchare bias a CED and 4 Genesal Managers. Along with % Councilors this makes a total of 14 KMP positions.

Dietails of persons holding the position of Coundllor or other memibers of key management personnel at any time during the year are:

Gouncillora Coungilor Carolyn Crossley - Mayor (10718 - 81118)
Councilor Carolyn Crossley - (64148 - 3006/49)
Councilor Damen McCuskin (1407/18 - 301/0619)
Counailor Scott Rosseti (17718 - 30/06/19)
Courclor Malooim Hale (177718 - 30406/19)
Councdlor lan Bye (17118 - 3006/18)

Councilor Alan Hall (4718 - 614118
Coundilor Alan Hall - Mayor (71118 - 3006/18)
Councilo: Gayle Maker (41718 - 30/05/18)
Courciloe Garry Stephens {17798 - 300619)
Coundilor Carmel Ripper (07/07/18 - 30106/18)

Chiaf Executive Officer - David Morcom (17118 - 314618)

General Manages Bult and Natural Emironment - Chris Hastie (17118 - 306/18)
General Manager Community & Cufture - Glenys Buler [1/7/18-137/48)
Ganeral Manager Community & Culturs - Sharon Houlan (16718 - 30V6/19)
General Manager Comarate Senvices - A Skiptans (1718 - 306118
General Manager Development - John Websdale (1718 - 306/19)

Total Number of Councillors
Chief Exacutive Officar and other Kay Management Personnsl

Total Key Managemant Parsonnal

[b) Remunaration of Kay Management Peraonnal

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as folows:
Shost-term benefits
Long-term berefits
Toriihios borch

Total
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Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Mote T People and relationshipa
7.1 Council and key management remuneration {continued)

The rumk=r of key management personnel whaose total remanerafion from Council and any
related entities, fall within the fllowing bands:

$1-59.909

$10,000 - §13,959
$20,000 - 529 900
$40,000 - 343 950
$60,000 - $63, 993
$80,000 - 5839 900
190,000 - 5199 934
$200,000 - $209 994
$210,000 - §219 994
220,000 - §209 594
$300,000 - $309, 994

| =k =k L g =R

-l

() Sanior Officar Remuneration

A Senior Officer is an officer of Counci, other than Key Management Personnel, whoo

a} has mamagement responsikiliies and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or
) whose total armual remuneration exceeds $148 000

The numk=er of Senior Officers are shown kelow in their relevant ncome bands:

P
2
=
oo

Income Range:

$150,000 - 159,999
$160,000 - $169 9349
$170,000 - §179 994

g8 ||, .#

Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers included above, amounted to

7.2 Related party disclosurs
[a) Transactiona with related parties

Dwring the period Councdl entered info @ number of ransactions with relabed parties of KMP's or their dose family members. These
transaciions oocurred wihin normal commercial terms and conditions and inciuded $85 000 to the Municipal Association of Victona for
membership amd other serices. Payments of $53,000 for production of ghows at The Wedge and $8 000 for various other minar ransactions
with 3 number of suppbers. Coundl also contrieubed 3 total of $55,000 for commurity grants, operating subsithes to varous commurRy grougs
where KMP's or close family memiers held posiions on the board or committee.

[b) Outstanding balances with related parties
The balance outstanding at the end of e reporting period in relation bo ransactions with related parties was Nil [2017/18 Nil).

() Loans toifrom related partias
The aggregate amount of loans in existence af balance daie that have been made, guaranized or secured by the council to a related party was
Ni {2047118 M),

[d) GCommitments tofrom refated parties
The aggregate amount of commiments in existence at balance date that have been made, guarantesd or secured by the council was Ni
(2047748 Mil).
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Mote 8 Managing uncertainties
B Contingent asssts and liabélitias
Confingent assets and contingertt liabiities are not recognised in the Balance Shest but are disciosed and if quaniifiable. are measured at
nominal valus. Confingent assets amd liabifies are presented mclusive of GST receivable or payable, respectvely.

Mg 218
$T00 $'000
{a) Contingent asasts
hon cash corinibubions expected o be received n respect of subdivision and gifted
assels are as bllows:
Developer contributions
Total Contingent Asssts

{b) Gontingent liabilities

Suparannuation

Wiedlingion Shire Council kas ciligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result m the need to make addional
contribufions to the scheme, mathers relating to this potential celigation are owfined below. As a resuft of the volafility in financial markets the
likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exisis.

Future superannuation contributions

In addiSon 1o the disclosed contikbutions. Wedington Shire Council has paid unfurded liabity payments o Vision Super todaling SNi during
2MBA% (204718 SNil). Thers were $Ni corfributions outstanding and $Mi loars isswued fom or to the dbove schemes as at 30 June 218, The
expected contribations o be paid i the Defined Bensfit categoey of Vision Suger for e year ending 30 June 2020 are §188 031,

B0 Miks Beach inappropriate subdivisiona

Following the Ombudsman's imvestigation into undevelopable kiocks contained within inappropriate subdivisions along the 90 Mile Beach,
Wiedingion Shire as a gesture of goodwil o some identfied ratepayers will underake a number of actions fo implement the Omibudsmarn’s
recommendatons once legal advice has been oblained. The dollar impact is not anficipated to excesd 5300 000.

Liability Mutual Insurance

Council i= a parficipant of the MAY Liskilty Muhual Insurance (LM} Schems. The LMI scheme provides public liakdity and peofessional
indemniity inswrance cover. The LM scheme states that each participant wil remain liakiz to make further contributions o the scheme in respact
of any irsurance year in which if was a particpant to the extent of its participant’s share of ary shorifall in he provision set asde in respect of
that nsurancs year, and such liabdity wil corfnue whether or not e parfapart remairs a participant in fulure inswance years.

{c) Guarantees for loans to other entitiss

The amount disciosed for fnancial guarantze in tis aote = #ie rominal amourt of the underying loan that is guaranized by the Councl not the
fair value of the financal guarantes.

Firancal guarantes confracts are not recognised as a liskdity in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercsed ther rght o call on e
guaranies or Councl kas other reasons to believe that it is probalble that the rAght wil be exercised.

Counci has guarantesd a loan Bken out by 3 community group. to undarke significant capital works 1o the Club's faciities that are located on
Counci land.

Counci's estimated liakdity with respect o contingent items is as follows:
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Mots § Managing uncertainties {continusd)

8.2 Changs in accounting standards
Thie following new AAS's have been issued that are not mardatory for the 30 June 2019 reporing pericd. Counc has assessed these pending
stamndards and has identified the folowing potental impacts wil fow from the appication of hese srdards n fulure reporting penods.

Revenue from confrects with customers (AASB 13) (applies 201920 for LG sector}

The stamdard shifis fhe focus from the transaction-level fo a contractbased approach. Recogrifion i determined based on what the customer
expects io be entfied to (Aghts ard obligations], while measurement encompasses estimation by the eniity of the amount expected to ke enfiled
for performing undes the contract The full impact of this shrdasd is not known however it s maost liely to impact where contracts exbend over
fme, where there are rights and okiigations that may vary the timing or amount of fe consideration, or where there are multiele performance
alements. This has the potential to impact on fe recogriion of cerain grant income.

Amendments 10 Australian Accounting Standards — Deferal of AASE 15 for Not-for-Profit Entifies (AASE 2016-7) (apples 201920)
This SEndard desers hie mandatory efective dabe of AASE 15 for not-for-prodil entiies #om 1 January 2018 1 1 Jangary 2019

Leases (AASE 18] {applies 2045200

The dassifizaion of leases as eiber fnance leases o operating leases is eliminated for lessees. Leases will be recognised in the Balance
Shest by copitai=ing the present value of the minimum l2ase payments and showing 3 'nght-of-use’ asset, while future lease payments wil be
recognised as o fnancial liakdity. The nature of the expense recognised in the profit or koss will change. Rather than beng shown os rent, or as
leasing costs, it will ke recogrised as depreciation on the ‘nght-of-use' asset. and an interes charge on the lease liabilty. The interest charge
will ke calcuiated using the effecBie intzrest method, which wil result in a gradual reduction of infemest expenze over the lease t2m.

Counci has elecied to adopt the modifizd retrospecive approach fo fie frarsiion o the new lease standard. This will mean that only existing
operating leases for non low value assets, with remaining terms greater than 12 mondhs, will ke recognised on fransifon {1 Juiy 2019). Based
on our current lease commitments and an assumption of 3 conbruation of the current leasing arrangements Council expects that the Fansiion
1o the new standard wil s=& the nifial recoanifion of 3651 252 in fzase related assets and an equivaient iability.

Income of Nak-for-Profit Entiies (AASE 1058 ) (applies 201920)

This standand is empecied 10 apoiy to cerain ransaclions currently accounted for under AASS 1004 Cominbotions and esEblishes revenoe recognition

principles for transacticns where the consideration to acquire an assel is sgnifcandy less than fair value 10 enablke a nol-Sor-profil entity 1o furtner its
Jinh
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
Hots 8 Managing uncertainties |continuad)
8.3 Financial instrumsnts
(&) Dbjectives and policies
The Counci's prncpal financal nstruments comprise cash assets, term deposis, receivables (excluding sautory receivables), payakles
(exclusing sttutory payables) and bark borrowings. Detais of the significant accoundng policies ard methods adopted, including e crizdia for
recognition, the bass of measurement and the basis on which mcome and expenses are recognised, i respect of each dass of fnancial asset
frarcial iabdity and equity imstrument is disciosed in the Notes of the financial statements. Risk maragement is carried out by senioe
management under policies approved by the Council. These pobcies include dentificaion and analysis of the risk exposure o Coundl and
approprate procedures, conirois and risk mikimisation.

{b) Markst risk

Market rsk is the risk that e fair value or future cash fiows of councl fmancial instruments will fluciuate kecauss of changes in market prces.
The Counci's exposure 1o market risk is primanly frough interest rate fsk with only msignificant exposure to other prce Asks and no expasue
iz foreign currency risk

Interest rate sk

Interest rate risk refiers fo the risk that the value of a fmancial instument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluchate dus to
changes in market interest rates. Council's interest rade liability risk arses pAmariy from long term loans and borrowings af fied rates which
expases Council to fair value inderest rate sk Council does not hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measweed at fair valee,
and therefore has no exposurs o fair value inferest rate risk. Cash fiow interest rate risk is the rsk that the future cash flows of a financial
rstrument wil fuchsate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash fow interest rate risk through s
cash and deposits hat are at floatng rates.

vestment of surplus funds s made with approved financal nsthlions wnder the Local Gowemment Act 1959 . Council manages nterest rate
risk by adopting an investment palicy fhat ensures:

- diversification of invesiment product

- monitosing of refum on investment. and

- benchmarking of retums and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Councl's exposure, of is olbjectves, policies and processes for managing interest rate risk or e
methods used o measure tis risk from the previous reporting perod.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to kave an impact on the Coundl's year end resuft

() Credit rizk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracing enfity wil mot complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to make a financal
lrss. Councl have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the balance sheet. Particularly significant areas of credit risk
exist in relation o cuistanding fees and fines as well as loans and receivables from sporting dules and associations. To help manage this rsk:

- Council has a policy for establishing credit limits for the entifies Council daal with;

- Counci may require collateral where appropriate; and

- Council only imvests surplus funds weh financial instittions which have a recognissed credit rafing specified i councls mvesiment policy.
Receivables comsist of a larmge number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and govemment seciors. Credit risk associabed with
e Council's fimamcial assets = minimal because the main delotor is secured by a charge over the rateable progery.

There are no material fimancal assets which are individualy determined o be impaired.
Counci may also be suject to credit Fisk for fransachions which ae not included in the balance sheet, such as when Council provide a
guaraniee for another parly. Details of owr confngent akilifes are disclosed in No 8.1.

The maxdmum exposure to credit sk at the reporting date to recognise financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for
impairment of hose assets, as disciosed in te balance sheet and notes o the financial statements. Council does not hold any colateral.
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Hoie § Managing uncertainties (contnued)
8.3 Financial instruments [continusd)

() Liquinity riak

Linuidity risk includes Te risk that, as a resull of Coundils cperatonal liquidty requirements it wil not have suficient funds 1o s2e 3 ransacicn when
required or will be forced to sl 3 financial asset at below value or may be unable o setle or recover 3 financial asset.

T help rRAUCE Tiese fisis Coungl:

- has a liquidity policy wrich Grgets a minimum and awerage kevel of cash and cash equivalents i be mainizined;

- has readily accessiole sandby faciities and other funding arangements in place;

- has @ liquidity portfolio siruciure Mal requires surpius funds % be invesied within vanous bands of ligaid insinuments;

- monitors budged o aciual perarmance on a reguiar basis; and

- 2i5 limits on Domowings relating to e percentage of loans 10 /@12 fevenue and percentage of loan prncipal repayments 1o raie revenue.

The Councils maxmum eXposure io Bquidiy nsk & the camying amounis of financial liabiftes as disclosed on the face of he Dalance sheet and the
amounis related to financial guarantess disciosed in Mote 8.1, and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ dats and cumend assessment of sk

There has been ne significant change in Councils exposure, of its objectives, policies and processes far managing liguidity risk or the methods wsed o
measUre TES fsk #om e previous reporting pencd.

\Wiith the expeption of bomowings, all financial liabiities are expected 0 be setfed within normal ferms of rade. Detis of e matunty prodie for
bamraings are disdossd at Nole 5.4,

Linizss othensse stated, he camying amounts of nancal insruments reflect therr far vaiue.

(8} Senaitivity disclosune analysia

Taking into accound past pesfarnance, future expectabons, economic forecasts, and management's noaledgs and expenence of the financial markets,
Counci believes the follwing movements are ‘reasonably possinle’ over fie next 12 monfs:

- A parabied shift od-0.5% and 0.5% in market interest rates (ALIDY foem year-end rates of 2.1%.

These movements will not have @ matenal mpact on the valuation of Counci's #nancial assets and liakifties, nor wil Tey have a malerial impact on the
resufts of COouncirs operations.

B.4 Fair valus meaaursmant
Fair vaiue hieracy
Counci's Snancial assets and liabilties are not valved i accomance with e fair value hiemechy, Councl's financial assets and liabiites are measured at
amotised cosL

Counci measres ceriain assets and liabifties a1 fair value wheme required or permitied by Australian Accountng SEndards. AASE 13 Far value
measurement, aims to improve consisiency and reduce compiexity by providing 3 definiion of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement
and disclasune requirements for Use across Australian Accounting Sandands.

AASE 13 defines fair value as the price Mal would be receved o sell an assel o paid © Fansfer a Bability in an ordery transaction betwesn market
panicpants at the measuremant dak. Far value under AASHE 13 is an exit price regandiess of wheter hat price is direcly cosenable of estimaled using
another valuation iechnique.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in he financial statements are w@isgorised witin @ far valee hierarchy, described as
fodlows, based on the iowes] leved inpul Tat is significant fo the fair value measurement 5 3 whoie:

Leved 1 —iQuoted {unadjusied) maket prces in active markets for identical assets o liapiities

Level 2 — Waluation tachmigues for which e lowest level input that i significant 1o the fair value measuremenl is directly or indinectly obsenvabie; and
Lewvel 3 —Valuation techriques Sof which Te lowest level input that s significant iz the fair value measurement is unobsenabie.

Far the prpose of fair value disclosures, Coundl has defenmined ciasses of assets and liabifties on the basis of e nature, characienstics and risks of the
asset of ability and the level of the fair walue hisrarchy a5 explained above.

In addition, Counci delemnines whether Fansfers nave ocoumred betwesn levels in T2 hierarchy by re-assessing caegonsation (based on the iowest level
input Tat is significand 1o the fair valu= measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporing penod.
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Hode 8 Managing uncertainties (continued)
B.4 Fair valus measurement {confinued)
Revaluanon
Suirsequent bo the initial recognilion of assets, non-Current physical assels, ofher than plant and equipment, are measured at their fair vale, being the
price that would be received 1o sell an asset jor paid 1o fransier a liabiily) in an ordesly tramsaction beteesn market particpants at the measurement date.

A balance da%e, Te Council reviewed the camying walue of the individual dasses of assets measured at faF value to ensure that each aset materiily
approximated i f3F walue. 'Wniers Te camying walue maienally dffered #om he fair value 31 balance date, Te ciass of assel was revaksd.

Fair value valgations are determingd in acoomdance with a valuaton hierarchy. Changes io the valuation hiemarchy will ooy Gcour § an exiamal change in
the resticiions o Bmitations of use of an asset resull in changes % he permissiole or pracical highest and best use of the asset In addidon, Council
undertakes 3 formal revaluation of and, buildings, and infrasiruciure 3552 on a regular Bass r@anging fom e 1o fve years. The valuation i peformed
gither by experienced council oficers or independent experts.

\Wnere the assets are revalued, the revaluation inements are Tedited drecty io the asset revaluaton reserve except io the exient that an increment
TEVErsEs @ PRor year decrement ¢ thal class of asset that had been fecogrised 35 an SEpense in which Case T increment is ECogRISE 35 MEvENUE Up
to the amount of the sxpense. Revaluation decrements are recognissd as an expense except where pror increments are incudsd in the assst revaluation
resarve for that class of asset in which case the decement is ken 10 M2 resene D he extent of the remaining increments. Within the same dass of
assels, revaluation increments and decremants within the year ane offset

Impaimment of 355815

AL each reporing dale, the Coundl reviews the carrying value of iis assets o determing whether here i any indication that Mese assets have been
impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverabile amount of Tie 25521 being the higher of the asseTs fair value less cosis of disposal and walue in use,
is compared fo the assefs camying value. Any excess of the assets camying value over its recoverable amount is expensed bo the comprehensive income
statement, unless the assel is camied at he revaued amount in which case, the impairment koss is recagnised direcly against the revaiuaion surpius in
respedt of M2 same dass of asset 1o the exiend that he impaiment loss does not excesd Te amount in Te revaluation surpius for Tal same dass of
as5eL

8.5 Events cccuming after batance date
o matiers have ocoumed afier balance date thal require disclasure in he financial report.
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Balancs at
beginning of
i 1

$1000

The assel revaliation reserve is used bo recand the increased (nef) value of Councils assels aver Ime.
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Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2013

Balance at
beginning of
9.1 Ressrves [continusd) reposting period

() Difer rasarves

20189

Discrebonary ressrves
Asset mprovement

Plant replacement

\Warste management

Todal discrationary resarves

Mon discrabonary ressrves
Regreatona iand

Infrastnucture coniributions

[Art galiery acquisition

Art galiery contribution

Leased property improvements
Todal Mon Decrebionary ressrves
Total Other reasrvea

018
Discreionary Reserves

Waste Management

HE:

Mon discreBonary ressrves
Recreatonal and
InFrastnuciure conributions

[Art galiery comiribution

-

Todal Mom Decretionary raserves
Todal Dther reasrves

iﬁﬁ&mnt
ElElsc. sl
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HWode 9 OMher matiera

9.1 Reserves [continusd)

Purpose of Ressrves

Discrationary Ressrves

Asget improvement

Resenve o fnd capital improvements.

Plant Replacement

Resanve is 1 fund Suture purchases of major plant and equipment.

Waste Management
Resenve is 1o fund e establishment of recyciing and ransfer stafons and an ncrease in landfil padty in the Adure.

Mon Discrationary Reserves
Recreatonal Land
Resenve b fund fulore open space faciities as per Section 18 of Subdiision Act

Infrasteture ConfibUbons
Resenve is an acoumulation of developer contioutions which are 1o be expended al a futwe dale on infrasTuciure.

Art GaMery Acquisition
Ressne is 0 fund suture approved an galiery acquisitans.

Art GaNery Contributions
Resane is to fund future specific major art gallery exniotions.

Lezsed Propery Mmprovemants
Resenve o fund future works on leased propsrties in accondance with Crown Landg Act

9.2 peconciiation of cash flows from operating activibes to surpluz
Surplus for me year

Deprecationiamartsation

(Predifiioss on disposal of property, infrasyucture, plant and equipment
Connbatons - Non-monetary assels

Bomawing coss

Other

Change in assels and labilities

(Inorease)idecraase in Fade and ofer recefabies
Decrease in oher assels

Agenda Ordinary Meeting 15 October 2019




Wellington Shire Council
2018/2019 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 3 Other matters
9.3 Superannuation

Thie Wellington Shire Councl makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employess to
the Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super). This Fund has two categories of membership, accurmuiation and
defined benefit, each of which s funded differantly.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulaion categories, Vision MySuperVizion Super Saver, receive both employer and employee confributions
o & progrescive basie. Employer contributions are normnally bazed on a fixed percentage of employee camings (for the year
ended 30 June 2018, thic was 9.5% ac required under Superannuation Guaranies legiclation].

Defined Benefit
Wellington Shine Councal does nof use defined benefit accounting for s defined benefit cbBgations under the Fund's Defined
Benefit category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pocled multi-employer sponsored plan.

Wellington Shire Councd makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by
the Trustes on the advice of the Fund's Actuary. For the year ended 30 June 2013, this rate was 9.5% of members salaries
{2.5% in 201718).

Az at 30 June 2018, an interim acluarial investigation was held as the Fund provides Efelime pensions in the Defined Benefit
category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Councdl is a coniributing employer was
108.0%. The financial assumptions wused to calculate the VBIs were:

Met investment retumns 6.0% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflafion (CPI) 2.0% pa.

Vision Super has advised that the actual VBI at end of June 2019 was 107.1%.

The VBI iz fo be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBl was above 100%, the 30 Juns 2013 actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a safisfactory financial position and that no change was
necessary o the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements from prior years.

The 20138 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts
An achuaria investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Coundil iz a contribufing employer.
Generally a full actuarial mvestigation is conducted every three years and intesim actuarial invesbigations are conducted for

each intervening year. An interim invesfigation was conducted as at 30 June 2016 and a full actuanal invesbigation was
conducted at 30 June 2017.

2018 217

sm sm

A VBl surplus $131.9 $69.8
A total zerdce liability surplus $2183 %1935
A dizcountsd accrusd benefits surplus $248 1 $228 8

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the
vezted benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitied to if they had all exited on 30 June 2018,
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ITEM C3.1 QUARTERLY STRATEGIC LAND USE PLANNING UPDATE
DIVISION: DEVELOPMENT

ACTION OFFICER: MANAGER LAND USE PLANNING

DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

IMPACTS
Financial | Communication | Legislative Council Council Resources Community | Environmental | Engagement Risk
Policy Plan & Staff Management
v v

OBJECTIVE

To update Council on the strategic land use planning work program for the third quarter (July —
September) of 2019.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive the 2019 third quarterly update on the strategic land use planning
work program (included in Attachment 1 to this Report).

BACKGROUND

The strategic land use planning work program is regularly reviewed by Council’s Strategic Land
Use Planning Projects Review Group (Review Group), which was appointed by Council at the
Special Council meeting of 6 December 2016.

The Review Group considered it beneficial to provide Council and the community with a quarterly

update of the strategic land use planning work program, which comprises various prioritised

projects and planning scheme amendments as outlined in Attachment 1.

OPTIONS

That Council:

1. receive the 2019 third quarterly update on the strategic land use planning work program; or

2. not receive the 2019 third quarterly update on the strategic land use planning work program
and seek further information for consideration at a future Council meeting.

PROPOSAL

To receive the 2019 third quarterly update on the strategic land use planning work program.
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a Conflict of
Interest.

LEGISLATIVE IMPACT

All strategic land use planning matters are considered in accordance with the Planning and
Environment Act 1987 and/or any relevant legislation.

COUNCIL PLAN IMPACT

The Council Plan 2017-2021 Theme 2: Services and Infrastructure states the following strategic
objective and related strategies:

Strategic Obijective 2.3
‘Wellington Shire is well planned, considering long term growth and sustainability.’

Strategy 2.3.1
‘Continue to provide strategic planning to encourage long term growth and sustainability in

Wellington Shire.’

Strategy 2.3.2
‘Ensure sufficient land supply to provide for a range of lifestyle options which support

housing diversity including affordable housing.’

Strategy 2.3.3
‘Recognise and advocate for best practice land development which considers energy

efficiency and sustainability for housing.’

This Report supports the above Council Plan strategic objective and strategies.
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ATTACHMENT 1

Current Strategic Land Use Planning Projects

North Sale Development Plan & Developer Contributions Plan
Priority: High  Anticipated completion: 19/20

Status

The ‘North Sale Development Plan’ (Development Plan) was formally adopted by Council
at its meeting of 17 April 2018 and facilitates the coordinated and integrated growth of 294
hectares of land within the nominated growth area to the north of Sale over the next 15 -
20 years.

The adopted Development Plan is available to view electronically on Council’'s website
and in hard copy at the Shire offices at 18 Desailly Street, Sale.

Detailed work (including further drainage investigations) continues in the preparation of
the associated (and complicated) Infrastructure Funding Arrangement, which will seek to
equitably apportion the costs associated with the required infrastructure provision across
the developable land within the growth area.

West Sale and Wurruk Industrial Land Supply Strategy — Technical Report
Preparation
Priority: High  Anticipated completion: 19/20

Status

The ‘West Sale and Wurruk Industrial Land Supply Strategy (April 2018)’, (the Strategy)
was formally adopted by Council at its meeting of 19 June 2018. The Strategy includes a
recommendation to rezone 55Ha of land adjacent to the West Sale Airport (Candidate
Area 2) for industrial uses.

A recommended action of the Strategy was the preparation of several detailed technical
reports to address issues relating to cultural heritage, vegetation, drainage and traffic
matters.

With funding from the Victorian Planning Authority via the ‘Streamlining for Growth’
program, consultants Urban Enterprise have been preparing the technical reports to
support the detailed master planning of the land.

A suite of draft technical reports has been completed and reviewed by Council Officers.
The recommendations of the draft reports have identified a number of matters that require
further detailed consideration.

Officers are currently working with the relevant authorities to address these issues, prior to
finalising the reports.
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Planning in the Economic Growth Zone (PEGZ)
Priority: High  Anticipated completion: 19/20

Status

The ‘Economic Growth Zone’ (EGZ) was established in November 2016 as part of a $226
million package to help boost the local economy of the Latrobe Valley following a general
downturn in economic conditions.

The EGZ includes Wellington Shire; Latrobe City and Baw Baw Shire. The ‘Planning in the
Economic Growth Zone’, (PEGZ) initiative comprises a series of planning projects that
constitute the town planning response to the Minister for Planning’s declaration of the
EGZ.

All of the PEGZ projects aim to support economic development through a review of the
Wellington Planning Scheme provisions to create a simpler, more consistent and less
cumbersome planning system across the EGZ.

Council is also currently working closely with the State Government ‘Smart Planning’ team
to translate the Wellington Planning Scheme into a new state-wide format before initiating
a formal Amendment process to formalise all of the work in late 2019.

Port of Sale East Bank Redevelopment Study
Priority: High  Anticipated completion: 19/20

Status

The ‘Port of Sale East Bank Redevelopment Study’, (the Study) aims to investigate the
strategic land use opportunities and associated planning provisions required to guide the
redevelopment of land located on the eastern side of the Port of Sale, being land formerly
occupied by the Sale High School and Specialist School.

Following community consultation in February 2019, Ratio planning consultants prepared
draft planning scheme provisions to facilitate appropriate uses and development on the
site, the details of which are currently being reviewed by Council and a range of other key
stakeholders, including the Department of Treasury and Finance.

Following the review, a final set of planning provisions will be presented to Council for
consideration.
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Maffra Structure Plan
Priority: High  Anticipated completion: 19/20

Status

Background preparation work has now commenced on the Maffra Structure Plan (the
Structure Plan).

As a key strategic land use planning project for 2019/20, the Structure Plan will focus on
the growth needs of Maffra and establish a direction as to how and where it should
develop into the future. The Structure Plan will, amongst other things:

provide an up-to-date and relevant strategic land use planning framework for Maffra;
facilitate the coordinated and integrated growth of the township over the next 20 years;
provide an informed direction for the future supply of land for residential, commercial
and industrial uses, and

review associated drainage and infrastructure issues holistically.

The structure planning process will involve a component of community engagement that
will be commensurate with the broad scope of the study. Further details and updates will
be provided on Councils website as the study progresses.

It is anticipated that the Structure Plan will be completed by June 2020.

Review of Planning Controls - RAAF Base East Sale
Priority: High  Anticipated completion: 20/21

Status

Following significant upgrades at the RAAF Base East Sale to accommodate expanded
officer training and facilitate the use of new aircraft, background work is now underway to
review and assess updated noise contour mapping to support the on-going operation of
the airfield.

It is anticipated that Officers will engage with the Department of Defence in October 2019
to initiate discussions to develop appropriate planning controls before commencing the
preparation of a Planning Scheme Amendment to implement updated controls in 20/21.
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Council Planning Scheme Amendments

C99: Updated Flood Mapping
Priority: High Anticipated Completion: To be confirmed

Status

Amendment C99 proposes revisions to the Wellington Planning Scheme to
incorporate up-to-date, Shire-wide flood mapping and associated revised local
planning policy to mitigate against potential flood hazards.

At the meeting of 18 June 2019, Council resolved to lay Amendment C99 ‘on the
table’, for Councillors to obtain additional information on the implications of the
proposals for future development.

At the Council meeting of 20 August 2019, Council resolved to:

1) seek a comprehensive and definitive written response from the Minister for
Energy, Environment and Climate Change and the Minister for Planning on
steps to be taken to provide for a consistent State-led response to coastal
flooding and coastal climate change adaptation (with requisite community
engagement), including in the Wellington Shire; and

Council, prior to further considering Amendment C99, and in lieu of the former
Minister for Planning’s decision to not apply flood controls to the urban area of
Port Albert via Amendment C33, write to the current Minister for Planning to
seek clarity and certainty of position in relation to proposed Amendment C99.

In view of the above, any further formal consideration of Amendment C99 has now
been deferred until further notice.

C102: Technical Amendment
Priority: Low  Anticipated completion: 19/20

Status

Detailed background work in compiling minor policy-neutral technical errors within
the Wellington Planning Scheme (i.e. mapping and grammatical anomalies) is
continuing.

The detailed content of Amendment C102 will be discussed with the Department of

Environment, Land, Water and Planning in due course, and where necessary, the
support of individually affected landowners sought.
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C103: West Sale Industrial Land
Priority: High Anticipated Completion: 19/20

Status

Amendment C103 applies to 55Ha of agricultural land immediately adjacent to the
east of the West Sale Airport.

Amendment C103 will facilitate industrial uses and apply detailed planning controls
to manage the potential impacts of future development on nearby sensitive uses.
Planning Scheme Amendment C103 was exhibited between 7 March and 8 April
2019 and presented to Council at the Tuesday 18 June 2019 meeting. At the
meeting, Council considered all the submissions received and resolved to adopt
Amendment C103, which is currently being considered for approval by the Minister
for Planning.

Private Planning Scheme Amendments

Status

At the request of the Department of Justice, the former Sale Police Station (located on the
South Gippsland Highway) was rezoned from the Public Use Zone to the Residential
Growth Zone to facilitate its sale as a surplus asset to the Department’s needs.

A formal Notice of Approval of the rezoning appeared in the Government Gazette on

14 January 2016.

The State Government continues to seek to resolve the issue of the removal of Native
Title on the site, which currently prevents the sale of the land for development purposes.
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ITEM C3.2 PLANNING DECISIONS
DIVISION: DEVELOPMENT

ACTION OFFICER: MANAGER LAND USE PLANNING
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

IMPACTS
Financial |Communication | Legislative  Council Policy Council Resources Community  [Environmental |Engagement Risk
Plan & Staff Management
v v v v v

OBJECTIVE

To provide a report to Council on recent planning permit trends and planning decisions made under
delegation by Statutory Planners during the month of August 2019.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the report on recent Planning Permit trends and Planning
Application determinations between 1 August and 31 August 2019.

BACKGROUND

Statutory Planners have delegated authority under the Planning and Environment Act 1987 to make
planning decisions in accordance with the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the Wellington
Planning Scheme, including the issue of planning permits, amended permits, extensions of time,
refusal of planning permits and notices of decision to grant a planning permit.

A copy of planning permit decisions made between 1 August and 31 August 2019 is included in
Attachment 1.

Attachment 2 provides an overview of recent planning permit trends including decisions made,
efficiency of decision making and the estimated value of approved development (derived from
monthly planning permit activity reporting data).

OPTIONS

Council may choose to note this report, alternatively, Council may choose to seek further
information and refer this report to another meeting.

PROPOSAL

That Council note the report of recent planning permit trends and planning application
determinations between 1 August and 31 August 2019.
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a conflict of
interest.

COMMUNICATION IMPACT
The monthly report communicates information about planning trends and determinations including

the issue of planning permits, amended permits, refusal of planning permits, and notices of decision
to grant a planning permit.

LEGISLATIVE IMPACT

All planning decisions have been processed and issued in accordance with the Planning and
Environment Act 1987 and the Wellington Planning Scheme.

COUNCIL POLICY IMPACT

All planning decisions have been issued after due consideration of relevant Council policy, including
Council’s Heritage Policy, and the requirements of the Planning Policy Framework in the Wellington
Planning Scheme.

COUNCIL PLAN

The Council Plan 2017-2021 Theme 2: Services and Infrastructure states the following strategic
objective and related strategy:

Strategic Obijective 2.3
‘Wellington Shire is well planned, considering long term growth and sustainability.’

Strategy 2.3.3

‘Recognise and advocate for best practice land development which considers energy efficiency and
sustainability for housing.’

This Report supports the above Council Plan strategic objective and strategy.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Planning decisions are made in accordance with the relevant environmental standards to ensure that
environmental impacts are minimised.
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Application
No/Year

Date
Received

ATTACHMENT 1

PLANNING APPLICATION DETERMINATIONS
BETWEEN 1/08/2019 AND 31/08/2019

Property Title
& Address

Proposal

Status

98-2/2016

21/062019

Assessment No. 444091
LOT: 2 PS5: 804040M

157 FITZROY ST

SALE

Two lot subdivision of the land.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

6082019

33332017

20/072019

Assessment No. 45674
PC: 166390

20-4]1 PEARSON ST
SALE

Buildings and works associated
with alterations to school building.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

8082019

189-32018

18/0672019

Assessment No. 233726

LOT: 215 LP: 50201
48-52LAKE ST
LOCH SPORT

Buildings & works/'mixed use
commercial & retail building/9
dwellings.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

12/082019

386-22018

7/082019

Assessment No. 321200

PTP: 1 TP: 231092
IAPORTASMILL LANE
HEYFIELD

Buildings and works/consgucton
of an industrial building.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp’'Auth

19/08/2019

2-12019

2/01/2019

Assessment No. 326868

CA:X14
EELLY & MONDS RD
GLENMAGGIE

Use and development associated
with a store/Temoval of native veg.

NOD issued by Delegate of
Respon/Auth

23/08/2019

11/02/2019

Assessment No. 91884

LOT: 1 TP: 111044
123LIND AVE
DARGO

Two lot subdivision to excise a

dwelling.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

20/08/2019

5/032019

Assessment No. 369546
YARRAM PORT ALBERTRD
LANGSBOROUGH

Natve vegetation removal
associated with construction of
Tamra Trail.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

28/08/2019

69-1/2019

12/03/2019

Assessment No. 222851

LOT: RESLP: 52648
1-19SURFEDGE DVE
GOLDEN BEACH

Buildings and works/installation of
a container for storage.

Pemmuit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

23/08/2019

70-12019

13/03/2019

Assessment No. 374710

LOT: 1 PS: 402031K
166 HODGES RD
COONGULLA

Change of use from machinery shed
to dwelling.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

12/08/2019

116-12019

12/0472019

Assessment No. 429779

LOT: 26 PS: 524074X
15 THE RIDGE
WURRUK

Re-subdivision of the land from 9
lots to 13 lots.

Withdrawn

6082019

119-12019

12/0472019

Assessment No. 183608

LOT: 161 LP: 82059
12 FINISTERRE DVE
THE HONEYSUCKLES

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a single
dwelling.

Permuit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

13/082019
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Application
No/Year

Date
Received

Property Title
& Address

Proposal

Status

138-12019

7/05.2019

Assessment No. 213504

LOT: 234 LP: 52647
12WAVE CAP CRT
GOLDEN BEACH

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a dwelling.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

2/082019

147-12019

15/05/2019

Assessment No. 206771

LOT: 2 PS: 117397
1.107 SEASPRAY RD
LONGFORD

Subdivision to excise a dwelling
and use land for egg production.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

1/0872019

151-12019

17/05/2019

Assessment No. 9373

LOT: 1 TP: 808835V
STMARLEY ST
SALE

Two lot subdivision.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/'Auth

7/0872019

169-1/2019

4062019

Assessment No. 364216

LOT: 1 PS: 547886B
COLEMANS LANE
MAFFRA

Re-subdivision of the land to create
two new lots.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

8082019

173-1/2019

11062019

Assessment No. 109018

LOT: 4 PS: 717780X
83 BAXTERS RD
TOONGABBE

Use and development of racing dog
facility (upto 50 racing dogs).

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

5/0872019

174-12019

14/0672019

Assessment No. 29371

LOT: 3LP: 43201
120-222 RAGLAN ST
SALE

Subdivision of the land into two
lots.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

6082019

175-1.2019

17/0672019

Assessment No. 186940

LOT:47BLK: ALP:- 8478
7MAFFRA ST
THE HONEYSUCKLES

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a dwelling &
shed.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

30/0872019

176-1/2019

18/0672019

Assessment No. 234039

LOT: 1 TP: 8678¢D
14 LAKE ST
LOCH SPORT

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a dwelling.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

20/08/2019

181-1/2019

24/0672019

Assessment No. 83410

PC: 153017
155 GIBSONS RD
COBAINS

Buildings and works associated
with extensions to a dwelling.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

8082019

187-1/2019

28/0672019

Assessment No. 186833

PC: 379226V
32-36 DAVIS ST
THE HONEYSUCKLES

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a dwelling.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

7/0872019

193-12019

2/072019

Assessment No. 14258

LOT: 1 TP: 848015U
1 MAFFRA-SALE RD
SALE

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a fence.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

1/082019

208-1.201¢

12/07/2019

Assessment No. 325472
LOT: 1 TP: 607489
DREWS RD

HEYFIELD

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a farm shed

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

5/0872019
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Application
No/Year

Date
Received

Property Title
& Address

Proposal

Status

216-12019

23/07/2019

Assessment No. 174334

PC: 375342Q
92 BARCELONA WAY
GLOMAR BEACH

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a shed.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp'Auth

22/08/2019

227-12019

20/07/2019

Assessment No. 346288
LOT: 1 PS: 141960

04 LOCES RD
BOISDALE

Buildings and works associated
with extension to existing dwelling.

Pemuit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

1/082019

228-1/2019

20/07/2019

Assessment No. 258657

LOT: 1135LP- 40160
205 SEVENTH AVE
PARADISE BEACH

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a shed.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

12/0872019

229-12019

20/07/2019

Assessment No. 28415

LOT: 1 PS: 327524R
170-176 PATTEN ST
SALE

Buildings & works associated
extension to existing industial
shed.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

2/082019

231-122019

30/07/2019

Assessment No. 14746

LOT: 1 TP: 208184N
115 STAWELL ST
SALE

Buildings and works associated
with extension to existing dwelling.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

5/0872019

236-1/2019

1/082019

Assessment No. 236059
LOT: 1422 LP: 58872

150 NATIONALPARK RD
LOCH SPORT

Buildings and works associated
with construction of an outbwlding.

Permuit Issued by Delegate of
Resp'Auth

7/082019

248-12019

9/082019

Assessment No. 363838

PC: 3605245
17 MYRTLEBANK-FULHAM
MYRTLEBANK

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a farm shed.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

16/082019

249-12019

12/082019

243634
LOT: 2023 LP: 70938
68TOORAK AVE

LOCH SPORT

Assessment No.

Buildings and works associated
with extension to existing dwelling,

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

28/08/2019

251-1/2019

12/082019

Assessment No. 230177

LOT: 38 LP: 30043
67 FISHER PDE
LOCH SPORT

Buildings and works associated
with construction of an outbwlding.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp'Auth

16/082019

252-1/2019

13/08:2019

Assessment No. 435271

LOT: 1 PS: 734395E
10BOND ST
SALE

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a verandah.

Pemut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/'Auth

22/08/2019

255-12019

14/0872019

Assessment No. 86124
LOT: 2TP: 3008R.

SOMERTON PARK RD
COBAINS

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a shed.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

19/08/2019

256-12019

15/08:2019

Assessment No. 11775

PTL: 4PS: 342640D
268-270 RAYMOND ST
SALE

Buildings andworks associated with
installation of a blind.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

23/08/2019
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Application
No/Year

Date
Received

Property Title
& Address

Proposal

Status

257-12019

16/082019

Assessment No. 233577

LOT: 148 LP: 44537
14LAKE ST

LOCH SPORT

Buildings and works associated

with extension to existing dwelling.

No Permut Required

207082019

259-12019

21/0872019

Assessment No. 86298

LOT: 1 P5: 819924G
66 SOMERTON PARK RD
SALE

Buildings and works associated
with construction of a shed.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp'Auth

23/08/2019

261-12019

22/082019

Assessment No. 42390

LOT: 1 TP: 41369
122 MACALISTER ST
SALE

Buildings and works associated

with extension to existng dwelling.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

20/082019

263-12019

23/0872019

Assessment No. 42978

LOT: 1 TP: 433411A
47-49 MACALISTER ST
SALE

Works associated with external
painting.

Permit Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

30/08/2019

265-12019

23/0872019

Assessment No. 247650

LOT: 1220 LP: 58872
I9WATTLE GVE
LOCH SPORT

Buildings and works associated

with extension to existing dwelling.

Permut Issued by Delegate of
Resp/Auth

20/08/2019

Total No of Decisions Made: 40
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ATTACHMENT 2

PLANNING APPLICATIONS RECEIVED /DECISIONS /ACTIVE FILES
JULY 2011 - AUGUST 2019
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Tad C4 - REPORT

GENERAL MANAGER
BUILT AND NATURAL
ENVIRONMENT




ITEM C4.1 UNSEALED ROAD RECONSTRUCTION - SOUTHERN
MAINTENANCE AREA

DIVISION: BUILT AND NATURAL ENVIRONMENT
ACTION OFFICER: MANAGER ASSETS AND PROJECTS
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019

Financial | Communication | Legislative Council Council Resources Community | Environmental | Engagement Risk
Policy Plan and Staff Management

v v v v v v v

OBJECTIVE

The objective of this report is for Council to consider entering into a contract for the reconstruction
of unsealed roads in the Southern Maintenance Area.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION
That:

1. Council adopt the recommendations contained in the attached confidential Tender
Evaluation Report at Item F1.2 of the Council Meeting Agenda for contract

2020-016 Unsealed Road Reconstruction — Southern Maintenance Area; and

The information contained in the confidential document Item F1.2 of this Council
Meeting and designated under Section 77 Clause (2)(c) of the Local Government Act
1989 as confidential by the General Manager Built & Natural Environment on 26
September 2019 because it relates to the following grounds under Section 89(2) of
the Local Government Act 1989: ¢) Contractual matters be designated confidential
information under Section 77 Clause (2)(b) of the Local Government Act 1989, except
that once this recommendation has been adopted the name of the successful
tenderer can be made public.

BACKGROUND

Wellington Shire Council maintains approximately 1560km of unsealed roads. An annual program
for gravel resheets on a selection of roads is developed to maintain the overall condition of the
network with the criteria for choosing roads being based around pavement condition and traffic
usage.

Each year the roads to be resheeted are grouped together into separate contracts based on their
location and this year, three contracts have been tendered one for the Southern Maintenance Area
which is the subject of this report, one for the Western Maintenance Area and one for the Eastern
Maintenance Area, both of which were awarded under delegation.

The works in the Southern Maintenance Area include gravel resheeting sections of the
Gormandale — Stradbroke Road, Carrajung Road and Princess Street, Port Albert.
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The tenders have been evaluated and a contract has been prepared for Council’s consideration.

OPTIONS
Council have the following options available:

e Adopt the recommendations contained in the attached confidential Tender Evaluation
Report for contract 2020-016 Unsealed Road Reconstruction — Southern Maintenance Area;
or

Not enter into a contract and not proceed with these works at this time.

PROPOSAL

That Council adopt the recommendations contained in the attached confidential Tender Evaluation
Report for contract 2020-016 Unsealed Road Reconstruction — Southern Maintenance Area.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Nil staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a Conflict of
Interest.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

These works have been budgeted for in the 2020/21 Capital Works Program.

LEGISLATIVE IMPACT

Wellington Shire Council is committed to ensuring the Contract tendering process complies with
the Victorian Local Government Act 1989 and the Victorian Local Government Code of Tendering.

RESOURCES AND STAFF IMPACT

This project will be undertaken with the resources of the Assets & Projects unit.

COMMUNITY IMPACT

These works will produce a positive community impact with an improved road surface and a long
service life.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

The proposed works will have minimal environmental impact, with the contractors providing an
Environmental Management Plan which will be strictly monitored.

ENGAGEMENT IMPACT

Wellington Shire Council’s standard consultation practices will be implemented on this project.
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RISK MANAGEMENT IMPACT

It is considered that the proposed contract works will not expose Wellington Shire Council to any
significant risks. All OH&S risks will be discussed with the contractor and allocated to the party in

the best position to manage each risk.
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ITEM C4.2 APPLICATION FOR UNUSED ROAD LICENCE IN PARISH OF
CARRAJUNG AT CARRAJUNG LOWER

DIVISION: BUILT AND NATURAL ENVIRONMENT
ACTION OFFICER: MANAGER ASSETS AND PROJECTS
DATE: 6 NOVEMBER 2019

IMPACTS
Financial | Communication | Legislative Council Council Resources Community | Environmental | Engagement Risk
Policy Plan & Staff Management
v v v v v v

OBJECTIVE

The objective of this report is for Council to consider an application that the Government Road
south of Lots 1 & 2 TP116551 Parish of Carrajung is not required for public traffic and is therefore
an unused road.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION
That:

Pursuant to section 400 of the Land Act 1958, Council gives notice that the Government
Road south of Lots 1 & 2 TP116551 Parish of Carrajung is not required for public traffic
and is therefore an unused road.

BACKGROUND

The owner of the property comprising Lots 1 & 2 TP116551, abutting an unused Government Road
in the Parish of Carrajung has made application to Council on behalf of the Department of
Environment, Land, Water & Planning (DELWP) to obtain consent for an unused road grazing licence
for this section of Government Road at Carrajung Lower.

This Government Road is currently unused and abuts their property along the southern boundary.
DEWLP is seeking advice from Council if this Government Road is required for public traffic.

DELWP requires an application for an unused road grazing licence to be publicly advertised. A public
notice was placed by the property owner in the Yarram Standard newspaper on 28 August 2019.
DELWP have advised that no submissions were received.

Road licences for unused roads are issued by DELWP on either an annual, triennial or 99 year licence
basis and they may be revoked (fully or in part) on written request from Council to DELWP.
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OPTIONS
Council has the following options available:

1. Pursuant to Section 400 of the Land Act 1958, advise the Department of Environment Land
Water and Planning its approval of issuing the licence as this section of Government Road is
not required for public traffic, or;

2. Not agree to the issuing of the licence as the Government Road is required for public traffic.

PROPOSAL

That:
Pursuant to section 400 of the Land Act 1958, Council gives notice that the Government Road
south of Lots 1 & 2 TP116551 Parish of Carrajung is not required for public traffic and is
therefore an unused road.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a Conflict of
Interest.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no financial impact for Council as the road is a Government Road and any licence fee will
be paid to DELWP

LEGISLATIVE IMPACT

Application for issue of the licence(s) has been made pursuant to Section 400 of the Land Act 1958.

COUNCIL POLICY IMPACT

There is no Council policy on the closure of unused roads to public traffic. Each application is
treated on merit.

COUNCIL PLAN IMPACT

The Council Plan 2017-21 Theme “Service and Infrastructure” states the following strategic
objective and related strategy:

Strategic Obijective 2.2
“Council assets are responsibly, socially, economically and sustainably managed.”

Strateqy 2.2.2
“Ensure that community facilities within the municipality continue to meet the expectations

and service needs of all current and future residents.”

This report supports the above Council Plan strategic objective and strategy.

COMMUNITY IMPACT

The section of Government Road is unused and there is no identifiable community impact.
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ENGAGEMENT IMPACT

A public notice in the prescribed format was printed in the Yarram Standard newspaper on
28 August 2019 by the proponent as required.

DELWP have advised that no submissions or objections were received.
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ITEM C5.1 COMMUNITY ASSISTANCE GRANTS - EVENTS, PROJECTS AND
FACILITIES AUGUST 2019

DIVISION: COMMUNITY & CULTURE
ACTION OFFICER: MANAGER COMMUNITY WELLBEING
DATE: 15 OCTOBER 2019
IMPACTS
Financial | Communication | Legislative Council Council Resources Community | Environmental | Engagement Risk
Policy Plan & Staff Management
v v v v v v v v

OBJECTIVE

That Council approve the recommendations to allocate Community Assistance Grants — Events,
Projects and Facilities August 2019 funds as detailed in Attachment A and that applicants be
notified of the outcome of their applications.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM THE GALLERY

RECOMMENDATION

That Council approve the recommendations to allocate Community Assistance Grants —
Events, Projects and Facilities August 2019 funds as detailed in Attachment A and that
applicants be notified of the outcome of their applications.

BACKGROUND

The Community Assistance Grants Scheme encourages the development of initiatives in the
community in line with Council’s vision, Wellington 2030, and the Wellington Shire Council Plan
2017-21. The scheme aims to build community capacity, encourage participation in cultural
development and support community initiatives that promote participation.

Not for profit community groups operating in the Wellington Shire can apply for a Community
Assistance Grant of over $2,000 to $5,000. There are three funding categories in the August round
(Events, Projects and Facilities).

Each year there are two funding rounds for Projects and Events categories (March and August)
and one funding round for Facilities category (August).

Applications received that successfully meet the criteria are eligible to be prioritised for funding.

The following applications were received and recommended for the August 2019 funding round:

e 21 Events applications received totalling $99,789 and 21 recommended totalling $96,606

e 13 Projects applications received totalling $58,928 and 7 recommended totalling $29,150

e 10 Facilities applications received totalling $44,878.20 and 9 recommended totalling 39,878.20

Applications are assessed by a Community Assistance Grants Panel (the panel), which comprises
staff at a management and/or coordinator level.
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Each application is assessed on its benefit to the community, ability to fulfil a community need,
project planning and the capacity of the applicant to deliver the project. The panel provides advice
and recommendations to Council based on published Community Assistance Grants Scheme
Guidelines and Assessment Criteria.

OPTIONS

Council has the following options:

1. Approve the recommendations to allocate Community Assistance Grants — Events, Projects
and Facilities August 2019 funds as detailed in Attachment A and that applicants be notified
of the outcome of their applications; or

2. Seek further information for consideration at a future meeting of Council.

PROPOSAL

That Council approve the recommendations to allocate Community Assistance Grants — Events,

Projects and Facilities August 2019 funds as detailed in Attachment A and that applicants be

notified of the outcome of their applications.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No staff and/or contractors involved in the compilation of this report have declared a conflict of

interest.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Funding will be through the Community Assistance Grant Scheme within the Community Wellbeing

budget. The total available budget for the 2019/20 Community Assistance Grant and Quick

Response Scheme is $345,000.

The following applications are recommended for the August 2019 funding round:
e 21 Event applications received totalling $96,606.00
e 7 Project applications received totalling $29,150.00
e 9 Facility applications received totalling $39,878.20

COMMUNICATION IMPACT
The funding of these events and projects will facilitate positive community relationships for the
Wellington Shire, highlighting Council’'s commitment to supporting not for profit community

organisations in the delivery of their activities, projects and events that benefit the wider
community.

COUNCIL POLICY IMPACT

This process is in accordance with Council’s Community Assistance Grants Program no. 5.1.5.
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COUNCIL PLAN IMPACT

The Council Plan 2017-21 Theme 1 Communities states the following strategic objective and
related strategy:

Strategic Objective 1.2
Celebrate, recognise and acknowledge our diverse community and improve social
connections among youth, aboriginal and aged communities.

Strategy 1.2.1
Ensure that Council services, facilities and events promote inclusivity, social

connectedness and accessibility.
COMMUNITY IMPACT
The funding of these Events, Projects and Facilities projects will have a significant positive impact
on the community and provide assistance to increase the range of activities that the wider
Wellington community can access and be a part of. Successful applicants have demonstrated a
community need that will be filled through receiving the funding and show a community benefit
through project outcomes.
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
All Events, Projects and Facilities projects’ applicants are encouraged to consider the
environmental impacts that will be produced through delivering their grant outcomes and have
appropriate measures in place to manage them.
ENGAGEMENT IMPACT
Council officers were involved in consultation with grant applicants to provide advice and
assistance in the completion of event grant applications.
RISK MANAGEMENT IMPACT
The events industry is strongly legislated and all events are encouraged to comply with current

occupational health and safety legislative and best practice safety standards. It is the responsibility
of applicants to ensure that their projects comply with all current rules and regulations.
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RECOMMENDED APPLICATIONS FOR CAG AUGUST 2019 FUNDING ROUND — EVENTS

ATTACHMENT A

Organisation Title Project Description Amount | Recommended
City of Sale Eisteddfod . _ The Eisteddfod provides the opportunity for \/
1 | Society Inc City of Sale Eisteddfod - 73rd year | performers of all ages to perform on stage to
showcase their talents in the arts $5,000
Sale Polocrosse Club Annual Polocrosse tournament attracting many ‘/
2 Sale Polocrosse Annual participants from all over Victoria and interstate to
Polocrosse Tournament 2019 compete. $5,000
3 Sale Basketball Sale Amateur Basketball An annual junior basketball tournament for \/
Association Junior Tournament representative teams. $5,000
4 Heyfield & District Heyfield Vintage Machinery Rally Annual rally to promote preserving Australian \/
Machinery 2020 Heritage. $5,000
5 Yarram Agricultural Yarram Ag Show 2019 A local and iconic community event that showcases \/
Society local talent. $5,000
Coongulla Reserves Community NYE in the Park Community New Year’s Eve in the park is a family \/
6 | Committee of Management friendly community event to celebrate the end of the
year with family, friends and the wider community. $3,500
Golden Paradise Beach End of Summer Surf Festival Three days of family fun during the Easter weekend. ‘/
7 | Residents & Ratepayers Activities include fishing competition, art exhibition,
Association Inc community garage sales and cent night. $5,000
Loch Sport Business and Annual Loch Sport New Year’s Eve | A free event offering two fireworks displays at 9.30 \/
8 | Tourism Association Fireworks Display pm and midnight on the banks of Lake Victoria, Loch
Sport. $5,000
9 Stratford on Avon Shakespeare on the River Festival | An annual celebration of all things Shakespeare, \/
Shakespeare Association encompassing theatre, arts and community. $5,000
10 Anglican Parish of Avon Anglican Parish of Avon - Family A free Family Fun Fair held in Stratford with lots of ‘/
Fun Fair children’s and family activities. $3,500
1 Port Albert Progress Port Albert NYE Night Market and | A free family night of activities, markets and food \/
Association Fireworks Display stalls. Fireworks will be at 8.30pm $5,000
12 Riveria Triathlon Club Maffra Teams Triathlon Teams based mini triathlon event will offer something \/
for everyone, showcasing Maffra and Maffra facilities. | $5,106**
13 Sale Baptist Church Free Community Fun Day A free family fun day with activities, rides and \/
refreshments in Sale. $5,000
Woodside & District Annual Family Fun Day & Show 'n' | Annual Family Fun Day & Show 'n’ Shine Car Show, \/
14 | Football Netball Club Shine with activities on the day. Football and Netball
practice matches will be held on the day. $3,500
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15

Tarra Festival Committee
Inc

2020 Tarra Festival

48th year of Yarram’s iconic Easter Festival, activities
include Street parade, fireworks, markets, art show
and lots of free family fun.

$5,000

16

Mirridong Services Inc

2020 Mirridong Services Inc
Production

Clients and staff of Mirridong present an exciting and
entertaining theatre production for the community of
Yarram and surrounds.

$4,000*

17

Maffra Business & Tourism
Association

Maffra Christmas Festival

A free public space family festival to celebrate
Christmas and the community of Maffra and
neighbouring districts. Street performers, local music
and local produce stalls will feature.

$5,000

18

Art House Gippsland

Inward Goods Festival

A three day music and arts camping festival set on a
natural amphitheatre in the Moornappa Forest.
Inspired to cultivate an arts and culture community in
Gippsland that everyone can access and be a part of.

$5,000

19

Sale Swimming Club Inc

Gippsland Swimming
Championships 2020

Three days of competition for swimming clubs from
Gippsland and beyond. Over 150 events are held for
under 9's to over 35’s and including a classification
events for swimmers with a disability.

$5,000

20

Lions Club of Sale Inc

Kids Day 2020

The event is a community, family, fun and activity
morning held in the Sale Mall. The event whilst a
great community day is also a fundraiser for the
Good Friday Appeal.

$2,000*

21

Sale Music Festival

Sale Music Festival: Picnic on the
Green

Free family community event in the Sale Botanic
Gardens featuring continuous local music and free
musical activities for children.

$5,000

TOTAL AMOUNT RECEIVED

$99,789.00

TOTAL AMOUNT RECOMMENDED

$96,606.00

* Funding reduced
** Road closure ledger funded
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RECOMMENDED APPLICATIONS FOR CAG AUGUST 2019 FUNDING ROUND - PROJECTS

Organisation Title Project Description Amount | Recommended
Rosedale & District Adult Safety Improvements for the local Project responds to necessary safety changes $5,000
1 Horse Riding Club Inc equestrians introduced by Equestrian Australia to improve safety \/
in the Equestrian discipline Eventing.
2 Youth Insearch Foundation | Youth empowerment program Early intervention program supporting ‘at risk’ $5,000 \/
(Aust) Inc Wellington youth - 14-20yrs.
3 Gippsland Auto Museum The Guard's Van Project Restore the 1956 Guard’s Van (train carriage) as an | $5,000 ‘/
Inc additional item at the Gippsland Vehicle Museum
4 George Gray Centre Drama @ GGC Production with a “Sound of Music” story line — 25 $4,000* \/
participants — 2 shows
5 Wonyip Hall CoM Keep the Hall safe Remove unsafe limbs (from 5 large pine trees $4,150 ‘/
threatening the Hall & attendees.
6 Yarram Adult Horse Riders | Yarram Equestrian Future Planning | A feasibility planning document for future planning $4,000 \/
Club and to assist funding sourcing.
7 Yarram Combined Christmas Hamper Appeal 2019 To provide Christmas Hampers to those in need $2,000* \/
Churches Committee (families and singles) in Yarram and District.
8 Sale and District Spectator seating Purchase four fabricated aluminium seats to replace | $5,000 x
Agricultural Society Inc. old wooden seating that has been deemed unsafe.
9 Golden Paradise Beach Get fit and active @ Golden Beach | Installation of outdoor multi-generational fitness $5,000 X
Community Centre CoM equipment.
Loch Sport Fishing Beach Webcam To install a beach web camera with integrated $5,000
10 | Association Inc weather station on the Ninety Mile Beach at Loch X
Sport.
11 Sale Scout Group Marquees Four 3x3 marquees to be used individually or $3,778 X
combined.
12 Balook and District Community woodchipper A woodchipper for the Balook & District Residents $4,000 X
Residents Association Inc. Association members
Longford Tennis Club Tennis Court Expansion Planning Formal plans drawn up to add two compliant un- $5,000
13 cushioned hard courts, one each side of the existing X
two courts and address car parking changes.
TOTAL AMOUNT RECEIVED | $58,928.00
TOTAL AMOUNT RECOMMENDED | $29,150.00

*Funding reduced
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RECOMMENDED APPLICATIONS FOR CAG AUGUST 2019 FUNDING ROUND - FACILITIES

Organisation Title Project Description Amount Recommended
1 | Giffard West Hall Air conditioners for the hall Project is part of a larger project with LVA funding. $5,000
Committee of Management Works include air conditioners, water tank, pressure ‘/
Inc. pump, new oven/stove, lighting upgrade to LED,
building repairs and painting.
2 | Heyfield Tennis Club Acoustic enhancement Improve the social club rooms acoustically. Bingo $5,000
being a weekly event and the major fundraiser) for \/
the club.
3 | Gippsland Lakes Roller Skating venue safety Install necessary safety padding for walls of the $3,900 \/
Derby training venue in Henebery Pavilion.
4 | Loch Sport Boat Club Inc Weathercam upgrade Update the existing weather camera and associated | $3,216
infrastructure for visitors and community to check \/
weather conditions at Lake Victoria.
5 | Stratford on Avon The Art Colt Police Stables Continue the refurb work at the Stratford Police $4,148.20
Shakespeare Association Refurbishment Stables building, currently being used as an art \/
space for lost trades artists.
6 | Heyfield Bowling Club Improved lighting of Heyfield Bowls | Improve the lighting of the new synthetic green to a $5,000
Club synthetic green standard that will enable the club to play North \/
Gippsland Bowls Division pennant games, club and
social games at night
7 | Valencia Soldier's Memorial | Industrial dishwasher Purchase of an industrial dishwasher — part of a full $4,500 ‘/
Hall Committee kitchen renovation funded by LVA & CoM.
8 | Maffra Bowls Recreation Inc | Cooling system A misting system on the verandah of the clubrooms $4,114
to cool players and spectators during summer \/
months.
9 | Sale Girl Guides Hall Structural Repairs Stumping, plumbing and flooring repairs to the Hall. $5,000 \/
Funds will be used to leverage a larger LVA grant.
10 | Maffra Dramatic Society Refurbishment of the old Maffra Create a multi-use space for the Maffra Dramatic $5,000 x
Inc. Football Club Rooms Society and other community groups.
TOTAL AMOUNT RECEIVED | $44,878.20
TOTAL AMOUNT RECOMMENDED | $39,878.20
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Y  D.URGENT BUSINESS

D A7
¥ E. FURTHER GALLERY AND CHAT ROOM COMMENTS

Gallery comments are an opportunity for members of the public to raise any particular matter
they wish. This allows those in the gallery to speak directly to councillors but is not a forum
designed for open discussion or debate. We will listen respectfully to what you have to say and
make the commitment that the Mayor will respond to you in writing within one week if required,
and a copy of that response will be circulated to all councillors.

This is not a forum for members of the public to lodge complaints against individuals, including
councillors and staff, particularly as that individual gets no public right of reply to any matter
raised. We take complaints seriously, and in line with the guidance from the Victorian
Ombudsman and the local Government Inspectorate, we request that any specific complaint
against an individual be put in writing. This way, your concern can be properly dealt with while
ensuring fairness to all parties concerned.

If you wish to speak, we remind you that this part of the meeting is being recorded and
broadcast on our website. Council’s official Minutes will record that you have spoken to Council
and the subject you spoke to Council about but will not record specific comments. We ask you
to state your name in full, where you are from, and you have three minutes.

CHAT ROOM —

GALLERY COMMENTS -

Meeting declared closed at: pm

The live streaming of this Council meeting will now come to a close.
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Y F. CONFIDENTIAL ATTACHMENT/S

F. CONFIDENTIAL
ATTACHMENT/S




ITEMF1.1  AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE MEMBER APPOINTMENT (Refer to Agenda Item
C1.3)

WELLINGTON

SHIRE COUNCIL
The Heart of Gippsland

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
15 OCTOBER 2019

On this 4" day of October 2019, in accordance with Section 77 Clause (2)(c) of the Local
Government Act 1989; |, David Morcom declare that the information contained in the attached
document AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE MEMBER APPOINTMENT is confidential because it
relates to the following grounds under Section 89(2) of the Local Government Act 1989:

h) any other matter which the Council or special committee considers would prejudice the
Council or any person.

Chief Executive Officer
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ITEM F1.2 CONTRACT 2020-016 UNSEALED ROAD RECONSTRUCTON - SOUTHERN
MAINTENANCE AREA (Refer to Agenda Item C4.1)!

WELLINGTON

SHIRE COUNCIL
The Heart of Gippsland

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
15 October 2019

On this 26" day of September 2019, in accordance with Section 77 Clause (2)(c) of the Local
Government Act 1989; |, Chris Hastie, General Manager Built and Natural Environment declare that
the information contained in the attached document CONTRACT 2020-016 UNSEALED ROAD
RECONSTRUCTON - SOUTHERN MAINTENANCE AREA is confidential because it relates to the
following grounds under Section 89(2) of the Local Government Act 1989:

d) contractual matters

CHRIS HASTIE
General Manager Built and Natural Environment
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¥ G.IN CLOSED SESSION

G. IN CLOSED SESSION

COUNCILLOR

That the meeting be closed to the public pursuant to Section 89(2) of the Local Government
Act 1989 to consider:

a) personnel matters

b) the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer

c) industrial matters

d) contractual matters

e) proposed developments

f) legal advice

g) matters affecting the security of Council property

h) any other matter which the Council or special committee considers would

prejudice the Council or any person

IN CLOSED SESSION

COUNCILLOR

That Council move into open session and ratify the decision made in closed session.
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